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Corporate Profile
AR

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery, the predecessor of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”") was established in 1958, and
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 6 November 2002 as a
limited liability company and incorporated in the PRC as a joint stock company with limited
liability on 28 December 2008. The Company’s A shares were listed on the Main Board of
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company’s H shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5
December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
manufacturer in the PRC. The principal businesses of the Company’s coal mining
machinery segment are sets of equipment for integrated coal mining, the R&D, design,
production, sales and services of intelligent control system, with products used by the
major coal industry groups throughout the country and successively exported to various
countries. The coal mine hydraulic support with the highest supporting height and the
highest resistance globally, the domestically first whole set and intelligent equipment for
integrated mining supplied by a single factory and the domestically first exported whole
set equipment for integrated mining are researched and developed and manufactured by
the Company.

There are two brands under the auto parts segment of the Company, being SEG and
ASIMCO. SEG is a world-leading technology and service provider for motor starter motors
and generators, which constantly drives auto energy conservation and emission reduction
and technological innovation, leading the developments of green travel technology. Also,
its technology of 48V low-voltage hybrid motors and market shares are world-leading.
Relying on its high-end R&D advantages, worldwide sales network and quickly responding
locally, high-voltage drive motor for new energy vehicles progresses quickly. The principal
products of ASIMCO include parts using materials application technology as their core
such as engine cylinder blocks and heads, camshaft and powder metallurgy products,
noise and vibration absorber and brake seal, piston ring and valve seat ring. Also, ASIMCO
is committed to researching and developing high-efficient and intelligent air suspension
system, and strives to march into new energy automobile chassis sector, to provide high
quality parts products for PRC and global auto markets.

The established operating history, high quality products, strong research and development
capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network
of the Company and its subsidiaries are the keys to its success and enable it to maintain
its leading position in the coal mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts
market.
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Chairman’s Statement
E $ ‘§ ﬁ % % Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased, on behalf of the board of
directors (the “Board”) of Zhengzhou

Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, to present the annual report of the
Group for the period from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023 (the “2023 Annual
Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Chairman’s Statement EE R &=

Dear Shareholders, BRHAE

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Review Period”), the Company adhered REE2023F 128318 1L FE ([ @ EH
to the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chingse Characteristics for a Bl ARBRHUBOEHRRTPESEEHE
New Era, and earnestly implemented the important instructions of General Secretary Xi TEBEAEE  REEMEEELVFRER
Jinping on his site inspection of ZMJ. Facing the severe and complex external situation, RERBPEMAEZ TS - EHERIEEHD
the Company strengthened the top-level planning, maintained development determination, SNERFZES - IARTEERE - RIBEREN - &
made every effort to promote digital transformation, strengthened market leadership DB TLER - HINRETISEE - HA
externally and capacity building internally, and took forward the Company’s various tasks eReENER - LEBFHERRSEIE -
in a solid and orderly manner to achieve stable growth in operating results. BEREEEBENRBTEER -
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I. 2023 BUSINESS REVIEW

()

The results of the Group as a whole and its various
industrial sectors achieved another historical high
level

The fifth session of the Board led all cadres and staff to respond
proactively and strive. In 2023, the Group realised operational
revenue of RMB36,423.24 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 13.67%; profit for the year attributable to shareholders
of the Company was RMB3,301.33 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 30.06%, both of which are substantially higher than
various performance indicators set by the new session of general
meeting and the Board after the mixed ownership reform. The results
of coal mining machinery segment and the ASIMCO, SEG, Hengda
Intelligent and other principal business segments hit a record high.

Digital and intelligent upgrade for the coal mining
machinery segment, with the major indicators
reaching a new record high

In 2023, China’s coal economic operation in general was relatively
stable. The coal machinery segment of ZMJ seized external market
opportunities and strengthened the construction of internal process
capacity, setting record highs in an all-round manner in terms of
ordering, return payment, output value, production volume, per capita
work efficiency and R&D achievements.

1. Seized market opportunities and set new benchmarks in
the industry

Hitting another highest globally, we successfully won the
bidding of and delivered the Shaanxi Coal Caojiatan 10 metres
extra-large mining height intelligent hydraulic support project.
Both of the 10 metres extra-large mining height intelligent
hydraulic support and the resistance are currently the highest
ones in the world, which is not only a major breakthrough for
leading the comprehensive coal mining equipment technology,
but also an epoch-making results to strengthen the world-
leading status of our country in terms of extra-large mining
height intelligent hydraulic support. We held the 10 metres
extra-large mining height intelligent hydraulic support ex-factory
evaluation and the ceremony to celebrate the launching of
the 300,000th unit of support produced by ZMJ and took this
opportunity to demonstrate to key customers the advantages of
the industry’s first digitally-enabled primary plant for intelligent
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manufacturing and the intelligent complete set integrated
solutions; we presented at industry exhibition with the support
of “digital, intelligent”, and made great repercussions, which
fully demonstrated the differentiated strategies and industry
leader status of ZMJ; we deepened the “trinity” marketing
concept, and obtained some 100 new market orders in the year,
achieved fruitful market development results. Our international
high-end market was in full bloom, with products and services
to open up the market, and the market and word-of-mouth to
achieve brand success, we won a number of international high-
end market complete set projects, with an annual order amount
of RMB1.360 billion from the international market, representing
a year-on-year growth of more than 40%.

High-quality development led by technological innovation

We continued to deeply cultivate intelligent and complete
sets of technological products, adhered to the concept of
“front-line research and development”, went deeper into the
customers’ site, solved customers’ pain points and difficulties,
and continuously developed high-tech products with market
competitiveness. We made new progress in the research of
complete sets of equipment for integrated mining of extremely
thin coal seams and the research of key technologies for
intelligent complete sets of machine units with large inclination
angle; we introduced high-end talents for intelligent complete
sets of products and upgraded the product technology, resulting
in the rapid growth of the business of scraper conveyor and
coal miner; centering around the market demand for intelligent
transformation of coal mines, we launched the intelligent
iterative upgrading of the products and launched the research
of key technologies and application of intelligent products, and
successfully researched and developed a new generation of
distributed intelligent control system, and continued to promote
the development of new products and new businesses, such
as non-coal mining business, intelligent mine and intelligent
tunneling, so as to enhance the Company’s industrial influence
and market competitiveness.
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Digital empowered intelligent manufacturing to realise
rapid productivity improvement

We completed the overall scenario-based planning for digital
transformation of the coal mining machinery segment and the
construction of management cockpits for multiple modules.
With digital empowered intelligent manufacturing, we optimised
and upgraded production organisation and realised rapid growth
in production capacity. Firstly, our intelligent park were guided
by Industry 4.0 intelligent manufacturing system and relied on
5G communication system, loT system and digital twin system
independently developed by ZMJ and realised a full-process
digital from design, materials selection, which steadily improved
the production capacity. Compared with the traditional mode,
production to delivery. Compared with the traditional mode,
the production efficiency is increased by more than two times,
and the production cost other than raw materials is reduced
by 60%; secondly, we completed the intelligent upgrading and
transformation of the main production lines, such as the cylinder
disc bushing line, structural parts welding line, plasma cutting
line, etc., rapidly improved production efficiency.

() Achieved new breakthrough on the technology
research and development and made a steady
progress in the spin-off of Hengda Intelligent Contro

Hengda Intelligent Control successfully researched and
developed a new generation of distributed intelligent control
system, which was based on the independent, controllable
embedded autonomous controllable processor with high
performance, and equipped Chinese-made distributed operating
system, and realised an uniform hardware and software
platform, a uniform communication protocol, and an uniform
data standard for all equipment controls over the comprehensive
mining face so as to protect the high-speed data exchange
across equipment, and achieve high-efficient and intelligent
synergy, laying a foundation to apply the “intelligent 3.0”.

Steady progress was made in the spin-off of Hengda
Intelligent Control, for listing on the STAR Market of the SSE,
the application of which was accepted by SSE in September
2023 and was at the review stage. Through the spin-off, ZMJ
(other than Hengda Intelligent Control and its subsidiaries) will
further focus on the businesses of comprehensive coal mining
equipment manufacturing and auto parts and components,
enhance the technology and quality of comprehensive coal
mining equipment, and improve the high reliability, stability
and user-friendliness of its products. Hengda Intelligent
Control will further focus on its business, enhance its level of
professional operation, promote the integrated development
of digital intelligent technology with the coal industry, upgrade
the level of coal mine intelligence and promote the high-quality
development of the national coal industry.

3. HTHAEEARNE  BRERRERA

FERE IR R T LA RIS S S AR B
MEEERNEERMBER - LEF(
AL T pE Bl - BIL AR AEEBE T -
Eﬁ%%mﬁkﬂOf%E%aEuI%

0 REBERE R RIEE - (KFESGHEL R

- VB R GO BB B AR
[Hr@ERG ] BT EMKSRT &
M EERRENEREHSTY - BEs
B - EEBREFA2SUL - BRE
RN B R AR BR1E60% + — 2 TEAH
fTHELS  #ETIEER  SHTUIE
L EESN L ARNE - RERIES
HEBCE -

BB IR T UG =
DIF LR i%&%&

BB — R DML B LB R R
W et ERER AR R SRR
ﬁﬁ.ﬁ DI RIRIER S 'Eﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
RipESG—EREM e B—BEHS -
—BUERIRAE ﬁﬁ%@TKﬂﬁmE%%
E BAEREWR - Bl EEAL3.0]MRILE
FZSE AR -

BIESFEBESEE FXABAIR ET
HEH - R2023F9 A ERFTSIRE AEIZE
&o@@$mﬁﬁ B (REESERA
NRIASN) i — S BRI R AR IR R s
ﬂm$ BRI TS - BRI R AR BRI A R
nE  ReEEMNSUSE BTN 28
ﬁ EESITE— S EREREE  BASE
{EAS KT - HEBN BT 4T B/ b Bl B ok 2
E¥REEE  BAEESEKT - (R#ERER
HRITESESERE -



BIMEERMEBR N AR AR 2023551

Chairman’s Statement EE R &=

(V) ASIMCO’s New Energy business reached a new (1) 28 T BHr aE R SR B PR A T

level, accelerating business transformation

ASIMCO introduced strategic investors as well as employee
shareholding, and a more market-oriented and effective incentive and
restraint mechanism has been established, and drove the shift of its
professional manager to business partner, thus further strengthening
its internal dynamics. ASIMCQO’s sales revenue increased by
approximately 24% year-on-year, of which the revenue from its new
energy auto parts business was approximately RMB390 million,
representing a year-on-year growth rate of over 100%. With “business
growth” as its first priority, ASIMCO has continued to enhance
its core competitiveness by focusing on R&D and technology,
strengthening internal management and the continuous promotion
of digital transformation. On the one hand, ASIMCO solidified its
leading position in the existing market segments, continued to give
full play to the advantages of its core product business, and strived to
increase market share and solidified the foundation of development;
at the same time, it vigorously pushed forward the construction of
new production capacity in new factories, and improved the efficiency
of digital and automated factories to expand the advantages of its
core businesses from the domestic market to the global market,
and led the transformation and upgrading of the industry; on the
other hand, ASIMCO has made every effort to develop the market
of new energy auto parts and components, and has successfully
developed major components of ASIMCQ’s intelligent air suspension
system, and ASIMCO has completed the access to potential suppliers
of many leading OEMs and reached synchronous development
plans with many customers. The new energy products of ASIMCO
Anhui accounted for 22% of its revenue, covering mainstream new
energy vehicle manufacturers. The clear direction of new product
development for the new business is expected to become a new
force in driving ASIMCQ’s future growth.
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(V) SEG optimised global structure and layout,

accelerated the development of new energy
business

In 2023, focusing on profitability and growth, SEG’s auto parts
business strengthened the reduction of procurement costs and
continued to optimise its global layout, and continuously increased
its market share of the 12V starter and 48V BRM in Europe and
America, and accelerated the development of its new energy
drive motor business while consolidating the advantages of its
traditional business. In the field of automotive electrification, the
second generation of 48V BRMs equipped with self-developed
inverters was mass produced and rolled out of the production line,
and orders for 48V BRMs were secured from a number of leading
automotive companies in Europe, while the Volvo project has entered
mass-production in Europe and China. SEG India achieved zero
breakthrough in the high-voltage motor business, and quickly seized
the fast-developing Indian market with the advantage of localisation;
SEG Electric System’s global new energy project was put into
production and the R&D centre was opened, laying the foundation
for high-quality development; high-voltage relay products obtained
orders from global automotive parts groups and were put into mass
production, and the 800V high-voltage flat-wire gluing stator was
successfully mass-produced and achieved mass supply. We have
therefore established the capability of large scale industrialised
production of new energy electric drive.

(V) Shuyun Company achieved zero breakthrough by

empowering discrete manufacturing industries with
digitisation and intelligence

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Shuyun Intelligence Technology
Co., Ltd. is committed to building a complete digital factory
ecosystem, focusing on “production automation, logistics automation
and information automation”, and empowering the construction
and the transformation of digital factories. The year 2023 saw a
zero breakthrough with the signing of the first order for an external
project of the Group, and a number of projects have already entered
the stage of detailed plan design, which is expected to become an
important business driver for the Group’s digital transformation.

(V) Zhima Street achieved spectacular transformation

to become a demonstrating benchmark and cultural
landmark

In 2023, taking “become a demonstration model of China’s
‘industrial heritage + dual-creation industry’” as its vision, Zhima
Street endeavoured to become a modern urban industrial complex
integrating four parks, namely “industrial park + cultural scenic area
+ commercial district + living community”. At present, the occupancy
rate of the first phase of the park has exceeded 90%, and planning is

underway to build the second phase of the project.
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(Vllll Investment business bloomed in many locations,

(X

with capital empowering industrial transformation
and upgrading.

During the reporting period, the IPO application of the shares of
Suda Corporation, a joint stock company of the Company, was
approved by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and has been reported
to the China Securities Regulatory Commission for registration; the
indirect investment enterprise, Luoyang Bearings Group Co., Ltd.
(RES & E IR 15 B PR A 7)) was established and completed
its shareholding reform, which provides a basis for the company to
march towards the capital market and achieve breakthroughs in the
fields of high-speed railway, aerospace and extra-large and heavy-
duty bearings.

Made every effort to promote digital transformation,
and restructured core competitiveness

Digital transformation is an essential path for manufacturing
enterprises to change lanes and lead the race. The Company has
continued to promote digital transformation and drive the reform
of the entire business process with digital power. The cockpits of
the Group and its various industrial sectors were launched in the
market in an orderly manner, and the digital transformation of the
entire business process has been put into effect, with all aspects
of operation, sales and marketing, production, and the supply
chain being digitised. The operational efficiency of the smart park
has been enhanced, realising self-awareness, self-learning, self-
determination, self-implementation and self-adaptation in the entire
production process, which has significantly reduced production costs
and increased space utilisation while improving production efficiency.
Digital transformation obtained many honours: it was selected as a
listed enterprise in National Intelligent Manufacturing Demonstration
Factories; two projects won the First Prize of the First State-owned
Enterprise Digital Scene Innovation Professional Competition; and
was selected as an intelligent manufacturing benchmark enterprise in
Henan Province, ASIMCO Shuanghuan was included in the 2023 5G
Factories List published by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, and a Benchmarking Factory of Industrial Internet in
Jiangsu Province; and SEG China was selected as an Intelligent
Manufacturing Benchmark Workshop in Hunan Province.
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Industry landscape and trends

() Coal mining machinery industry

According to the Guiding Opinions on the High-quality Development
of the Coal Industry in the 14th Five-Year Plan issued by the China
National Coal Association, by the end of the 14th Five-Year Plan
period, the number of coal mines in China is controlled at around
4,000, with more than 1,000 intelligent mining faces built, and the
degree of mechanisation of coal mining shall be around 90%.

The government work report pointed out that “do more to ensure
energy and resource security by stepping up the exploration and
development of oil, natural gas, and strategic mineral resources.”
“advance the energy revolution, tighten control over fossil fuels
consumption, and work faster to develop a new energy system.”
and the main task proposed in 2024 plan for national economic and
social development included “strengthen the basic supporting role of
coal and build high-standard modern coal mines”.

As one of the main energy sources in China, the clean, efficient
and low-carbon utilisation of coal will be constantly promoted, the
green transformation of the coal industry and the optimisation of the
combination of coal and new energy will be realised. In recent years,
China has successively issued policies such as the “Catalogue of
Key Research and Development of Coal Mine Robot”, the “National
Energy Technology Innovation Action Plan (2016-2030)”, the “Guiding
Opinions on Accelerating the Intelligent Development of Coal Mines”
and the “Guidelines for the Intelligent Construction of Coal Mines”,
which, together with the introduction of supporting policies by major
coal-producing regions, are conducive to promoting safe and efficient
intelligent mining and clean and efficient intensive utilisation of coal,
and have a clear direction for the construction of intelligent coal
mines. At the same time, the intensified and leading effect of the
coal industry has become more obvious, the concentration of the coal
mining machinery industry continued to increase, the competition
was increasingly crowded, and the pace of internationalisation,
informatization, digitization and intelligent transformation was
accelerated. ZMJ will seize the opportunities arising from the rapid
development of intelligent coal mine construction, provide customers
with high reliability, intelligence, green and complete sets of
equipment, and contribute to the protection of customer needs and
national energy security.
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() Automobile industry (D) REITEBENR

In recent years, the PRC automobile market has accelerated to
shift to new energy automobile. The Development Plan of New
Energy Automobile Industry (2021-2035) pointed out that the sales
volume of new energy vehicles will account for approximately 20%
of the total sales volume by 2025; The “Energy-saving and New
Energy Vehicle Technology Roadmap 2.0” issued by the Society of
Automotive Engineers of China proposed that hybrid electric vehicles
shall account for more than 50% of traditional energy passenger
vehicles by 2025. While the market share of new energy automobile
exceeded 30% in 2023, which became an important power to lead
the transformation of global automobile industry. Full electrification
will drive a high degree of integration between the industry chains
of energy-saving and new energy vehicles, and the market share
of fuel-powered vehicles will be further shrunk, and the number of
new vehicle models developed by traditional automobile enterprises
will decrease. The high-end vehicle market and new energy vehicle
market have greater growth potential, and the leading effect of the
automobile industry will become more obvious. On the other hand,
the automobile market still faces great challenges: the market
competition is becoming increasingly fierce; at the same time,
customers have higher requirements for product production cycle,
technical performance, comfort and quality.

As the upstream industry of the automobile industry, the automobile
parts and components industry is the foundation for the development
of the automobile industry. The automobile industry is in the
window period of new energy transformation, we are facing not
only the opportunities of industry reform, but also the challenges of
sustainable development. The Company will continue to explore the
passenger vehicle market, steadily expand the commercial vehicle
market, vigorously explore the new energy market, actively provide
customers with high-quality products and services, and enhance
market competitiveness in various fields.

MER - PERE IS MR A sEREE o
CheblR A B EEFER D (2021-20359F ) Y I5
o B 2025 F F R R EHE S S (h b E
20%EH  REABETRES H MR
R TE R A& E2.0) © IRH20256 R4
BB hE SRR A EAS0% L o M
2023 F BRI T IHE A REBi1B30% « K
BEEERNAEEEXEANSEEZNE - T2A
BRI T - fige/TEEFAER TE N E £
EEERA WaEMSMHEGHE —FEF
W BHRCEFELHERESHENRL =
BTSSR TE IS AR AR/
JRETEMTES S ERUNBARE - Z—HERE
MSNEERAKE - MISEFEBEZ : [
B BPHESEERL - BITIEE - fFEk
FEERETESE k-

MERRMITRERUEREITEN LFT
¥ RABEIEHRMER - TETELRAE
FELRERNE Q8] - RIPREGTEZEER
BiE - bERSEERORE - QREHER
ZRAEMS  BREMRBAENS - KA
R ™S > BRATPR{AEEMNERNR
RS - RIEESBENTISHF N



14

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Chairman’s Statement EERf &=

Ill. FUTURE PROSPECTS

() Development strategy of the Company

The report of the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of
China pointed out that the focus of economic development should be
placed on the real economy, so as to promote new industrialisation
and accelerate the establishment of a nation with manufacturing
power and quality power. The Central Economic Work Conference
pointed out held in December 2023 also pointed out that the
construction of a modern industrial system shall be led by scientific
and technological innovation. It is necessary to promote industrial
innovation with scientific and technological innovation, especially with
subversive and cutting-edge technologies to generate new industries,
new modes and new momentum, so as to develop new quality
productivity.

Adhering to the development concept of “technology changes
the world, intelligence leads the future”, the Company will insist
on being led by technological innovation, continue to strengthen
innovation-driven development, accelerate digital transformation
and global layouts, develop high-end manufacturing and intelligent
manufacturing, foster and develop new quality productivity, strive to
achieve the development goal of 100 billion by 2030, and strive to
become an intelligent manufacturing enterprise group with global
influence.

1. Deeply cultivating the coal mining machinery segment
based on the current long-term plan

As the main energy source in China, coal will remain
indispensable and important in the energy supply system for
a long time in the future. The coal mining machinery segment
will adhere to the principle of “intelligent-driven product
development and digital-driven business transformation
throughout the whole process”, and stick to the development
strategy of “intelligent, whole set, international and socialized”
supported by digitisation, increase investment in research and
development to meet customers’ increasing needs for “service
experience” instead of focusing on “equipment per se”, and to
make the mining of coal safer, more efficient, greener and more
comfortable, strive to become a supplier of complete sets of
coal mining equipment, a service provider with a full life cycle,
and an industrialised digital operator.
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Accelerating the electrification transformation of the
auto parts segment

In terms of ASIMCO, firstly, we will continue to maintain the
continuous growth of core advantageous businesses and the
continuous increase of market share, further promote intelligent
manufacturing, expand customer base, broaden product lines,
and expand exports, achieve the ultimate success of traditional
products; secondly, it will accelerate new energy transformation,
actively explore the new energy auto market, expand the
proportion of new energy vehicle business, and swiftly
cover more mainstream new energy vehicle manufacturers,
and promote the transformation of ASIMCO from parts to
components and even system integration, as well as from the
dominance of domestic business to globalization. In terms of
SEG, it will focus on profitability and growth, rapidly transform
its new energy business, accelerate the development of high-
voltage drive motor business for new energy vehicles, base in
China, develop in China, and radiate globally, so as to build a
world-class automotive electrification system solution provider.

Accelerating digital transformation and enhancing new
momentum for development

Digital transformation is the main theme of the Company in the
next five to ten years. The key is to replace manual labour with
machinery and digital technology, improve per capita labour
efficiency, and help save energy and reduce emissions. On
the one hand, Company will promote the digital upgrade at all
levels of the Company, and promote the interconnection and
collaborative sharing of multiple segments and businesses.
On the other hand, the Group will foster the development of
a digital and intelligent total solution provider for the discrete
manufacturing industry, and empower the construction of the
primary digital chemical plant and the transformation of the
digital chemical plant by focusing on “production automation,
logistics automation and information automation”. The Group
will strive to build itself into a digital enterprise, and empower
the high-quality development of enterprises with digitalization
and intelligence.
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4. Focusing on emerging areas and striving to develop new
businesses

We will seize the new industrial opportunities under the
background of “dual carbon” and focus on the existing
segments while unswervingly entering into new fields and
developing new businesses. Adhering to “leaving the industry
without leaving the profession”, we will attention to business
opportunities in the new energy, high-tech equipment and
intelligent equipment industries.

5. Promoting high-quality development with the help of
capital

The Group will actively study the relevant policies as regards
capital market, cultivate the relevant businesses of the Group
to enter the capital market independently, rationalise our
business structure, highlight the advantages of our main
business, optimise our industrial layout, enhance the quality
of development and promote the realisation of value. We will
make comprehensive utilisation of various capital market tools
to explore ways to invest in and find a path in new industries,
improve the long-term incentive and restriction mechanism,
and improve the mechanism of business partners, so as
to comprehensively enhance the value of investment in the
Company.

(I) Business Plan for 2024

In 2024, situation domestic and overseas development and industry
development would be more uncertain and unpredictable, and
strategic opportunities would exist along with risks and challenges.
The Company will focus on strategic goals, break through the glass
door of thinking, establish an atmosphere of “wanting to act, being
able to act, and accomplishing goals of the act”, continuously
improve the awareness and ability of the management team and core
and backbone personnel, maintain keen insight, dare to try, dare
to challenge, dare to take responsibility and dare to be innovative,
actively “going abroad” with the center of internationalisation and
globalisation, insist on innovation driven, setting up big ambition and
taking small steps, stay restless and embark on the long journey,
and promote the enterprise to achieve sustainable and high-quality
development.
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1. Continue to deepen reform and transformation and
consolidate the foundation for high-quality development

(1)

@

©

Continuously improving the capacity building of the
headquarters and strengthening management and control
and compliance governance of the Group

The Group will establish and improve its business partners
mechanism, set up a “horse racing” mechanism, and
promote the institutionalisation and standardisation of the
selection, employment, training and retention of core staff.
Accelerating the progress of the digital transformation of
the Group’s management and control, and realising all-
round penetrating management through the management
cockpit. We will further improve the compliance
management system, implement the policies and
measures of the SFC and the Stock Exchange, enhance
the quality of listed company to meet the needs of the
development of new quality productivity.

Continuously promoting digital transformation and foster
the development of new qualitative productivity

Guided by intelligence, globalisation and digitisation,
we will continue to promote reform and innovation,
enhance the overall level of digitisation and intelligent
manufacturing, explore the global IT structure under the
new situation and accelerate the construction of digital
plants; conduct lighthouse factory declaration; explore the
digitisation of products and services, continuously promote
customer experience enhancement, business efficiency
improvement and business model innovation, so as to
empower the high-quality development of enterprises with
digitisation and intelligence.

Promoting new industrial layout of the Group, and pushing
forward with development by investment

The Group will also capitalise on the new opportunities
in the industry under the background of “dual carbon”,
explore and expand into new fields, develop new
businesses, lay out in new race courses, make full use
of the capital market, promote the Group’s layout in new
industries, and achieve the healthy complementarity
between industrial operation and capital operation, so as
to inject new impetus into the realisation of the Group’s
medium to long-term strategic objectives.
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Continue to promote business reform and innovation in
each segment to achieve stable business development

(1) Coal mining machinery business

In 2024, the coal mining machinery segment will
continue to implement the “four strategies” reinforced by
digitisation, adhere to the development of complete sets
of products led by intelligence, and digitally drive reforms
in the entire process of the business, striving to achieve
steady development of the business.

Firstly, reform and innovation for growth. Based on
technological innovation, product innovation, management
innovation and business model innovation, we will guide
the consumption of customers, cultivate new products
and new businesses, and create a second growth curve.
We will also carry out in-depth study of mining processes
under different geological conditions, accelerate the
research and development of new products with the
change of coal mining technology in mind, broaden the
product line of integrated mining and special equipment,
capture opportunities in the market; with the improvement
of the efficiency of integrated mining sets in mind, take the
research and development of key technologies, such as
integrated intelligent synergies and environmental linkage,
downstream scraper transfer robot as a breakthrough,
and promote the in-depth integration of the complete
sets and intelligent; adhere to the strategy of international
development, and carry out in-depth cooperation with
the customers’ downstream and upstream enterprises to
change the traditional business model, provide customers
with brand new products and services, and create new
business growth points.

Secondly, integrate digital and intelligence to promote
development. We will accelerate the integration of digital
transformation with intelligent manufacturing and intelligent
products to promote enterprise development and enhance
core competitiveness. With the goal of empowering
enterprises with digitalisation for all-round improvement,
we will continue to promote the enhancement of customer
experience, business efficiency, as well as innovation in
business and operation modes; with the construction of
lighthouse factories as the lead, we will comprehensively
promote the digital transformation of production lines,
improve the level of intelligent manufacturing, and build up
more flexible manufacturing capabilities and faster delivery
capabilities.
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Thirdly, improve quality and stabilise quantity to increase
efficiency. We will embed the process of quality change
in the Company’s digital transformation, comprehensively
improve the job quality, product quality and operating
quality to create a production and operation system
characterised by short cycle, high quality and low-cost
delivery, and swiftly respond to market demand to provide
customers with quality products.

Fourthly, establish capability to expand differentiation.
We will strengthen strategic leadership and high target
driving, make more investment in organisational capacity
building, process capacity building and human resources
enhancement, so as to form unique and non-copiable
core competitiveness and create differentiated competitive
advantages.

Automotive components business of ASIMCO

Firstly, we will continue to consolidate and enhance the
advantageous position of our core business. We will
achieve the ultimate success of traditional products,
rapidly promote the new production capacity projects of
ASIMCO to reach production, reduce manual labour and
improve efficiency through digitalisation and automation,
increase the development of international business, and
expand our core business advantages from domestic to
the globe, build factories overseas followed after original
equipment manufacturers, leading the transformation
and upgrading of the industry; Second, rapidly develop
our new energy business. ASIMCO will vigorously develop
the new energy market, the main components of the air
suspension system shall obtain designation of customers’
projects, also ASIMCO will explore cold plate business, and
the vibration and noise reduction components shall enter
more customers’ markets. At the same time, ASIMCO will
rapidly push forward the deployment of new products and
new business to accelerate the pace of development of
new energy.
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Business of SEG

SEG will continue to reduce costs and improve efficiency,
and further optimise the incentive and restriction
mechanism so as to stimulate the internal dynamics;
further improve its market share and increase its
profitability in terms of 12V and 48V BRM area with its
leading edges; expand its after-sale business; reach rapid
growth in developing countries such as India. By leveraging
its global system advantages and the benchmarking
effect of its ongoing projects, SEG will rapidly promote
the R&D and sales of high voltage drive systems,
electronic controls, electrical motors and high-voltage
relays, establish relevant supporting production capacity,
complete the mass production and delivery of ongoing
orders with high quality, while achieving zero breakthrough
of three-in-one electric drive system designation projects
and incubate new businesses with its existing products
and technologies.

Rapid breakthrough in new business of Shuyun Company

To build a complete ecosystem of digital chemical plants,
Shuyun Company will secure more external project orders,
develop a new-generation intelligent lifting system, and
build up the “smart factory turnkey” capability, so as to
provide total solutions for digitisation and intelligence in
the discrete manufacturing industry, and to empower
the construction of native digital factories and the
transformation of digital factories.
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(5) Steady progress of Zhima Street Phase Il construction
project

The Group will promote the development of Phase Il
of Zhima Street Innovation and Entrepreneurship Park,
complete the relocation of production functions in the
park, basically complete the transformation of the casting
sub-factory, complete the industrial positioning plan and
conceptual design plan of Phase Il, and push forward the
construction of the Phase Il project.

The mission lies in responsibility and struggle creates futures. 2024 is the key
year for the continuous deepening and implementation of the Company’s five-
year strategic plan. The Company will thoroughly study and implement the
spirit of the important speeches of General Secretary Xi Jinping, and the spirit
of the National People’s Congress and Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Congress, adhere to promoting the industrial innovation with scientific and
technological innovation, foster and develop new quality productivity and focus
on the goal of high-quality development, and strive to achieve the Company’s
five-year strategic planning goal, and strive to build a high-end intelligent
equipment industry group with international influence with our tireless zeal and
combat attitude!

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

28 March 2024
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Become an intelligent
manufacturing group

with a strong international standing.
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB36,423.24 million, representing an increase of 13.67% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
was RMB3,301.33 million, representing an increase of 30.06% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB1.87. As at 31
December 2023, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB7,303.24 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history,
high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the
auto parts market and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal
mining machinery and auto parts.

FEEE

HE2023F12A31HIEFE - AEEBRBEEWRAAR
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year ended 31 December

2023 indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

o ks Ak
RERE

TR AREBRRE 2023512 A31 B IHEE 4R

2023 2022

20235 20224F

RMB millions RMB millions

ARBEET ARBEETT

Revenue WA 36,423.24 32,043.31
Cost of sales SHERA (28,575.29) (25,644.60)
Gross profit EF 7,847.95 6,398.71
Other income EagA 492.12 476.43
Other losses, net H g8 F5E (13.20) (120.09)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R A (1,156.27) (831.59)
Administrative expenses THFAX (1,199.59) (1,072.97)
Research and development expenses [oiReg= 4] (1,568.24) (1,385.96)
Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets RN EREEREREFE 51.23 (137.28)
Share of profit of associates FEIREEE R R)EH 46.97 23.15
Share of profit of joint ventures FEhEERER 5.89 5.05
Finance costs BHE AR (388.60) (265.41)
Profit before tax BRBE AR A 4,118.26 3,090.08
Income tax expense FriSHif X (616.67) (462.07)
Profit for the year FREF 3,501.59 2,628.01

Profit for the year attributable to: AT AT EIEFRER]

Owners of the Company RAERER 3,301.33 2,538.24
Non-controlling interests JEIEARRERS 200.26 89.77
3,501.59 2,628.01
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Results of Operations (continued) BREXEE®
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBAETT
Other comprehensive income: Hitt 2wk -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to "BRAEEF S IEE18aH
profit or l0ss: EA
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations BT ERKRENEE 16.33 46.48
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value AT A EBEZBA
through other comprehensive income Hit2El=memEE
AT(EE) 3.20 247.31
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJEEERT DB EE B -
Exchange differences arising on translation HMEESMEY Z5E 27.67 9.53
Cash flow hedging WEmEE (0.77) 14.72
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax ~ 4F A £ fth & ULz TR B S i 46.43 318.03
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EWRZEE 3,548.02 2,946.04
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: ATATEEFRAEZEKERE
Owners of the Company VN/NET ]S 3,348.62 2,856.27
Non-controlling interests FEERR R A 199.40 89.77
3,548.02 2,946.04
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —EER(ARED) 187.22 145.38
— Diluted (RMB cents) —EE(AREH) 186.09 144.55
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Revenue A

Our revenue increased by 13.67% from RMB32,043.31 million for the year AEBRABREEN02F12A3BILEFENARKE

ended 31 December 2022 to RMB36,423.24 million for the year ended 31 32,04331 BB LI NN13.67% 2 & £ 2023F 12 A31H ILF

December 2023, mainly because the increase of sales for the year. EMAREE36,42324B 87T TERANFEHEEA
Firsghn

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and TREH|AEEIZERREBEDHRA DT (EAL
business(in RMB millions): ARBEHET) :

Year ended 31 December 2023
BZ2023F12A31HILFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of

machinery auto parts

s

BUERTEEW 4

RMB millions RMB millions
ARMEERT AR¥EER ARKEBETT

Sales of auto parts RETEFRHEE - 17,462.84 17,462.84
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIER S BRI SHE 11,727.52 - 11,727.52
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $f#] 52 B 4th R 5 h U A 3,746.35 67.28 3,813.63
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery st Aic {4 10 5 & 2,536.59 - 2,536.59
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R Em e 593.65 - 593.65
Other revenue HEablg A 249.70 39.31 289.01

18,853.81 17,569.43 36,423.24

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE202F12A31BIEFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIRERE,  RERETEM #Et
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

AREBESET ARBBEST ARBBESTT

Sales of auto parts RETERHEE - 15,170.89 15,170.89
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TR BERSHE 9,239.80 - 9,239.80
Revenue from steel and other materials trading #f55 & £ b REHE S 89U A 4,330.81 74.77 4,405.58
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery B FE i AL - 8054 & 2,399.57 - 2,399.57
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R R EEE 636.78 - 636.78
Other revenue =N 150.35 40.34 190.69

16,757.31 15,286.00 32,043.31
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Cost of Sales

As the Group recorded an increase in our revenue, our cost of sales increased
by 11.43% from RMB25,644.60 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB28,575.29 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit increased by 22.65% from
RMB6,398.71 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB7,847.95
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The increase of gross profit during the year was primarily benefited from the fact
that the price of coal has remained high throughout the year, hence the demand
of coal mining machinery has been increased. The gross profit margin of the
coal mining machinery segment increased from 25.59% for the year ended 31
December 2022 to 26.76% for the year ended 31 December 2023. As of 31
December 2023, the gross profit margin of the auto parts segment of the Group
increased from 14.88% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 15.77% for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group increased from 19.97%
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 21.55% for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 3.29% from RMB476.43 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to RMB492.12 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, mainly because the Group gained more government grants
and interest income.

Other Losses, Net

Our other losses, net decreased by 89.00% from a loss of RMB120.03 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to a loss of RMB13.20 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, primarily as a result of the decrease on
impairment of goodwill.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 39.04% from RMB831.59
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB1,156.27 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, which aligned with the increase of revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 11.80% from RMB1,072.97 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB1,199.59 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, mainly due to the increase of service expenditure.

BIMEERMEBR N AR AR 2023551

Pkl
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Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs increased by 12.87% from RMB3,117.88 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to RMB3,519.01 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic
salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating
results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees.
The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as
the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and reasonable
allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses increased by 13.15% from
RMB1,385.96 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB1,568.22
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, mainly due to more research
and development activities incurred from manufacture of coal mining machinery
segment during the year.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by 46.42% from RMB265.41 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB388.60 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, mainly due to the increase in borrowings during this year.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 33.27% from RMB3,090.08 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to RMB4,118.26 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense increased by 33.46% from RMB462.07 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB616.67 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, primarily as a result of the increase of production and sales.
Our effective tax rate increased to 14.97% for the year ended 31 December
2023 from 14.95% for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year
and the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 20.43% from
RMB2,946.04 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB3,548.02
million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 30.06% from RMB2,538.24 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to RMB3,301.33 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Trade and Other Receivables

As 31 December 2023, trade and other receivables amounted to approximately
RMB10,353.47 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB1,234.84 million as compared to RMB9,118.63 million as at the end of
2022, primarily due to the increase of revenue.

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net current assets were approximately
RMB17,330.88 million (31 December 2022: RMB14,613.54 million) and the
current ratio was 1.89 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 1.75).
The increase in current ratio was mainly attributable to the decrease in short-
term borrowings.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had RMB4,729.23 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.

BINR AR E D B PR A F] 20235 3

vk

DT R B

AR Ll STERZE - AR BIREERREF R E E20226F
12 A31 B IEFEH A RE2,538.24 5 & JTIE 1130.06% =
HE2023F12A31B L FEMARES301.335E T °

B 5 R EmBWRFIE

M2023F12A318 - ES R EMERFBESEHAAR
#510,353.47 A B JT * B2022F K ARKE9118.63E BT
I ARE123484B 87T EEHAURAEZ AR ©

REER2023F12A3BMRBEEFENAARKE
17,330.88 @ & 7T (20224E 12 A31H : AR#14613548
BJT) » Mr2023412 A31 B &Y ED R 51.89( 20224
12A318 1 1.75) « B E A FZHREHEER
DRTER

RERREAXH

HZE2023F12A31H - AEEHAHERESESEMA
RE4729238 &L - AEBRe MRS EEBYEER
RS RIRITIER

2023 2022

2023F 20224F

RMB miillions RMB millions

ARBEET AREBET

Net cash generated from operating activities KEEFNFTSIR G /FEE 4,450.07 2,429.20
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFTRIRES F5E (1,968.06) (3,543.68)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities BMEES(FR),FEIRe T8 (1,508.93) 1,475.60
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents He RIBSZEEYILINELE 973.08 361.12
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREHHF L 142.71 56.65
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M ATERNRE MRS EEY 3,613.44 3,195.67
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December B12A3THANR S RIS EEY 4,729.23 3,613.44

29



30

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Management Discussion and Analysis &% 8

Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2023 was RMB4,450.07 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB4,118.26 million,
primarily adjusted for: (i) finance cost of RMB388.60 million; (i) depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of RMB694.65 million, (iii) increase in inventories
of RMB1,419.67 million, (iv)increase in trade and other receivables of
RMB1,199.91 million, (v) increase in trade and other payables of RMB1,285.32
million, and (vi) decrease in notes receivable of RMB646,23 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2023 was RMB1,968.06 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB1,431.08 million for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment; (i) withdrawal of bank deposits with
original maturity over three months of RMB2,193.00 million; (i) payment
of RMB8,967.90 million for other financial assets, structured deposits and
certificate of deposit; (iv) proceeds of RMB8,295.09 million from other financial
assets and structured deposits; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of
RMB1,359.04 million; (vi) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB665.61
million; (vii) placement of bank deposits with original maturity over three months
and restricted cash of RMB1,511.74 million; and (viii) government grants related
to assets received of RMB88.48 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities in 2023 was RMB1,508.93 million,
primarily consisting of (i) net cash outflow from borrowing of RMB384.73
million; (i) cash inflow from contributing from non-controlling interests in the
amount of RMB544.92 million; (iii) cash outflow used in the dividends paid to
Company’s shareholders in the amount of RMB998.06 million; (iv) cash outflow
used in the lease payments in the amount of RMB242.14 million; and (v) cash
outflow used as paid interests in the amount of RMB343.01 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB1,530.27 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets.

REER)

F2023F - M EB TSRS I FEAARKE4450078
B BeRAXTZERERTEFAREL118268
B EZFRT  ()BERAARESS8.60EET ¢ (i)
Y BEMEETEARKEMEET - (ifFEE
IMARBE14967B & 7T © (VE 5 K E M FE U FRIEE N
ARBEIN1DQINEHERL - WE S REMERFIEL A
R#1,285.328 &7 - Mvi)EWKEER D AR 646,238
BT e

RERED

20235 - WEIEEIR &N HFRE A ARK1,968.06
B XEEE (BESYE  BERREMITA
R¥1431.08E &7 ; ()RBURE|EAE =@ A A LAYER
TEARARB21G60EET  (IXHEMEREE
HEREFERNFEARKSWB7IEET  (WEMAESH
BENMEBETHREHRIBEARES25.098ET (1)
TR BEFRITERAREE1,350.04H 87T ¢ V)IREE
EIRITFAARE665.61BETT & (Vi)fFRIREIER A
=AU ERMETFEREZRHIE S ARE1511.748
BT RVNBREBEENBITHEIARKES 488 E

BEEE

20234 - BB EBR & mLIFEAARK1,508938
BT FEEE (EENESFREARKIATIE
BT () FEERERLENBRESRAARKMINESE
T (AR ARRREL AR EATAR SR ARE
998.06E &L (WHEENFB R ARE242148 58
T RWBEENFIEMRERE ARKMIOEETT

BEAXXH

HZE2023F12A31HIEFE - AEERREEYWE - B
EREEARBEREENEARST T A ARE1530278

e —

HIT °



Management Discussion and Analysis & 1R E

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2023, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB543.86 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised
notes receivable at the end of each Reporting Period is as follows:

BINR AR E D B PR A F] 20235 3

vk

AERBAREE
AV

HE2023F12A31H » NEEBEREREBSEREYE - B
EREENEREESTHMEREEARKS43.868
BT

SRBIE

RAREE - AEEEEERRIEHERE TRKERE -
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R AREEEERKEERHBERFOTERT
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REREHR - NEEFTREEARNZESE MK EHER
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2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB millions RMB millions
AREBEET ARBEE&ET
Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse BBRENHAEBEESE
FEME & 1,765.77 1,922.51

During the year, the Group has derecognised certain trade receivables
without recourse which were transferred to banks, and the trade receivables
derecognised without recourse but not due as at 31 December 2023 amounting
to RMB258,653,000 (2022: RMB283,140,000).

TR AEEERIERCEE RTINS TEARE
B S RIGIE - AR B IEFER B RIEE 20235
12 431 B AR E AR & 5 FE R IE A R #258,653,0007T
(20224 : AR#283,140,0007T) °
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Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2023 (in RMB millions):

“EEERAE

BEM - ARKBSETT)

TREHIEZE2023F12 AN B A KB RBDEE R AER

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBEETT
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion BT EREWERIE  RBEY 21.83 50.96
Long-term receivables, current portion REAEUWIE » RENEE D 216.23 88.03
[nventories wE 9,296.61 7,909.82
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M EW IR 10,353.47 9,118.63
Transferred trade receivables BEEHNE 5 EUMGRIA 198.86 269.41
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AFER 2 AEEE R ABE
HNEmMEE 5,944.16 5,228.18
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive AT EE B S E T A HAM
income THKRENEREE 3,848.09 4,494.33
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMITA 33.87 4.89
Tax recoverable EEEE 31.97 19.15
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIELNENEE 91.07
Bank deposits RITIER 1,945.90 3,402.44
Cash and cash equivalents Ee RIREZEEY 4,729.23 3,613.44
36,711.29 34,199.28
GURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NhEAMmEMN A 12,916.36 11,480.60
Contract liabilities ARAE 4,174.25 3,748.35
Income tax liabilities FisfiaiE 244.61 115.21
Borrowings ==Y 1,143.51 3,237.23
Lease liabilities HEBE 145.31 146.26
Provisions Bt 532.11 571.28
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables BB 2ENE 5 ERGIE
BHENEE 212.81 269.41
Derivative financial instruments TAESRIA 11.45 17.40
19,380.41 19,585.74
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 17,330.88 14,613.54

HZE2023F12A318 - AEBERBEEFENAARE
17,330.88 8 & 7T (20224F12 A31H « AR#14613547
BIT)  MinB R A1.89(2022412A318 : 1.75) ° 7
R FAEEHAEHEERDTE -

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB17,330.88 million (31 December 2022: RMB14,613.54 million) and
current ratio of 1.89 (31 December 2022: 1.75). The increase in current ratio
was mainly attributable to the decrease in short-term borrowings.



Management Discussion and Analysis & 1R E

Working Capital and Indebtedness (Continued)

As of 31 December 2023, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was RMB7,303.24 million, of which RMB1,143.51 million are current portion (31
December 2022: outstanding borrowings was RMB7,549.97 million, of which
RMB3,237.23 million was current portion).

As of 31 December 2023, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB28,790.00 million. As of 31 December 2023,
approximately RMB20,327.85 million of our credit lines from various domestic
and foreign financial institutions remained unused.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Debt to capital ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities at the end of the
year by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2023, our debt to capital ratio was 126% (31 December
2022: 139%).

RN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20235 3%
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B ZE2023F 128310 - AEBERKEE R EA126%
(2022512 A31H : 139%) °

Liquidity Risk REBEERR
Weighted ~ On demand Total
aerage  orlessthan Imonthsto 1yearto 2yearsto undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months Tyear 2 years Syears  Over 5 years cashflows amount
RELH FHR
MEHINE  OWYER EARIE  1ERE FEE BiRE BeRens R
RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMB milions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions  RMB millions
AREBEL ARKBET ARERETL AREBEERL ARKEER AREEEL AREEER
The Group pin- 1|
As at 31 December 2023 2023127318
Non-derivative financial liailties HiteRas
Trade and other payables @cuding B 5 REMERFE
non-financial liabities) (MafEEeBER) 9,382.91 2,106.39 - - - 11,489.30 11,489.30
Liabilties associated with transfered  SF 2l B B IENFIE
irade receivables FENER 21281 - - - - 21281 21281
Borrowings T 2.83 817.56 509.12 311124 3,220.34 - 7,658.26 7,303.24
Lease liabiiies HEaE 2.86 97.67 229.88 295.78 73137 1,804.30 3,165.00 1.347.83
Derivative financil iabilties ITEeRERE
Not designated as hedging instuments 45 BRI E 820 325 - - - 1145 1145
10,519.15 2,848.64 340702 3,957.71 1,804.30 22,536.82 20,364.63
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loans receivable
from associates and a joint venture, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in
or entered into the contract with the banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of
the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see Note 33 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs
Accounting Standards for more quantitative information about the Group’s
interest risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, receivables, borrowings and
payables (collectively “Non-Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between United States
dollars (“USD”)/RMB, Euro (“EUR”)/RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)/RMB.
Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statement prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Group’s currency risk.
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EE - EEkSREEE

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (£&22), was born in May 1963 in Gongyi County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a professor-level senior engineer with
postgraduate qualifications. He graduated from China Institute of Mining and
Technology (7 Ef& 3£ £265%) (now known as China University of Mining and
Technology (F B A 3 A 22)), majoring in mechanical design, manufacture
and automation, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985.
He obtained a master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining
and Technology in December 2003, and a doctoral degree in economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (7 fH4 K 22) in December
2007. From July 1985 to May 1992, he served as a technician, a production
dispatcher and an engineer of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1992 to May 1993, he was the
manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station (Z5;28 4 0 75 88 4 & k).
From May 1993 to January 1998, he was the deputy plant manager and plant
manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From January 1998 to July 2000, he was the deputy plant manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he was the plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From
October 2002 to December 2008, he served as the chairman and general
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From July 2015 to
May 2020, he acted as the chairman of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. Since December 2008, he has been the chairman of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jiao Chengyao held 4,426,964 A
Shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.287% of all its A Shares
and approximately 0.248% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jia Hao (Z7%), was born in March 1970 with Han ethnicity. He holds
postgraduate qualification with a master’s degree, and is a native of Chongging.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical manufacturing technology and
equipment from University of Shanghai for Science and Technology in 1991,
and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from China Europe
International Business School in 2001. He successively served as an assistant
to the director of the sealing branch of Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical
Scientific Research Institute of China National Machinery Industry Corporation
(B £ [ 5 1 M TE L2 R/ 9TB), a sales manager of Parker Hannifin Motion
& Control (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (K52 ZEZREEDER LEER AR,
a standing deputy general manager of Shanghai Ziyan Mould Industry Co.,
Ltd. of Zijiang Group (()L&E LGRMEA T X AR AF), a general
manager of the investment department of Salim Wanye Group (China) Co.,
Lid. (=SB hEER (R ) AR F), the president of Shanghai Huili
Group Company Limited (-8B SEE AR A7) and the chairman of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd. (B ik & Bigk
WA A 7]). From March 2014 to February 2018, he was the deputy general
manager of the Company. From February 2018 to March 2021, he has been
the vice chairman and general manager of the Company. From March 2021 to
December 2023, he served as an employee director and the general manager
of the Company. Since December 2023, he has been an employee director,
vice chairman and the general manager of the Company. Since January 2021,
he has been concurrently serving as the chairman of Honggian Corporate
Management (Henan) Co., Ltd. (3Ask > 218 CrlEg) AR A ).

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jia Hao held 2,442,300 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.158% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.137% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Fu Zugang ({18 @), was born in November 1965 in Gong’an County,
Hubei. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with undergraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at Wuhan
Technology College (% T £p53) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (22 T A £)), majoring in casting, and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002
to December 2008, he was the chairman of the labour union, a director and a
deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and a deputy general
manager of the Company. From February 2015 to February 2018, he served
as the general manager of the Company. From February 2018 to December
2023, he was a director and the general manager of the coal mining machinery
segment of the Company; Since December 2023, he has been a director and
the secretary to the Party Committee of the coal mining machinery segment of
the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Zugang held 3,945,620 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.256% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.221% of all its Shares.

Mr. Meng Hechao (Z%#8), was born in April 1980 in Luohe, Henan. He
is a CPC member and a senior engineer with undergraduate qualifications.
Mr. Meng commenced his career in August 2004, from August 2004 to May
2010, he served as a technician of the oil tank sub-plant, a craftsman of
the technology and process department and an office director of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (renamed to Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited in 2008); from May 2010 to February 2014,
he served as a deputy director of the production and manufacturing department
of the Company; from February 2014 to February 2020, he served as the head
of the technology and process department of the Company; from February 2020
to April 2021, he served as the general manager of the oil tank company of
the Company, the executive director and general manager of the ZMJ Zhiding
Hydraulic Company Limited; from April 2021 to December 2023, he was the
deputy general manager of the coal mining machinery segment of the Company;
since December 2023, he has been a director of the Company; since January
2024, he has been the general manager of the coal mining machinery segment
of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Meng Hechao held 180,000 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.012% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.010% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Kaishun (Z=B3)ig), was born in December 1980 in Nanjing, Jiangsu. He
is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate qualifications. Mr.
Li commenced his career in May 2006 and served as workshop officer, head
of the technical department, production director, deputy general manager and
executive deputy general manager of ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng)
Co., Ltd.; from June 2018 to April 2021, he served as the general manager and
secretary to the Party Committee of ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng)
Co., Ltd.; from October 2020 to April 2021, he served as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company; from January 2021 to December 2021,
he served as the vice president of manufacturing support of ASIMCO (Beijing)
Limited. Since January 2022, he has been a director and the president of
ASIMCO (Beijing) Limited (renamed to ASIMCO (Nanjing) Limited in April 2023).
Since December 2023, he has been a director of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Li Kaishun held 150,000 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.010% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.008% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cui Kai (£8]l), was born in September 1974 in Jincheng City, Shanxi.
He holds postgraduate qualifications, CPC membership and the title of senior
economist. Mr. Cui graduated as a finance major from Henan University
of Economics and Law (ja] Fg BA AR B A A 22) with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1997, and as a finance major from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (4 g B & BUA A E) with a master’s degree in
economics in 2001. From August 1997 to August 2002, he worked for Henan
Provincial Investment Company (7] 9 & @& %% & 422 7)); from August 2002
to February 2006, he worked for Henan Venture Investment Co., LTD (;a]F &l
2 A AR D PR /A F); from February 2006 to September 2017, he worked
for Henan Investment Group Company Limited (r[Fa & & £ E AR A 7). He
served as the vice president of Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd (Al m3 & &
EIBAEE AT from September 2017 to December 2019. Since December
2019, Mr. Cui has become the general manager of Henan Asset Management
Co., Ltd. Since May 2018, he has also served as the chairman of Henan Asset
Fund Management Co., Ltd (AR & EE S E IR H R A 7). Since December
2020, Mr. Cui has also been the legal representative and general manager of
Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (3Aa¢ b2 (Afg) B
BR /2 &]). Since March 2021, Mr. Cui has been a non-executive director of the
Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yue Taiyu (£3=3), is a Han Chinese and was born in October 1971
in Feng County, Jiangsu. He holds CPC membership, is a graduate with a
bachelor degree, and obtained a master degree of engineering. He is of Chinese
nationality and holds the title of intermediate level engineer. Mr. Yue Taiyu
started his career in August 1996 and is currently the deputy general manager
of XCMG Basic Construction Machinery Division (4 1T ELif T 52 #4425 3£ 2F)
and the general manager of Xuzhou XCMG Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. (15
BIaeREBBARAT). Mr. Yue Taiyu served as a salesman, a designer of
the development department, and the deputy director of the production planning
department of mixing equipment factory of Xuzhou Engineering Machinery
Manufacturing Factory (%N Ti2# 4% 2058 8R), the deputy director of the
general office and the head of sales and reception department of the sales
management department of the marketing company of XCMG Group (2 L&
[#]), the director of the sales division and the reception division of the marketing
company, the director of the sales department of the road machinery branch
company and the deputy director of the high-tech products department of the
marketing company of Xuzhou Construction Machinery Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (R TI2H MR A% 15 B R A &), the director of the sales and
service department and Party branch secretary of the sales division, the assistant
to the general manager and director of the sales and service department, the
Party branch secretary of the sales division and deputy general manager of
Xuzhou XCMG Special Purpose Construction Machinery Co. Ltd. (&M% T
578 TRE MRS PR A 7)), the deputy general manager of XCMG Scraper
Machinery Division (4 T $# i@ #4455 2 1), the general manager of Xuzhou
XCMG Railway Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (&M% T8
B[R A7), the deputy general manager of XCMG Basic Construction
Machinery Division (& T Z:f% T #2# 4% 35 2£36), and the general manager
of Xuzhou XCMG Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. (/1% Tee R AR A
&l). Since August 2023, Mr. Yue has been a director of Honggian Enterprise
Management (Henan) Co., Ltd. (GAz>2E 12 (/) AR A R]); and since
September 2023, he has been a non-executive Director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (f28%), was born in September 1967. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a master’s degree in
business administration. Mr. Cheng served for SAIC VOLKSWAGEN as an
engineer in logistics and industrial engineering, head of the planning and
logistics department, head of the production planning department and head of
the product engineering department, and served at SAIC Motor as the general
manager of its technology and quality department, president of the engineering
academy, as well as general manager of the strategy and business planning
department and chief engineer. Mr. Cheng was also the chairman of SAIC
Silicon Valley Venture Capital (=55 A &% 1% & /2 7)), Dalian Sunrise Power
Company (Fuel Cell) (RiE#mRA R (#AELE ) ) and DIAS Automotive
Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (8l1/38 EFAMRAF), a director of SAIC
VOLKSWAGEN and SAIC GM, the vice president of China Society of Automotive
Engineers, the president of Shanghai Society of Automotive Engineers, an
independent non-executive director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, and
the partner and president of AGRC. Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director
and the general manager of Shanghai Shengshi Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. (EEF & E1E A 0B R A7), the chairman of Qingdao SunHydro
Group Co., Ltd., an independent director of Shanghai Carthane Co., Ltd. ()&
YL B RRHE AR5 B BR A 7)) (isted on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 603037), and a director of Shanghai ChipON Microelectronics Technology
Co., Ltd. Since October 2019, he has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Ji Feng (Z£2), was born in 1970. He is a certified public accountant
and a certified appraiser with a master’s degree in accounting. In July 1992,
he graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade (& #rB1 & £3F5%) (now
Jilin University of Finance and Economics) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In December 2010, he obtained a master’s degree in accounting
from the Business School of Jilin University. Since January 2002, he has been
a partner, a managing partner, and a quality control managing partner of Dahua
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership). From April 2020, he
has been an independent director of Beijing Tieke Shougang Railway-Tech Co.,
Ltd.. Since March 2021, he has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Fang Yuan (75%&), was born in 1977. He is qualified as a certified public
accountant in the PRC with a master’s degree in business administration. Mr.
Fang Yuan is the founding managing partner of Starquest Capital, a China-
based private equity investment firm with its investment strategies focused
on consumer, healthcare and technology sectors. Prior to founding Starquest
Capital in 2018, Mr. Fang Yuan served as the head of LGT Capital Partners
in China for 12 years. Before joining LGT Capital Partners in early 2007, Mr.
Fang Yuan worked for AXA Private Equity Group in Singapore, focusing on
fund investment and direct investment in the Pan-Asia region. Mr. Fang Yuan
has over 20 years’ experience in the financial sector. Mr. Fang Yuan holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, a MBA
degree from INSEAD Business School and an EMBA degree from Tsinghua
University PBC School of Finance. Since August 2020, Mr. Fang Yuan has been
an independent non-executive director of VCREDIT Holdings Limited (listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 2003.HK); since March 2021, he
has been an independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Yao Yanqiu (k& %K), was born in 1970. She is a second-grade lawyer
with a postgraduate degree in economics and law from the Law School of
Zhengzhou University. Ms. Yao holds qualification as an independent director of
a listed company recognized by the China Securities Regulatory Commission.
She has been engaged in the work of a lawyer since May 1994, and served as
a partner and director of Henan Asia Pacific People’s Law Firm (/] #8 35 A A
FREME 75 FT); since April 2017, she has been a senior partner of Shanghai
Hiways (Zhengzhou) Law Firm (-8 83k 3 (EB) 2RI 45 F). Since
December 2023, she has been an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. She served as a council of direct subordinate of Henan Provincial
Lawyers Association, a director of the civil law business committee of direct
subordinate of the Henan Provincial Lawyers Association, and a member of
the administrative law business committee of direct subordinate of the Henan
Provincial Lawyers Association; currently, she serves as a standing director of
the administrative law association of the Henan Provincial Law Society, and an
executive member of the real estate specialty committee of the Henan Provincial
Lawyers Association. She has extensive experience in corporate governance,
mergers and acquisitions of enterprises, real estate development, expropriation,
as well as administrative litigation.
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EE EERSAREERE

Supervisors

Mr. Liu Qiang (£J5%), was born in June 1969. He is a native of Yongcheng
City, Henan and a member of Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law and economics from Nankai University in 1990, a
master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University in 2004, and a Ph.D.
degree in economics from Henan University in 2009. From July 1990 to
November 2002, he worked at the Department of Audit of Henan Province;
from November 2002 to November 2012, he served as a full-time supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered
by Henan Provincial Government (A EE & EH AL EEES); from
November 2012 to December 2014, he served as a researcher of Economic
Cooperation Department (424 1Ez) of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government; since
December 2014, he has been the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of
the Company; from February 2015 to February 2018, he served as a director
of the Company. Since February 2018, he has been the chairman of the Labor
Union and the chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Liu Qiang held 11,500 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.0007% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.0006% of all the shares of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Xiangdong (f2#I3), was born in December 1973 in Qixian,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a political analyst with a master’s degree in
management. From September 1993 to July 1995, he studied at the History
Department of Shangqiu Teachers College (75 fr A6 = 25 B R} E24%). From
July 1995 to September 2000, he was a staff member of the Office of the
Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu (7 = )& /@i A =). From September
2000 to December 2002, he was a deputy director of the Office of the Party
Committee of the Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu. From December 2002
to June 2008, he was a deputy director of the Office of Shanggiu Material
Circulation Centre (F& = & i@ O A =) (during which, he studied
at Zhengzhou University with undergraduate qualifications from September
1996 to June 2000, majoring in administration management). From June 2008
to August 2008, he worked at the human resources department of Yongcheng
Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd. From August 2008 to December 2009, he
worked at the Beijing Office of Yongcheng Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd.
From December 2009 to October 2010, he was a general manager assistant
and a sales director of Shangqiu Longyu Chemical Co., Ltd. From October
2010 to January 2011, he was a deputy general manager of Shanggiu Longyu
Chemical Co., Ltd. From January 2011 to September 2013, he was a director
of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary Commission (48 ZZ={FadE
Z) of Henan Coal Chemical Industry Group. From September 2013 to August
2015, he was a director of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Energy and Chemical Industry Group (during which, he
enrolled in EMBA studies at Beijing Jiaotong University from December 2012
to January 2015 and obtained a master’s degree in management). From
August 2015 to November 2017, he was a director of the Case Supervision
Office of the Disciplinary Commission, a member of the Party Committee and
the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Sales Company of Henan
Energy and Chemical Industry Group. From November 2017 to May 2020, he
was a member of the Party Committee and the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. From May 2020 to
January 2024, he was a member of the Party Committee, the secretary to the
Disciplinary Commission, and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (currently Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment
Co., Ltd. (AFE B EAE L R EIREBRAR]). Since February 2022,
he has been an executive director of Henan Equipment Investment New Energy
Co., Ltd. Since June 2022, he has been a supervisor of Henan State-owned
Capital Operation Group Co., Ltd. Since February 2024, he has been a director
of Henan Zhongyu Gelin New Energy Co., Ltd. Since March 2021, he has been
a shareholder representative supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Zhu Yuan (%2 Bg), was born in July 1994 in Zhongxiang, Hubei, with a
postgraduate degree. She graduated from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in June 2018 with a master’s degree in finance. She has been
working with the Company since July 2018. She served as an investment
manager in the strategic development department. Since January 2024, she
has been the deputy head of the strategic development and Investment division
of the Company.
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EX EERESNEEE

Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (&%) is a general manager of the Company. Please refer to
“Directors” of this section for his biography.

Mr. Fu Qi ({33), was born in November 1969 in Biyang, Henan. He is a
member of the Chinese Communist Party and a senior engineer. He is a deputy
general manager of the Company. From September 1988 to July 1992, he
studied at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical
design and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section
member of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December
1996, he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first
development division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he
was a section officer and the deputy head of the sales planning division, the
deputy head of the marketing department, and the deputy head of the sub —
plant of installation of the Company. From January 2006 to March 2008, he
was the head of the production and manufactory department of the Company.
From March 2008 to April 2010, he was the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading Co., Ltd. From April 2010 to
February 2012, he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee
of Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been
the deputy general manager of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Qi held 846,200 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.055% of all the A shares of the
Company and approximately 0.047% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Haibin (5&3&3#), was born in September 1981 in Xinmi, Henan
and is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in
July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general
office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief
secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March 2010,
he was the chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From March
2010 to September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the general
office of the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he served as
the deputy head of capital operation department and representative for securities
affairs of the Company. From January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head
of general office, head of capital operation department and representative for
securities affairs of the Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was the
head of division of party and masses’ affairs. From February 2015 to February
2018, he has been the deputy general manager and the board secretary of the
Company. From July 2017 to February 2018, he has concurrently been the
chief financial officer of the Company. From February 2018 to December 2023,
he has been the board secretary of the Company. Since December 2023, he
has been the deputy general manager of the Company. Since January 2021,
he has also served as the director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan)
Limited (A= > 2B 12 OlE) AR A F).

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Haibin held 846,200 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.055% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.047% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Huang Hua (F1¢), was born in January 1969 in Zhongshan, Guangdong.
She is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) and an engineer. She is the chief
financial officer of the Company. In July 1987, she graduated from Central
South University majoring in metal physics and obtained a bachelor’s degree
in science. In August 1990, she obtained a master’s degree in engineering
majoring in inorganic non-metal materials granted by the Institution of Metal
Research under Chinese Academy of Sciences. In December 2000, she
obtained a master of business administration (MBA) degree from China
Europe International Business School. From August 1990 to November 1991,
she served as an assistant researcher at the Institution of Metal Research
(Shenyang) under Chinese Academy of Sciences. From December 1991 to
April 1999, she served as the plant manager of sub-plant, manager of the
corporate management department, chief engineer and assistant general
manager of Shenzhen Jinke Special Materials Co., Ltd. From September 2000
to May 2001, she served as a senior project manager at the capital operation
department of China Online (Bermuda) Company Limited (£ (B &
X) BFEAF]). From August 2001 to July 2003, she served as investment
manager of Shenzhen Innovation Centre Co., Ltd. (EYIBIFRIEE AR A
&]). From August 2003 to March 2005, she served as the general manager and
director of Shenyang Jinchangpu New Materials Company Limited (&F54 &
L ATEIE R A 7). From May 2005 to December 2006, she served as the
general manager of Jinco Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. From January 2007 to
June 2008, she served as a project manager and senior analyst at VALE INCO
LIMITED (formerly the headquarters of Inco Ltd. (1 £ A B2 48 222 7])). From
July 2008 to September 2017, she served as the treasurer and risk officer
of Vale Minerals (China) Co. Ltd. (%7K A EE @ EBR A F). From
October 2017 to February 2018, she has been the consultant for the acquisition
of Bosch by the Company. Since February 2018, she has served as the chief
financial officer of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Huang Hua held 846,200 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.055% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.047% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Wang Yonggqiang (E 7k &), was born in September 1971 in Hebei. He
is a member of the Chinese Communist Party, and graduated from Zhengzhou
University and obtained a master’s degree in mechanical engineering. From
August 1993 to February 2014, he has successively served as an engineer
and director of the technical department in the hydraulic branch of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory, deputy director and director of Zhengzhou
Hengda Hydraulic Engineering Center, and general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Hydraulic and Electric Control Co., Ltd. From February 2014
to February 2015, he was the head of human resources department of the
Company. From February 2015 to February 2018, he was the deputy general
manager of the Company. From March 2018 to December 2023, he has been
the assistant to the general manager, the chief engineer, the deputy general
manager and the chief engineer of the coal mining machinery segment of the
Company. Since December 2023, he has been the deputy general manager of
the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang Yonggiang held 180,300 A
shares of the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.012% of all the
A shares of the Company and approximately 0.010% of all the shares of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang Yichen (3% 3 /), was born in April 1986 in Xiangcheng City,
Henan. He is a member of the Chinese Communist Party with Chinese nationality
and no the right of abode in any foreign nations. He is a university graduate
with a bachelor degree. He graduated from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in July 2009. From July 2009 to January 2016, he served as an
office secretary, a member of the capital operation department, an assistant
to the head of the general office and an assistant to the head of the strategic
development division of the Company. From February 2016 to February 2020,
he served as the deputy head (person in charge) of the strategic development
division of the Company. From August 2016 to February 2018, he concurrently
served as the deputy head of general office of the Company. From February
2018 to March 2021, he served as the employee supervisor of the Company.
Since February 2020, he has served as the head of the strategic development
division of the Company. Since December 2023, he has been the secretary
to the Board of the Company. Since March 2016, he has been concurrently
serving as the chairman of the supervisory committee of Zhengzhou Suda
Industry Machinery Service Co., Ltd.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Yichen held 112,700 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.007% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.006% of all the shares of the Company.
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Company Secretaries

Mr. Zhang Yichen is the company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (BR#EZE), aged 48, is the joint company secretary.
Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited. She has over 20 years of professional experience in handling
the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters for listed
companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally well-
known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan holds
a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. She is
also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential to the development of the Group and can safeguard and
enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the requirements in
the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix C1 (former Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Culture

Corporate culture is crucial to the company. With the development concept
of “technology changes the world, intelligence leads the future”, the vision of
“becoming a high-end intelligent equipment industry group with international
influence”, the values of “customer first, employee fulfilment, diligent struggle,
openness and innovation”, the Company has been practising corporate culture
in the course of its business development, and will continue to build and
consolidate its corporate culture.

For details of the Company’s corporate culture practices, please refer to the
2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four Board committees, namely,
the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee. These Board committees are assigned respective
responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e 1o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors five days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in
case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone
or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener explains at the
meeting. A written notice of meeting shall at least include the business to be
considered and the meeting information as necessary for the Directors to vote.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is concluded. The participating Directors shall
sign the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorise them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.

EFUAARRETOEEAME - HWEE D I
AR -

o FIERBHAARABNEEEBRRRER

o M REFREERSNEEABNEIIRFEEE
R

o A NESEARREETERNMEEREEAK
REER

o HIE *ﬁﬁﬁ&%%@%&%%ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁﬂ”&éﬁ?

fmg)

o MIARREFEEEATRNERRERRRF
#E%WE’]BZ%"

BE5eE E?:Q\E%EJE/ Hew ANEBF—X 8

RBREEE Q%Emkﬂ PERNESENES
BEHE iLﬂ FEAHANER2E - BRERS
EHEHE  BRERERATHRAEIMBANEZEES
ME=E - - AREZSREEE  BReZ4MIARE
HBANEREENES - FRER  FEBRARNE=R
Q%ﬁgﬁm AR BB E A OBy B

B BERARANEESHELIELFR - EHEHBE
ﬂ%WeéQ@%ﬁ%um$E&%$%£%MM%A
BMHERR

PN

EENEZERRRRBFTRMIENEREEHER
0 NMEHZIBRBETERAME S IEREEMES
TTRERORHE

EEQORERE  ERAEREANLGESHTEN
%ﬂ?ﬂ&?” REr2BEE  VREESFREER -
ERAWVERERSF A - BHEEEREREKRELA
ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁt’jﬁf@;%ﬁ’]%%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬂﬁ?&
TETHER EBHERLRHIAELHETRAER
B - AIAMERTRIELEMEHA - HER - B8 kKM
FEEBEPITRE - ] AR AFRERA -



Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board convened 15 meetings in total, one on
each of 1 February 2023, 21 February 2023, 29 March 2023, 18 April 2023,
26 April 2023, 22 May 2023, 9 June 2023, 3 July 2023, 31 July 2023, 22
August 2023, 28 August 2023, 30 October 2023, 15 November 2023, 15
December 2023 and 29 December 2023.

Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as
follows:

Number of
Board meetings
attended
Name of Directors in person
ESftg ELEEZENE
Mr. Jiao Chengyao ERERE 15
Mr. Jia Hao BERE 15
Mr. Fu Zugang EmEE 15
Mr. Meng Hechao hEBEE
(Appointed on 15 December 2023) (RABF12A1SBEET) 2
M. Li Kaishun ZRIBL A
(Appointed on 15 December 2023) (RABF12A1SBEET) 2
Mr. Cui Kai gt 15
M. Yue Taiyu ERFEE
(Appointed on 25 September 2023) (RABFIABARES) 4
Mr. Cheng Jinglei BEZLE 15
Mr. Ji Feng Flhk 15
Mr. Fang Yuan RERE 19
M. Yao Yangiu ittt
(Appointed on 15 December 2023) (RABF12A1BEET) 2
M. Xiang Jiayu MFEREE
(Resignation effective from 4 June 2023) (FA2023F6 R4 HBET) 6
M. Fei Guangsheng BEBEE
(Resignation effective from 10 August 2023) (F2003F8A10BRHT) 9
Mr. Wang Xinying THeEE
(Resignation effective from 15 December 2023) (202312 B 15RBET) 13
Ms. Guo Wenging dxant
(Resignation effective from 15 December 2023) (202312 B 15RBET) 13
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BEMNESROEMARRT SEMNEELSEAT ¢
Number of Number of
Board meetings  Board meetings Number of
required to be attended  Board meetings
attended by proxy notattended  Attendance rate
BELERY  ETHERY RERE HEE
15 0 0 100%
15 0 0 100%
15 0 0 100%
2 0 0 100%
2 0 0 100%
15 0 0 100%
4 0 0 100%
15 0 0 100%
15 0 0 100%
15 0 0 100%
2 0 0 100%
6 0 0 100%
9 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
13 0 0 100%
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Board of Directors (Continued)
General Meetings

During the reporting period, the Company convened a total of four general
meetings, which was attended by some of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as
follows:

2023 First

2022 Annual  Extraordinary

General General

Name of Directors Meeting Meeting

ANE 2235

g E-RER

BEfZ BEAE BEAE

. Jiao Chengyao e V /

Mr. Jia Hao BELE / /

M. Fu Zugang TR EE / /

Mr. Meng Hechao (Appointed on REBE A (0235 N/A N/A

15 December 2029) 12R15BER(T) TEA TER

Mr. Li Kaishun (Appointed on THIERA (120235 NIA NIA

15 December 2023) 12R15BER(T) TEA TER

Mr. Cui Kai Edlxs | |

Mr. Yue Taiyu (Appointed on ERTFRA(R023% NIA NIA

25 September 2023) 9A%BAEZR() TEm TiEf

Mr, Cheng Jingle BEIAE / /

M. Ji Feng ES PR / /

Mr. Fang Yuan FERE / /

Ms. Yao Yangu (Appointed on kst (50235 NIA NIA

15 December 2023) 12R15BER(T) TEA TER

M. Xiang Jiayu (Resignation MRS A (20235 / N/A

effective from 4 June 2023) BALABT) il

Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Resignation BREBLAE(R03F / NIA

effective from 10 August 2023) 8A10EET) il

Mr. Wang Xinying (Resignation TR A (0235 /
effective from 15 December 2023) 128158 8T)

Ms. Guo Wenging (Resignation BRELL(R023%F | /

effective from 15 December 2023) 1281588T)

{0
N
WEHN  AATHBRTIABEAS  BHES

EERARERARLRTREAS - LT AEEHA
BEARER

2023 Second 2023 Third
Extraordinary  Extraordinary

General General Attendance Actual Attendance
Meeting Meeting required attendance rate
ABE ABE

E-RER ESRBR
BRAE BRRAE  EHERE BREEIR hEE

| | 4 4 100%
| | 4 4 100%
| | 4 4 100%
/A | 1 1 100%
TER
/A | 1 1 100%
TER
| | 4 4 100%
/A | 1 1 100%
TER
| | 4 4 100%
| | 4 4 100%
| | 4 4 100%
/A | 1 1 100%
TER
/A /A 1 1 100%
Gl Gyl
/A /A 1 1 100%
Gl Gyl
| | 4 3 75%
| | 4 4 100%




Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, from 1 January 2023 to 4 June 2023, the Board
consisted of eleven Directors, comprising five executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors; from 5 June
2023 to 10 August 2023, the Board consisted of ten Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors; from 11 August 2023 to 24 September 2023, the Board
consisted of nine Directors, comprising four executive Directors, one non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors; from 25
September 2023 to 14 December 2023, the Board consisted of ten Directors,
comprising four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors; from 15 December 2023 to the date of
this annual report, the Board consisted of eleven Directors, comprising five
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors. One-third or more of the members of the Board of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors.

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors possess extensive
experience in equipment manufacturing industry, and the independent non-
executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications in law and
accounting as well as financial management expertise. In accordance with the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in
all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period and the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao (Vice Chairman),
Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Meng Hechao and Mr. Li Kaishun.

Non-executive Directors: Mr. Cui Kai, Mr. Yue Taiyu.

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Cheng Jinglei, Mr. Ji Feng, Mr. Fang
Yuan and Ms. Yao Yanqiu.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board of the Company has, at all times, complied with the requirements
under the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors (accounting for more than one-third of the number of
Directors), one of whom shall possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management knowledge.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the
Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The Company recognises that the independence of the Board is pivotal in good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. The Board has established a
mechanism to ensure that the independent views and opinions of any Director
of the Company can be communicated to the Board, including but not limited to
reviewing from time to time that independent non-executive Directors possess
appropriate qualifications and professional skills and have devoted sufficient
time to the Group, the number of independent non-executive Directors has
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and channels have been
established to assess the contributions and opinions of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
the relevant mechanism each year.

During the reporting period, the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations, the Company’s
Articles of Association, the relevant rules of procedure and the provisions of
the Company’s independent Director system, adhered to the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors, performed supervisory functions,
participated in the making of various major decisions and the review of
regular reports, financial reports and related-party transactions, and played an
important role in the Company’s standardized operation, thereby safeguarding
the legitimate rights and interests of minority shareholders.

Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.
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Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph D.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix C1 (former Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules, the
Board has established a risk management and internal control system, and
has continuously supervised and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s
operation. The system is aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks
of failure to achieve business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient
operation, and offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the
financial reports and compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and
safeguarding the Group’s assets.

Structure of Risk Management and Internal Control
Functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organisational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the management of the
Company, the Audit and Legal Department, the Risk Management Department
and various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance of
the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and
makes recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit and Legal
Department and the Risk Management Department of the Company conducts
internal audit and supervision for risk management, and is responsible to the
management of the Company. As the first line of defence in risk management
and internal control, various departments of the Company organise and carry out
the daily work in risk management and accept the organisation, coordination,
guidance and supervision by the management, the Audit and Legal Department
and the Risk Management Department of the Company in doing their part of risk
management and internal control in their respective professional areas.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Commencement of Risk Management Work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system and
internal control structure. During the Review Period, based on the methodology
of risk management covering risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganised and identified the
possible risks from different aspects, such as strategy, operation, finance,
market, law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database that was
unique to the Company.

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with.
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.

The Risk Management Department of the Company is responsible for internal
audit in risk management. By organising and commencing the supervision
and assessment of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company
continuously monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes
in risks in the course of operation and management of each responsible
department for risks, supervises and assesses whether each department is
able to commence risk management work in accordance with the relevant
regulations and the results of the work, and makes recommendations on
improving the effectiveness of implementing risk management work.
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Internal Control (continued)
Operation of the Internal Control System

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterised by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 28 March 2024. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2023 indicated no control failure
for major risks in the Company and revealed no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
elected or replaced at the shareholders’ general meeting and can be removed
from their office prior to the expiry of their term by the general meeting, with a
term of 3 years. At the expiry of such term of office, the term is renewable upon
re-election.

Employee representatives in the Board shall be elected or removed at employee
representatives’ general meetings, employees’ general meetings or other
democratic elections.

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.

The Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be
improved and updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the
Directors by seminars and provision of training information.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all the Directors had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 to 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018 and from 18 July 2018
to 17 July 2019. At the annual general meeting held on 20 June 2019, the
Company resolved to take out an Liability Insurance plan at a total premium of
not more than US$10 million, the Liability Insurance covered the periods from
18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020, from 18 July 2020 to 17 July 2021 and from
18 July 2021 to 17 July 2022. At the annual general meeting held on 30 May
2022, the Company resolved to take out a Liability Insurance plan at a total
premium of not more than US$10 million, the Liability Insurance covered the
period from 18 July 2022 to 17 July 2023 and from 18 July 2023 to 17 July
2024.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Gode”) set out in Appendix C3 (former
Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors,
who have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code during the Review
Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle
of combining incentives and disciplines, and market-oriented adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Board Committees

During the Review Period, the Board has set up four committees, namely,
the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code. These Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference. The composition and main functions of these committees and their
work during the Review Period are set out as follows:

Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy and
Sustainable Development Committee comprised Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman),
Mr. Jia Hao, Mr. Fu Zugang, Mr. Yue Taiyu and Mr. Cheng Jinglei.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy and Sustainable Development
Committee are:

() to study the long-term development strategies and key investment
decisions of the Company and table proposals;

(i) to study and table proposals on major investment and financing plans that
are required to be approved by the Board of Directors under the “Articles
of Association”;

(i to study and table proposals on major capital operation and asset
management projects that are required to be approved by the Board of
Directors under the “Articles of Association”;

(iv) to study and table proposals on other major matters affecting the
development of the Company;

(v)  to conduct inspections on the implementation of the above matters;

(vi) to study and table proposals on the Company’s sustainable development
strategies, plans and programmes, and to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities regarding sustainable development management; and

(vii) exercising other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

The Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee did not convene any
meeting during the year.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Cui Kai and
Ms. Yao Yangiu. The Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive Director and comprises a majority of independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are
to review and supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing work,
including:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vi)

(v

proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors;

supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports
and accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding
financial reporting as stated in financial statements and reports;

coordinating the communication between our internal Audit Department
and the independent auditors;

reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure of such
information;

reviewing the Company’s internal control system and auditing on the
material connected or related party transactions;

reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems and to evaluate whether there is material failure or
weakness in the risk management and internal control of the Company;

discussing the risk management and internal control system with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
establish such effective systems;

researching on major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters and the management’s response to these findings
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative;

evaluating the changes in the nature and extent of significance of the
material risks the Company faces after the previous year and its ability
to respond to the changes in the business and the changes in external
environment; and

exercising other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (Gontinued)

During the Review Period, the Audit and Risk Management Committee convened
five meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1)

On 26 March 2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2023, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on 2022 Audited Domestic
and Overseas Financial Report of the Company, the Proposal on 2022
Annual Report and Summary of the Company, the Proposal on the 2022
Report on Internal Control Assessment of the Company, the Proposal
on the 2022 Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee of the Board of the Company, the Proposal on
the Reappointment of External Audit Institution and Internal Control Audit
Institution for 2023, the Proposal on the Provision for Impairment of asset,
the Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in 2022
and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in 2023;

On 26 April 2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2023, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2023 First Quarterly Report
of the Company;

On 27 August 2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its third meeting in 2023, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on 2023 Interim Report of the
Company;

On 30 October 2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its fourth meeting in 2023, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2023 Third Quarterly Report
of the Company;

On 29 December 2023, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of
the sixth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2023, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on Appointing the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised Ms. Yao Yanqiu (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao and Mr. Cheng Jinglei. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director and
is composed of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to:

U

(i)

(i)

(i)

(vii

advise on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the
position of the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding
structure;

formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the
Company’s Directors and management personnel;

search for qualified candidates of Directors and management personnel;

review the qualifications and other credentials of the candidates of
Directors and management personnel;

assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

make recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the
Company’s Directors; and

exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee convened three meetings,
with full attendance of the entire committee:

0

On 22 August 2023, the Nomination Committee of the fifth session of
the Board convened its first meeting in 2023, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Nominating Candidates for Non-independent
Directors;

On 15 November 2023, the Nomination Committee of the fifth session of
the Board convened its second meeting in 2023, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on Nominating Candidates for Non-independent
Directors of the Sixth Session of the Board and the Proposal on Nominating
Candidates for Independent Directors of the Sixth Session of the Board;

On 29 December 2023, the Nomination Committee of the sixth session
of the Board convened its first meeting in 2023, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on the Appointment of the General Manager of
the Company, the Proposal on the Appointment of the Deputy General
Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and the Proposal on
the Appointment of the Secretary to the Board of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao and
Mr. Fang Yuan. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director and is composed of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to:

U

(i)

formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes for
the Company’s Directors and Senior management personnel;

evaluate the performance of the Company’s Directors and Senior
management personnel and assess the appropriate remuneration package
for such Directors and Senior management personnel;

supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and

exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
convened two meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1)

On 28 March 2023, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fifth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2023, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on Reviewing the Results of the
2022 Annual Performance Assessment of the Participants of the 2021
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, the Proposal on the Adjustment to
the repurchase price of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, the
Proposal on the Repurchase and cancellation of partially Restricted Shares
which are granted but not yet released under the 2021 Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme, the Proposal on Meeting the Unlocking Conditions
for the Second Unlocking Period of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme and the Proposal on the Adjustment to the exercise price of the
2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme;

On 29 December 2023, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the sixth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2023, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on Reviewing the Results of the
Annual Performance Assessment of the Participants for the Third Exercise
Period of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme, the Proposal on the
Adjustment to the List of Participants and the Number of Options under the
2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme and Cancellation of Certain Options
and the Proposal on Meeting the Conditions of Exercise for the Third
Exercise Period of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)
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Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

With a view to achieving sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and maintaining its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.

In order to implement the board diversity policy, the following measurable
objectives have been adopted: (i) the Company shall comply with the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the composition of the Board from
time to time; (ii) the number of independent non-executive Directors shall not
be less than three and one-third of the number of Board members; (i) at least
one Director shall possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (iv) at least one female Director.
The Board has achieved such measurable objectives for the year.
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Board Diversity Policy (continued)
Measurable Objectives (Continued)

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take, steps to promote
diversity in its workforce at all levels. All qualified employees shall have access
to equal employment, training and career development opportunities without
discrimination. During the year, female employees accounted for 24.66% of the
total number of employees of the Company. During the year, the training rate,
average number of training hours and employee turnover rate by gender are as
follows:

Indicator

bt

Training rate $EII =R
Male St

Female g

Average number of training hours EIF I8
Male S
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Employee turnover rate BIMRKALR
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Female g
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In order to promote the diversification of the Company’s management and
employees, the Company will give due consideration to increasing the proportion
of female members when selecting and recruiting employees. The Group is not
aware of any factors and conditions that would render gender diversity for all
employees (including senior management) more challenging or irrelevant.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively. The Company has not changed auditors in the
past three years. Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:
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Services rendered Fees
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(RMB’000)

(AR®T )

2023 annual audit 2023F [EHEIZ 16,396
Non-audit services B IRFE 2,613
Total et 19,009




Company Secretaries

The Joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Zhang Yichen (“Mr.
Zhang”) and Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”). Mr. Zhang also acts as the
Board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the Company and has
knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs. During the reporting period, the
company secretary of the Company was Mr. Zhang Haibin, who retired from his
office on 11 January 2024.

Pursuant to Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules, a listed issuer must appoint a
company secretary who satisfies the requirements under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules. Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules provides that a listed issuer must
appoint as its company secretary an individual who, in the opinion of the Stock
Exchange, is capable of discharging the functions of company secretary of
the listed issuer by virtue of his/her academic or professional qualifications or
relevant experience. Mr. Zhang currently does not possess the qualifications and
relevant experience as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. However,
given his experience in information disclosure, investor relations management
and corporate governance, coupled with his rich industry experience and
familiarity with the Company’s business operations, the Company has applied
to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted on 11 January
2024, a waiver (the “Waiver”) from strict compliance with the requirements
under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules for a period of three years
from the date of appointment of Mr. Zhang as a joint company secretary of the
Company (the “Waiver Period”), on the following conditions:

1. during the Waiver Period, Mr. Zhang will be assisted by another joint
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Chan, who serves as the other
joint company secretary of the Company and could fully comply with the
requirements set out in Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, in the performance
of his functions as a joint company secretary. The Waiver may be revoked
immediately if and when Ms. Chan ceases to provide assistance to Mr.
Zhang. The Stock Exchange may revoke or modify the Waiver if the
Company'’s situation changes; and

2. the Waiver could be revoked if there is a material breach of the Listing
Rules by the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Review Period, respectively.

BIMEERMEBR N AR AR 2023551

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

NCIEE

RABHERARWER ARSRAEE([REE]) RIRHE
E#rt((Hat]) - REEARRRAEZTGNE - 2K
NAIMEES AR EBEHEMRE - EHA
RABRBWEARGELE - FER2024F1A118
RIT -

RIE ETARBIESITIE - EWRITANEZEFE L
MR R38R E 2 A EIWE - EMARAISE3.2815R
E o EMBETANBEIBIMBEEEENEEER
SRS RRABRENEIT EMBIT AR RWERAE
ERIATARBIME « REEMARES EHHRAIFES.28
BERHERNBELE  BENMEEEE 1REEH
FERRARAEEIELRER - BFERENITEL
BWATEAR AR EBLE - BERIL - ARAEIE M
RATERE - BER2024F1 BN RESEB M E ([
Bl BRLEERZTARDGEEARWEZ B
REF=FHRER (MR ) Ei&E~F LR AIZE3.281F
NEBATIRHIAE « FHT

1. EHRRHIRN  RELKES —BARRHE B
EREZL(ERARB S (I FE AR WEL R =
2ME EMRAIESBEMEZIRE) MBIETH
i AR EREE - MRZ T T BmBRELR
ZE R ARRED - WARRNBERBAEL
B PRI RE RIS A ¢ K

2. WARARBREERETRA - ZHRAHHE -

SFOBIMST A KR R - 2R E IR
O SN

69



70

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information. The
Company formulated the “Investor Relations Management System of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd.”, which clarifies the communication
methods of shareholders and the organisation and implementation of investor
relations activities.

Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the website of the Company
(http://www.zmj.com). The means of communication between the Company and
the shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or seminars,
one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media interviews
and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

The Company publishes its solutions and products, market expansion
information and updates on its official website, so that investors can keep
abreast of the Company’s latest developments. At the same time, in order to
promote the communication between the Company and investors, the Company
will report the annual operating conditions and financial data and answer the
questions of investors and analysts in the form of results presentations. The
Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event of the
Company during the year, and the Directors and key senior management try
their best to attend and communicate with investors.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
investor relations policies. Taking into account the implementation of diversified
communication channels and participation channels, the Board believes that the
Company has properly implemented effective investor relations policies for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

REEBRRZ BRRNBERBRRAE

ARBEE - BRRAREBRMEREERERSE
BEIRT BAEBEBRENERNER - N2FS
ETCEMNEBEEMEERNARATREEBRER
HIE) - RHRREEN D A RREEBEEERER
B

ARANRERBEPEARKFHEQRENNESR
Mo NARIME B EZMB A GBI - BIEH AR
5 FR - AERBRE - S TYERRRETE
INA]FEANA B4 A2 B (http://www.zmj.com) ° ZKA B E2A%
FEBRNSRERRBERAREARS - DA A
g ¥ Bl BEH - B EREGSRE -
RIS LBIARFRE

ARBEB M EBMARBRAREESR - T5H
ROERE&MER - REEREE THRARRNER
B - AR REEARREREENER  ARRBE
BEEHASRRFELLIFAMPBEIE - BERE
ERDITENNERE - ARRRFERRARGRARAF
EAN—REREE  EFNEERMEEABHEE
HF o BUSEFREITION ©

EECERNARAREEHRBRENERBEARER
Mo KEREERELLLMERRERSHRT  EF
CREBZE2023F12A3ALLFE - ARIBEEEERE
RIS B E BRECE -



Shareholders’ Rights

According to the “Articles of Association”, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for over 90 consecutive days shall have
the right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Board and the Board of Supervisors to convene a meeting as
required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company, and any sum
so compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the Company to the
defaulting Directors.

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit a temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations department of the Company:

Strategic Development and Investment Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited

Address: No. 167, 9th Street,
Zhengzhou Section (Econ-Tech Development Zone) of
China (He'nan) Pilot Free Trade Zone, PRC
Telephone: (86 371) 6789 1199
Fax: (86 371) 6789 1000
Postal Code: 450016

Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the Review Period, the Articles of Association of the Company has
been revised twice. The amendments were considered and approved at the
Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2023 and the Third Extraordinary
General Meeting of 2023 held on 15 December 2023. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2023 and 15 November 2023
and the circulars of the Company dated 26 April 2023 and 28 November 2023
respectively for details.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth (the “Dividend Policy”).

In accordance with the “Articles of Association”, the Dividend Policy is as
follows:

() Profit distribution of the Company shall reflect reasonable investment
returns to the investors and, by giving considerations to the reasonable
capital demands of the Company, work out a profit distribution plan in
conformity with the sustainable development requirement and profit
optimisation principle of the Company by referring to factors such as the
size of share capital, development strategies, investment plans, profit
growth and cash flows.

() The Company may pay dividends in the form of cash or shares and may
conduct interim dividend distribution in the form of cash. If the cash flow
allows, profit distribution should be conducted in the form of cash dividend.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

()

The conditions of cash dividend of the Company: when the Company
records a profit for the year and the cumulative undistributed profit for the
year, after making up for losses in previous years and allocation to the
common reserve fund in accordance with laws, is positive in value, and
where the auditing firm issues an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
report of the Company for the year, the Company may prioritise distribution
of dividend in cash. If the Company distributes dividend in cash, it shall
follow the rules below:

1. If the Company is in a mature development stage without significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 80%;

2. If the Company is in a mature development stage with significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 40%;

3. If the Company is in a growth stage with significant capital
expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend in profit
distribution shall be 20%.

If it is difficult to determine the Company’s stage of development while
it has a significant capital expenditure plan, the profit distribution may
be dealt with pursuant to the rules applied in the previous distribution.
Major investment or significant cash expenditure refers to the proposed
external investment by the Company within the next twelve months,
asset acquisition (including land use rights) or facilities procurement with
accumulated expenditure amounting to or exceeding 10% of the latest
audited net assets of the Company.

Specific conditions for share dividend distribution: provided that the
Company’s business is in a sound condition and the reasonable scale
of share capital of the Company is ensured, and when the Board of the
Company believes the share dividend distribution will be in the interests of
all shareholders of the Company, the Company may propose to distribute
the share dividend and implement upon the consideration and approval at
the general meeting.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

)

(Vi)

(v

The profits of the Company to be distributed shall not go beyond the scope
of cumulative distributable profits.

When profits are recorded in the current year and after the Company has
sufficiently allocated to the statutory reserve fund, the cumulative profits
distributed in cash for the last three years shall not be less than 30% of
the average distributable profits realised for the last three years.

Where there is a change in the Company’s control resulting from securities
issuance, material asset reorganisation, merger, division or acquisition,
the Company shall disclose in details the cash dividend policy and relevant
arrangements after such offering, issuance, reorganisation or change in
the control, as well as the Board’s explanation of the aforesaid, in the
prospectus, offering proposal, material asset reorganisation report, report
of change of interest or acquisition report.

(VIll) On the premise that the returns to shareholders has been thoroughly

considered and the legitimate rights and interests of the public
shareholders are guaranteed, if the Company realises profits at the current
year, the Board of Directors shall bring forward scientific and reasonable
profit distribution suggestions and proposal and submit them to the
shareholders’ general meeting for voting. The Company shall practically
secure the right of public shareholders to attend the shareholders’
general meeting; and the Board of Directors, independent Directors and
shareholders meeting certain conditions may solicit the right to vote at the
shareholders’ general meeting from shareholders of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the
Company:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall devise a reasonable
dividend distribution recommendation and proposal based on the
profitability, capital requirements and shareholders’ returns plan of
the Company and implement after the consideration and approval
at the general meeting upon the consideration and approval by the
Board. Any adjustment thereof shall go through the procedures above
again. The independent Directors of the Company shall examine the
profit distribution proposal and issue independent opinions thereon;
independent Directors may solicit opinions of minority shareholders,
prepare a dividend distribution proposal and submit it directly to the
Board for consideration.

The Company shall strictly implement its cash dividend policy as
determined in the Articles of Association and the specific cash
dividend proposal as considered and approved at the general
meeting. If the Company needs to adjust or change the cash dividend
policy as determined in the Articles of Association, it is required to
satisfy the conditions under the Articles of Association and execute
appropriate decision-making procedures after substantiation. The
adjustment or changes shall be passed by shareholders representing
not less than two-thirds of voting rights held by all shareholders
present at the meeting; the independent Directors shall give
explicit opinion on matters such as the truthfulness, adequacy
and reasonableness of the reasons for adjustments and changes,
truthfulness and validity of the approval procedures as well as its
compliance with the conditions required in the Articles of Association,
and communicate and exchange ideas with minority shareholders
before the general meeting and give timely reply to issues that
concern minority shareholders. Independent Directors may collect
opinions from shareholders through the online voting system, if
necessary.

Specific conditions for the Company to adjust the cash dividend
policy: (1) the Company suffers from losses or has issued a loss
warning announcement; (2) the balance of cash, excluding cash
raised from capital markets and cash within special funding for
special purposes or special account management funding such as
government special financial funds (including bank deposits and
bonds with high liquidity), is not sufficient to pay the cash dividends
within two months from the date of general meeting approving the
profit distribution; (3) execution of the established dividend policy
will render it impossible for the material investment projects and
material transactions approved by the general meeting or the Board
to be implemented according to established transaction plans; (4)
the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that execution of the
established dividend policy will have a material adverse impact on the
continuing operation and profitability of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(X)  Mechanism for supervision and restraint on cash dividend

1.

The Board of Supervisors shall supervise the implementation of the
Company’s dividend distribution policy and shareholders’ returns
plan by the Board and the management, and the decision-making
procedures thereof;

The Board and the general meeting of the Company shall, in the
decision-making and substantiation process in respect of the
profit distribution policy, fully consider the opinions of independent
Directors and minority shareholders. When considering the specific
plan on cash dividend distribution in the general meeting, active
communication and exchange with shareholders, especially minority
shareholders, shall be conducted via different channels, including but
not limited to telephone, facsimile, e-mails, letters and the Internet,
to thoroughly listen to the views and needs of minority shareholders,
and reply to questions concerned by minority shareholders shall also
be made in a timely manner;

If profit is recorded but the Board of the Company does not put
forth a cash dividend distribution proposal, reasons therefor and
the capital retained by the Company that may otherwise be used as
dividends shall be disclosed in its periodic report, and independent
non-executive Directors shall express explicit independent opinions
thereon;

The Company shall fully disclose the formulation and execution
of the cash distribution policy in its periodic reports. The report
shall explain: whether the profit distribution is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association or with the general meeting
resolution; whether the standard and proportion of profit distribution
is precise and clear; whether the decision-making procedures and
mechanisms are adequate; whether the independent Directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities and played their role; whether
the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their
views and needs; whether the legitimate rights and interests of
minority shareholders are fully protected and so forth. In the event
that adjustment or change of the cash distribution policy is carried
out, full explanation shall also be given as to whether the conditions
and procedures for the adjustment or change are compliant and
transparent.
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Board of Supervisors
Composition of the Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed of
three members, two of whom were nominated by the shareholders and one was
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three
years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period and the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board of Supervisors were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong
and Ms. Zhu Yuan.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under
the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in that section, there is no other material relationship
among members of the Board of Supervisors.

Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the financial affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who
have violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for remedy in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by the Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
“Company Law”;
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)

Duties of the Board of Supervisors (Continued)

proposing motions to general meetings;

liaising with the Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal
proceedings against the Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the “Company Law”;

in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at
the expense of the Company;

reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation
report and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the
general meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a
certified public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such
documents if a suspicious item is identified;

exercising other duties and powers specified in the “Articles of Association”.

During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held twelve meetings in
total. Details of the meeting of the Board of Supervisors are set out under the
section “Report of the Board of Supervisors” of this annual report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEGHRES

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that had a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where it operates. The Group actively gives back
to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to striving for good
performance, with an aim to foster credibility and build a good corporate image.
Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and strives
to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources, reduces wastage, and advocates water and electricity conservation.

Business Review

Please refer to the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report. The sections of Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this Report of
the Board of Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the financial
position of the Group as at that date are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements on pages 124 to 279 of this annual report.

A relevant resolution was passed at a meeting of the Board held on 28 March
2024, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Dividend”)
of RMB8.40 (tax inclusive) per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December
2023. Based on the Company’s total share capital of 1,785,537,930 shares as
at 28 March 2024, the total dividend is RMB1,499,851,861.20. If the proposal
in relation to the profit distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2023
annual general meeting (the “2023 Annual General Meeting”),the final
Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or before 15 July
2024. The convening time of the 2023 annual general meeting and the relevant
arrangements will be announced by the Company in due course.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

Pursuant to the Rules for Share Repurchase of Listed Companies and other
relevant regulations, shares held in the designated repurchase account of a
listed company do not have the right to profit distribution. If during the period
from the date this profit distribution plan is considered and approved by the
Board to the record date for the implementation of profit distribution, there
is any change in the Company’s total share capital due to share repurchase/
repurchase and cancellation of shares granted under equity incentive, etc.,
or that part of the shares do not participate in this profit distribution for some
reasons, such as share repurchase, the proportion of distribution per share will
be adjusted base on the total share capital of the Company as at the record
date for the implementation of profit distribution in the future, less the shares
held in the designated repurchase account, and on the principle that the total
distribution amount remains unchanged. Details of the adjustment will be
announced separately by the Company.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (Fh#E A R £ FNE
EERTSFIE) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax
rate of the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares
registered under the name of a non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares
registered under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or
trustees, or other organisations and entities, shall be deemed as shares held
by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined under the “EIT Law”).
The Company will distribute the final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise
shareholders subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and
paid by the Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC and whose
name appears on the Company’s H Share register of members should deliver
a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited in
due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10% enterprise income
tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 ( € B8 7 B 75 3£ [1993]04555% 3 {4
RE L1 BB E A PRSHENE RIRE A AN ) (the “Notice”) issued by the
State Taxation Administration on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed
by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise, which has issued shares in
Hong Kong, to overseas resident individual shareholders is subject to individual
income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates for respective
overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending on the relevant
tax agreements between the countries of their residence and Mainland China.
Accordingly, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from the final Dividend
upon such Dividend payment to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose
names appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the
record date, unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation
agreements or the Notice.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identity of shareholders or any disputes over the
mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income tax rate of lower
than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the competent tax
authorities of the Company for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty
or may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent
tax authorities, the paid tax amount in excess of the tax payable based on the
tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Northbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of A Shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of
the Company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound
Trading”), the Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of
“Cash Dividends of H Shares for the Southbound Trading” ({;% J& @ HA% A%
IR S AT F)R 3 993 ) with China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited, pursuant to which, China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited or its branches, as the nominal investors of H
Shares for the Southbound Trading, will receive cash dividends distributed by
the Company and distribute the cash dividends to relevant investors of H Shares
of the Southbound Trading through its depository and clearing system.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading
(Continued)

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will be
paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the “Notice on the
Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect” (Cai Shui No. [2014]81) KB EEREN B R H EHE B
1 1) 5 B 7 A 0 AR 3R | 38 A ) (B 35 [2014]8155% ) and the “Notice
on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect” (Cai Shui No. [2016]127) K EEFNEBIRETH R 5
B Bk 5 5 e I S0 B A8 B MR R 0 8 RN ) (B 35 [2016]12755% ), for
dividends received by domestic individual investors from investing in H Shares
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the companies of
such H Shares shall withhold individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf
of the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment
funds from investing in shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that for individual investors. The
companies of such H Shares will not withhold the income tax of dividends for
domestic enterprise investors and such investors shall report and pay relevant
tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. Save as described in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the update on the use of proceeds
and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in relation to the proposed change
to the use of proceeds from H Share offering, the use of proceeds was in line
with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of the Company.

As of 31 December 2021, all the proceeds raised from H Share offering have
been used up.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 51 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2023, the reserves of the Company available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie amounted to approximately
RMB11,234,396,000 (2022: RMB8,773,959,000).

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2023, details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the “Articles of Association”
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Donations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made charitable and other
donations of a total amount of RMB1,424,920.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 280 of this annual report.

2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme

The establishment of the A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved by
shareholders at the Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, the First
A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and the First H Shareholders Class
Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the Share
Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of options to
the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company. Under the
plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain performance
standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the Board’s discretion and
no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company has provided RMB1,325,000 (2022: RMB7,116,000) in respect
of these options as share-based payment expenses in 2023.
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

The source of the underlying shares of the scheme shall be ordinary A Shares in
RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the participants.

2019 IR EHARE BB S 8l (o)

Zat B AN R ERIERAR AR EE BB REITH
AREAREBRRER -

2023 2022
20234 2022%F

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options

BHRE HHRE

HARERY AR

T EE HiEH A FEHTEE HAREE R
As at 1 January W1A1H 5.1501 5,800,600 5.5851 10,063,400
Granted during the year RERFETH = - - -
Exercised during the year RERTTE 45901 (891,000) 5.1501 (3,600,300)
Forfeited during the year RERZUL 4.5901 (576,640) 5.1501 (662,500)
As at 31 December M12A31H 4.5901 4,332,960 5.1501 5,800,600
Vested and exercisable M12H31H

at 31 December D EBNAFITE 4.5901 4,332,960 5.1501 891,000

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates

and exercise prices:

Share options
outstanding at

RERARITENRZAREA AT A RITHEE :

Share options
outstanding at

Exercise 31 December 31 December

Grant Date Expiry date price 2023 2022

20234 R20224F

12831H 12H31R8

ie AR AT BEHY A AR T A

RH B P TEE BREHARE % = At

04 November 2019 19 December 2022 4.5901 - -
201911 41 202212 A19H

04 November 2019 19 December 2023 4.5901 - 891,000
201911 41 202312 A19H

04 November 2019 19 December 2024 4.5901 4,332,960 4,909,600
201911 41 202412 A19H

Total 4,332,960 5,800,600

#Et
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period - 0.66 year
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2019 IR EHARE BB T 8l ()

Fair value of options granted () ERLHENQTE
The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year REZE2023F 12 A3 A L FERENHEN R T B
ended 31 December 2023 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair value at grant B E A EAB RN ARE0.497T ° %
date is independently determined using the adjusted Black-Scholes Model B BIRY A B T A AC M 2 B B AT (Black
which includes a Monte Carlo simulation model that takes into account Scholes)iB AU BE A T + ;2 RAVE A SR % (Monte
the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution (where Carlo)fR#8)% - BT REAENITEE - FH - &
material), the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the SEMFE(BEX) - IRIFH A EMARE KB
underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the risk free interest rate for MMTEEAER IR - TEERR S - EIEFHAN
the term of the option and the correlations and volatilities of the peer group mERR R - DA RIS E A TR BRI SRR IR o
companies.
The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31 December REZE2023F12 A31 A L FEE DR HEMNER &
2023 included: AEUEBIE
(@ options are granted for no consideration and vest based on @ HEARESRTIRERD - WAREA QS E201E
Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected companies LIETF AR EBEEEANGERR = FERER
over a three year period. Vested options are exercisable for a period B - ERBHENGBEMTHEAN TITE
of two years after vesting
(b) exercise price: RMB5.795 (the exercise price changed to RMB5.1501 (b) TTEE : ARES 79570 (2022 F G/ TEEE
per share in 2022) AAR¥E5.15017T)
(c) grant date: 4 November 2019 © RHEHBH 2019911 A48
(d) expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023 and 19 d Z/HIA : 2022912 8198 ~ 2023512 4198 &
December 2024 2024912 4198
(e) share price at grant date: RMBG6.05 per share € AELBHRE  SRRMNAREKG6.055T
(f)  expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: ARG ETEEERIKIE -
First phase 30.38% Second phase 29.93% Third phase 40.83%

£ —&E%30.38%
(g expected dividend yield: Nil

(h) risk-free interest rate:

58 [ E229.93%

6 =& B40.83%
(0 TEHIRRE MR « &

) R

Two years 2.8219% Three years 2.9280% Four years 3.0197%
M4 2.8219% =%2.9280% P943.0197%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
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2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a restricted
share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a total number
of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted to the selected 186
employees (including directors) of the Group (the “Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the date of
the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares to the date when
all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are unlocked or repurchased
and cancelled.

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to the
Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant and the
unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled to acquire
the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted shares after the
lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to the fulfilment of the
relevant conditions under the Scheme.

Upon expiry of the Lock-up Period, the Company shall proceed with unlocking
for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and the restricted
shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the Unlocking Conditions shall
be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price of RMB5.88 per
A share under the Scheme, and the amount of RMB248,724,000 cash received
from the Participants is recorded as trade and other payables. In 2022 and
2023, upon the first unlocking period and second unlocking period due, except
for some forfeited shares which were repurchased, the related repurchase
liabilities for these unlocked shares were derecognised. As at 31 December
2023, the remaining balance of repurchase liability is RMB52,427,000 (2022:
RMB118,198,000) recorded in trade and other payables (Note 31).

In 2023, the Company has provided RMB24,464,000 (2022: RMB84,743,000)
as share-based payment expenses in respect of these restricted shares.
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2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (Continued) 2021 FF PR & 14 B E B a8l (o)

The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares and ZEH B TR I AR R A AR R PR S B R K R HRARE AR bR
unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme are set out PRERREZHNTRAR

in the table below:

Unlocking
Arrangement of Unlocking Period  Unlocking duration percentage
ERRPREHA 2 HE R B PR £ B 9 7% Bk PR 5 EE 5
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date of 40%
Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of Grant
B — IR RBRIR & EA BETHEREAZHEERZZ BRERT ARAEAANNRE—ERZS
HEHILE
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of 30%
Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of Grant
5 IR FRBRER & EA BRTHEMEAZNEERZZ BRER T AEGEAANNRE—ERS
HEHILE
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of 30%
Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of Grant
= IR RBRIR & EA BRTHESBEAZNEERZZ BRERT ARSEAANNRE—ERZS
HEHILE
The restricted shares outstanding at the period end listed below: EAARBA TSN R B D REAT
2023 2022
20235 20224F
Number of Number of
restricted restricted
Issued price shares Issued price shares
BRIl 14 PR 11
BITERE FHE BITEE [ 1 gE|
Opening balance 1 January 1AV B8R4 5.88 24,648,000 5.88 42,300,000
Issued during the year REREETT 5.88 - 5.88 -
Forfeited during the year REREI 5.88 (1,728,000) 5.88 (848,000)
Unlocked during the year RE NG 5.88 (11,706,000) 5.88 (16,804,000)

Balance 31 December

12A31 A& 5.88 11,214,000 5.88 24,648,000
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Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 22.58% of the
Group’s total sales, less than 30%, while the sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 9.23% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 19.26% of the
Group’s total purchases, less than 30%, while the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 6.77% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, except for Henan State-owned Capital
Operation Group Co., Ltd. (which is a substantial shareholder that interested
in more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company), none of the
Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders who were interested
in more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company has any equity
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains ongoing and steady relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2023, details of movements in property,
plant and equipment during the year are set out in notes 16 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

In January 2023, pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme, the
Company processed the exercise of share options and the related registration
procedures of the exercised share options for 286 participants and issued
3,600,300 A shares at an exercise price of RMB5.1501 per A share.
Registration for the exercise has been completed at the Shanghai Branch of
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on 5 January
2023. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2023
for details.

In September 2023, as some of the participants had left the Company, passed
away, had changes in duties, or failed to meet the standards in their annual
appraisal results, all or some of the restricted shares granted to them no longer
met the unlocking conditions, the Company repurchased 1,728,000 Restricted
A Shares from 23 Participants under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme at an average price of RMB4.6751 per A Share and completed the
repurchase and cancellation procedures at the Shanghai Branch of China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on 8 September 2023.
Please refer to the announcement dated 5 September 2023 and the Next Day
Disclosure Return dated 11 September 2023 of the Company for details.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company (Continued)

In December 2023, pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme, the
Company processed the exercise of share options and the related registration
procedures of the exercised share options for 6 participants and issued
891,000 A shares at an exercise price of RMB4.5901 per A share. Registration
for the exercise has been completed at the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on 8 December 2023. Please refer
to the announcement and the Next Day Disclosure Return of the Company dated
11 December 2023 for details.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreement in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.

Material Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions under relevant accounting
standards, please refer to note 42 of this report. The Company confirms that the
related-party transactions were not categorised as the “connected transactions”
or the “continuing connected transactions” as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (as the case may be), and were in compliance with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected Transaction — Entering Into the Capital
Increase Agreement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2023, on
4 July 2023, ASIMCO Technologies (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. (S5} T 21y
(E ) BPRAT) (“ASIMCO”) entered into the capital increase agreement
with the Company, the Business Partners and the Strategic Investors (the
“Capital Increase Agreement”). Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement,
the business partners and the Strategic Investors will contribute a total of
RMB544.92 million to ASIMCO.

The amount of the capital increase under the Capital Increase Agreement
was jointly negotiated by the relevant parties of the capital increase based
on the appraisal value of all shareholders’ equity interest of ASIMCO as at 31
December 2022 of RMB3,419.54 million on normal commercial terms and
under the principles of willingness, fairness and impartiality, taking into account
the impact of profit distribution.

Prior to the entering into and implementation of the Capital Increase Agreement,
the Company held 100% equity interest in ASIMCO, and ASIMCO was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. After the Completion of the capital increase,
the Company holds 83.39% equity interest in ASIMCO, and ASIMCO is a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The entering into of the Capital
Increase Agreement and the transactions thereunder constitute a deemed
disposal under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transaction — Entering Into the Capital
Increase Agreement (Continued)

As Henan Hongsheng Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) (Ja] & J5A
AR A E S (BE4AE)) (‘Henan Hongsheng Fund”), one of the
Strategic Investors participating in the capital increase, is a fund under de facto
control of Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (I E EEEIEAR A 7))
(“Henan Asset”), a Shareholder of the Company, and Henan Asset is a person
acting in concert with Hongyi Investment Management (Henan) Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (3R EER (TR AELE(BERAE)), a
substantial Shareholder of the Company, Henan Hongsheng Fund constitutes a
connected person of the Company, and the entering into of the capital increase
agreement and the transactions thereunder constitute connected transactions of
the Company.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the capital increase agreement and the transactions thereunder
is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, they are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:
From 1 January 2023 to 4 June 2023:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)
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Directors and Supervisors (Continued)
Directors: (Continued)

From 5 June 2023 to 10 August 2023:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 11 August 2023 to 24 September 2023:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 25 September 2023 to 14 December 2023:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yue Taiyu (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 15 December 2023 to the date of this report:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Meng Hechao (Executive Director)

Mr. Li Kaishun (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yue Taiyu (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)
Ms. Yao Yangiu (Independent Non-executive Director)
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Directors and Supervisors (Continued)
Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:
From 1 January 2023 to 18 January 2023:

Mr. Liu Qiang (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong

Mr. Wang Yue

Mr. Zhang Yonglong

Mr. Zhang Minglin

Mr. Bao Xueliang

Mr. Cui Zonglin

From 19 January 2023 to 14 December 2023:

Mr. Liu Qiang (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong

Mr. Wang Yue

Mr. Zhang Minglin

Mr. Bao Xueliang

Mr. Cui Zonglin

From 15 December 2023 to the date of this report:

Mr. Liu Qiang (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong
Ms. Zhu Yuan

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 50 of this annual report.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix D2 (Former Appendix 16)
to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor
is or was materially interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review
Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to its business
and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially interested in any way,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” of this report, at no time during the Review Period were there
rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the “Securities and Futures
Ordinance” (the “SFQ”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:

Director/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of
Name Chief executive Nature of interest  shares

EE B/ &t/
A BRTHAS Bty gkl
Jiao Chengyao Director Beneficial owner A Share
EHE S BxEEA AR
Jia Hao Director/Chief executive  Beneficial owner A Share
b £ 5aTBAE ExBEAA Ak
Fu Zugang Director Beneficial owner A Share
18R S BxEEA AR
Meng Hechao Director Beneficial owner A Share
mE S BxEEA AR
Li Kaishun Director Beneficial owner A Share
FHIE = BaEBA A%
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share
205 EE BxEEA AR

ES EENESTRAERALQAR
HEBZENRSP 2 ERERKR

BEEA > R2023FE 128318 - ARRIEEE  BEF
RARRBHERITHABRAR B s HA(E A= (E
ERBEB(FHFLAEGRIN(BERBEMRHD]) M
1~ ARG REF TS EAIREGEF RS KRG
EXVEBET R 8D EBAANIE AN B K A T 2 Nk
B (RREEREGES MG DA B M E 1
LBREEEMNERRAR) - FIRBGESH RBEED)
EI521G&BH A ZIEBIFTa A B L MRS TOA R (BIE
FARIRCE S KA E 1GB1)M B BIE S & 1E SR (e
RS RAR) - KiRE FTR R RIZESTRIZANS
RNRBI R AT S AR ¢

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
the relevant the total  Long position/
Number of class number  Short position/
shares of capital % of shares %  Lending pool
EERRA
BRIM  EROAEN FR %R/
RAER BAEAL%  HHESH%  THEENREG
4,426,964 0.288 0.249  Long position
e
2,204,300 0.143 0.124  Long position
e
3,741,620 0.243 0.210  Long position
e
180,000 0.012 0.010  Long position
e
150,000 0.010 0.008  Long position
e
11,500 0.001 0.001  Long position
e
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EEEREE
Interests in Underlying Shares MHE R 7R
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Number of share the relevant class the total number
Name of Directors Nature of interest Class of shares options held of capital % of shares %
HEBRAEN R EEY
EENR EEME iang bl iR ESERE BABEIHE% BHABED Y%
Jia Hao Beneficial owner A Share 238,000 0.015 0.013
=¥ EnlEAA AR
Fu Zugang Beneficial owner A Share 204,000 0.013 0.011
[EiENE EnlEAA AR
Meng Hechao Beneficial owner A Share 51,000 0.003 0.003
H B EnlEAA AR
Li Kaishun Beneficial owner A Share 51,000 0.003 0.003
HIE EnlEAA AR
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the directors, B E X EESN - 12023512 A31H - AR FRIRE

the supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed to have); or were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of members of the Company
as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

= EERARARSTRABMERAR B HARAE
BoxE (EE R EEGEFMAEERMD) AL - Bk
MeEST - BAEAREGES LB RPDEXVERE
TRESDBAME RN R MR I ERSORR (B
MEBREANERIKR)  IRB(EFRAEK
1515 35215 BE A L IR Pl 0 B e M s SOA R
FRBE P ETARBAN LT AR EFETESFZHN
FESTAIBAE AR RIMBE R PrE0 s sk R o

BRREBERRAR

R2023F12A318 * AR AR B MATRR MR RFIS
o

Shareholders of A Shares ARS A% 58 32,024
Shareholders of H Shares HAS RS 3R 58
Total number of shareholders Pt 32,082
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members

kept by the Company:

Name

#a

Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.)

MEEAEERBRAR

Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership)®
RREEROTE)aBLE
( BREE)

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan
Provincial People’s Government®

MHEARBREEEEEEER
FE&0

Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group
Co., Ltd.®

MEEEEREEEEARARN
Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group
Investment Co., Ltd.?

MEEEEAERRERERR,

UBS Group AG.®

CGapacity/
Nature of interest

5t/ BEHE

Interest of beneficial
owner and party
acting in concert

ERBBEAR—H

TATRER

Beneficial owner

m}

EaEBA

Beneficial owner

aEBA

i

Beneficial owner/Interest

ina controlled
corporation

EafAAN/MRE

AL Lol S

Beneficial owner

m}

EaEEA

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REEZENER

Class of shares

el

A Share

AR

H Share
Hi%

A Share

AR

A Share

AR

A Share

AR

A Share

AR

H Share

Hiix

FERRRAEQTRERSG - HERSG
2%@&/*)5

BESA - PR2023F 128318 » THIRR(ESE - &
Bl mmTHA BBRIN RANA BRI B K A3 B AR
D BEERB(GES RS EHIDEXVEE2 M35 5 7E
MERQNBNERIOAR + FIRBGEF LA RG)DE
3BBIEERARREMBEFRE LM ERIORE -

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
the relevant the total  Long position/
Number of class number  Short position/
shares of shares % of shares %  Lending pool
ERRRA
At EROBEN FR %A/
RBHE BAEAL%  HAESH%  THELORSG
346,404,576 22.52 19.45  Long position
HE
8,645,200 3.55 0.49  Long position
e
277,195,419 18.02 15,56 Long position
HE
243,892,381 15.86 13.69  Long position
HE
243,892,381 15.86 13.69  Long position
HE
65,667,784 4.27 3.69  Long position
e
17,315,030 712 0.97  Long position




Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly holds 69,209,157 A Shares and
8,645,200 H Shares of the Company. Pursuant to Article 317(1)(a) of the SFO,
Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. is deemed a party acting in concert with Hong
Yi Investment Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership). Hence, Henan
Asset Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to own the same batch of 277,195,419 A
Shares of the Company directly held by Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership). Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly owns
and is deemed to own an aggregate of 346,404,576 A Shares and 8,645,200 H
Shares of the Company.

(2)  Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. directly holds
65,667,784 A Shares of the Company. Henan State-owned Capital Operation
Group Co., Ltd. directly holds 178,224,597 A Shares of the Company. Henan State-
owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Co., Ltd. Henan State-owned
Capital Operation Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government.

Pursuant to the SFO, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government is deemed to own the same
batch of 243,892,381 A Shares of the Company directly held by Henan State-
owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd.

(3)  UBS Group AG is interested in a total of 17,315,030 (long position) H Shares held in

the Company. 2,775,000 (long position) H Shares are held by non-listed derivative

instrument through cash settlement. As disclosed in the notice of interest submitted

by UBS Group AG (with the relevant event dated 14 December 2023), UBS Group

AG is interested in the following H Shares:
Name of Name of
controlled Corporation controlling person % control
SEEEE AR BREALTERE ZEHES
UBS AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd ~ UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS 0’Connor LLC UBS Group AG 100.00
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EETEREE

FERRAALD Tﬁh&ﬁ izl )y
ZRERRRE (&

GEE

(1)

THEEEEARRAFEEIFE69,209,157R A A AIAK
148,645,200 % A 2 RIHA% © ABIEE FH & BRE&HI 531701
g EEETEERARERIEALIRLEEE(T
F)ABEEERER)N—BITBHAL  AtTmERE
ERARARGERIEREEAARREEE(TRE) AL
2(BRAE)ERFHER—1277,1954198 A R BIARK
AREEETEARAR AR RERIERESB & $£346,404,576
PSS 2 BIARS K2.8,645,2008% 2 X AIHAL ©

FEBEERESEEEARTR A A AERH65667,784
BRARFAR - AEEEENEEEEERAREERH
178,224,597 R AR EIARR - MBI AENELEBNEAS
BE’AET%?EJ@%>§$L%%@€BE ANEENBE A

ﬂfﬁlﬁﬁmﬁ’”’%@ﬁﬁ&’“ﬂ%ﬂfﬁ%/&ﬂzﬁ
@ﬁéfz% S EBEEEMNEEANBA

REEH LRGN - AEEARBREAREEEE
@?\E%&Wﬁmﬁmﬁﬁlﬁﬁmﬁ RERAAR
DA EESSE R 243,892,381 A A AIARK ©

UBS Group AGR AN A Bl & $£17,315,0300% (17 &2 ) HAR 42
# © 2,775,0000% (4F B HARBBIAR & A E 0 3E EmiT4
T EHA - BRIEUBS Group AGHE A FY4E 2 iR 20 (FHRE =14
HAHIR2023F 12 A14 8 ) FT#EEE - DA T ARHAR A4 25 FAUBS
Group AGH A
Direct interest (Y/N) Number of shares
HEEREB) RHEHE
Y Long position 2,368,223
= HE
Y Long position 4,037,216
= TR
Y Long position 2,470,391
= e
Y Long position 8,439,200
= HE
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Material Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction” of this Annual
Report on page 89, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into
any material contracts with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
other than the Group.

Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
a total contribution of RMB175.93 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable CG Code
set out in Appendix C1 (former Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or
its associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in
the Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and chief
executives, in respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

EEEW

BRAFREOANFIER S | —HHREZIH AR
B E AT — SR KT8 A B A AR AR R S EL S B 2 7]
(BRAEESIN) 2 BRI ERAK

DNREFRE

BEAFRES - BEETASEM I AEBNAFRER
EREE  ARRAEIREB XA LR AR ER T

THARISRE -
BRI E

AEEEFE 2 2RES ZABUTEEMN T BRI
SEEINRE - BRRERNKZABRSAZARKE -
ERFaERZSRKNEEBITRIESET - £EER
EEEAFSR20%MENRAZELHFEHTK - FHS
FERNME B IR AT 1S A2 S0 R 7S AR BB B A5
SFAFIS o E#ZE2023F12A31 B IEEE - REBEIEK
SHEIMRERAREI75.93FE T B WRRT IR -

EERTH

CERERAM - AN R ST IE A ROBE R A L T AR IR %
(REER14) PRE DR EIASTRI ©

>

Q%

C

BETFH BRI

RAMBRFEARBEAFRAMAL - RARERE
BHAF  BEAARRHNEABRERRESE(RIEA
BEF)RREANBEGRN - BEFBEGRXOREE
REARBREERERITBRAEBENEERRA - F
MR EENE T IPIR sem SRR R MAELR
MERMmMIEHEE -



Subsequent Events

The Board held a meeting on 29 December 2023 and passed a resolution,
pursuant to which it agreed to handle the matters in relation to the exercise by
283 eligible participants during the third exercise period in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the 2019 A Share Option Incentive Scheme of the
Company, involving 4,332,960 exercisable shares. On 24 January 2024, 280
participants with number of 4,128,960 shares were exercised in accordance
with the relevant provisions under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme. The
remaining 204,000 shares are to be exercised.

On 28 March 2024, the Board approved a profit incentive scheme which is
related to the financial performance of the Group from 2024 to 2026, and this
resolution is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and the audited annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 with
the management and the external auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
28 March 2024
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HERRER

EEGR2023F12 A9 BT R WMB—IERER -
Bt - ERBIRBAA F2019FARR AL Z Bt s Byt 2
AR ES - HIR283 BT A GRS EI S RN E = @
TTHEERRTTIES H - W R 1T HE R 524,332,960 % © 7
202441 B 248 + 28044 2 BLE IR 1520194 AR a5 1 &)
BRI TTHE » 1TIEINERA4,128,960/% » E££204,0000%
BIFTE -

20243 [28H - EEEHE—TBEAELE2024FE
2026 F TS EE BT EBEE - WRAHRRASRN
EER AT RS FESRERER - HA{EE -

ErERREEZEES
ETHEREELZ S D HERE MINEZEANERH A

SEEMNNSET R MR A RE £2023F12 A31H 1E
FRENEEZFEREVHERE -

AEEGW
BER
RS

FEEARILANE o B
202443 H28H
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2023 F EEES TERE

In 2023, in accordance with the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (the “Company Law”), “Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(the “Securities Law”) and other relevant laws and regulations as well as the
requirements of “Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited’s
Articles of Association” (the “Articles of Association”), Rules of Procedure of
the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited, the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited (the “Board of Supervisors”) earnestly safeguarded the
interests of the Company and all shareholders as a whole and strictly and legally
performed the relevant duties of the Board of Supervisors. During the Reporting
Period, the Board of Supervisors supervised the Company’s production and
operation, financial position and the performance of duties by the Directors
and senior management of the Company mainly through convening meetings,
attending meetings, face-to-face communication and reviewing materials, so as
to ensure the Company’s standardised operation and safeguard the interests of
the Company’s shareholders as a whole. The work of the Board of Supervisors
in 2023 is set out below:

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2023

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management of
the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board of
the Company was able to strictly comply with the requirements of the
“Company Law”, the “Articles of Association” and other relevant laws,
regulations and systems, and operated and made decisions in accordance
with the laws. All major operation decisions of the Company were rational
and the decision-making process was lawful and valid. The Company has
established and enhanced its internal management system and internal
control mechanism. The Directors and senior management of the Company
conscientiously executed their respective duties in accordance with the
national laws, regulations, the “Articles of Association”, and the resolutions
of the general meetings and the Board meetings. None of the Directors or
senior management of the Company were found to have violated any laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association in discharging their duties for the
Company or engaged in any acts which contravened the interests of the
Company or its shareholders.

In 2023, confronting the complex and challenging internal and external
environment, ZMJ continued to focus on the high-quality development of
the manufacturing industry as the main direction, promoted the enterprise
to continue to do better and stronger in its transformation and upgrading,
the various indicators of production and operation continued to improve,
and maintained a stable and positive development trend.

20235 - BN M EBROERARGEETE AT
BHEIEFE DRB(PEARKMBE A TE) AT
[KRREYD) ~ (P ARKMBIESE) AT EREIGE
FEV)FEREER  RRTCEM R E BB
RATERYUATEBECRREIZ)]) » CEMERERL
SERNERAFNEFSHRETRIDFHENER - )
BHEQN M BERERNG - BIg  (OEBTTESF
SHERE - EPN - EFEIERBAMEE 7
FTEE BEAD  EHMEFR FEMHEAA - HA
AINEELE  MBARRAUARRARES afREEAR
MWERIENETEE - REQRREEE - HELFK
RERME - RIGEFEE2023F EH) TIEERRE
T

— H20BFEEE - KEBLETAR
RENERTE

BRHAREENSREEAEBNEE  BEFER
B RREFERARBRBIRARE) (RFRE
REYREMBRERERNEIENENR - fOELE
RE - RRIEREERREE - HEEFAXAR
REEMIERE T B IR ERE IR B AN A ER 1
H RRIEE  SREEABENTARBISE -
VREREEBATEZOAE AR  (RRIERIM
BRAE® - EFERE - ARAQ/REF - 2fE
BABERITARBBRESERE  ER - AFE
RFEEARRR - RBFENTTA -

2023F EHHE MR IR M NIMEBIRIR - EORRAEF AR IA
NEXSEEBERR/IWI M - EBHEEEBE
R FHEMENE - FEKERRERFER
RIS T REATNERES
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2023

()

(i)

Completing the Transition of the Board of
Supervisors in Accordance with Laws and
Regulations

In November 2023, the Board of Supervisors organised the
general election of the Board of Supervisors in accordance with
the statutory procedures as stipulated in the Company Law, the
Articles of Association and the relevant laws and regulations on
securities supervision. To enhance the operational efficiency and
supervision level of the Board of Supervisors of the Company, the
Company has amended the relevant provisions of the Articles of
Association to adjust the number of members of Board of Supervisors
from seven to three. Upon election at the general meeting of the
Company and election at the meeting of the staff representatives, the
Company elected the Sixth Session of Board of Supervisors on 15
December 2023, which consists of two shareholder representative
supervisors and one staff representative supervisor. Among them,
the staff representative supervisor is LIU Qiang and the shareholder
representative supervisors are CHENG Xiangdong and ZHU Yuan, of
which LIU Qiang is the chairman of the Board of Supervisors. The
proportion of staff representative supervisors is not less than one-
third, and the composition of the Board of Supervisors complies with
relevant laws and regulations.

Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors
in 2023

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors of the
Company convened a total of 12 meetings in accordance with the
relevant requirements of the “Company Law” and the “Articles of
Association”, at which 51 resolutions were considered and approved.
Details are as follows:

Date of the Session of the
Meeting Meeting
B A gEER BRENWER
1 February 2023 The Seventeenth 1.

Meeting of the
20232 H1H Fifth Session 1

of the Board of

Supervisors

EHEEEE

Eo RN

2023 F EEEEE T/ERE

T 203 FEEESTERR

(ROEERR TR EEERETIE

2023F 11 7 - EEGRB(RENE) (REE
) BHRETAMEAEERNBAT - RRE
TRFASFARESSHRERRTI(E- BlES
PEIEEGBEREMEEKTE - REHERT
(RRIERIWIBBIG - HEESASHTER
AEAIE - KARBRASBENMB TR
SHIEE  QRIN2023F12A15REAENE
ERE  m2ERREAREERIBBRINARE
HHEAK o H - BINRKREEAZE - BER
REFARIPR 9 HP2ahERex
& o BMIRKREENLOTNMER=92— ' &
HENEBRFTEBEERERBATE -

(D)0 FEEEEEZAHB R

WEHA - RAEFGRIB(RFE) (A7
BERNEBERE  HKEAMNRRESESSH
FRBIBSIRESR - FABERIT

Proposals Considered at the Meeting

“The Proposal on Preparation of a Controlling Subsidiary for Spin-off and Listing”

CENBEERFARDF LHHESE)
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2023FEESEITHERE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in T 20FEEEETEER®E)
2023 (Continued)
(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (Z)203FEEEELRARAB L@

in 2023 (Continued)

Date of the Session of the

Meeting Meeting

AR HH 2RER

29 March 2023 The Eighteenth
Meeting of the

20233 H29H Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

FHEEFEE

ER WAV

Proposals Considered at the Meeting
EBNRAR

1.

“The Proposal on the 2022 Report of the Board of Supervisors of the Company”

- (R RRR022FEEETE TIERENHESR)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of the
Company”

+ (BN A RI2022F R EFERT R AINA TR S HIERSR)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Annual Report and Summary thereof of the Company”

- (BN RRR022FFEREMBENHR)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Special Report on the Occupation of Non-operating
Funds and Other Connected Fund Movements of the Company”

- (BN RRR0FEIFEENES A REMERE S ERIEANHESR)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Assessment Report on Internal Control of the Company”

- (R R R0225F ARSI FHER S EE)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company”

(R RRRFEHEETHREZERE - HENERRENAR)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Profit Distribution Plan”

- CRAR2022F E B BT RAVESR)

“The Proposal on the Re-appointment of External Audit Institution and Internal
Control Audit Institution for 2023”

- (BERNAEIS2023F E MR RAT AR - ERIZHIESHEBROER)

“The Proposal on Provision for Impairment of Assets”

- (ERFHREE EREERHNESR)
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2023 FEESETERE

Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z0BFEEEETEERE)

2023 (Continued)

(i) Convention of Mestings of the Board of Supervisors (D)2023FEESEEgRARBE L@

in 2023 (Continued)

Date of the Session of the

Meeting Meeting Proposals Considered at the Meeting
AFRBH B2ER EBNRER

10.

11.

“The Proposal on the Daily Related Party Transactions of the Company in 2022 and
the Expected Daily Related Party Transactions of the Company in 2023”

- (BAR A RI20224F [E B B R 22 5 150 M 2023 F E 1At B B2 5B 0R0

£

“The Proposal on Provision of Guarantees for Controlling Subsidiaries and Mutual
Guarantees between Controlling Subsidiaries”

KR AR T AR RIERMERF AR Z A ERERHERNESR)

. “The Proposal on Provision of Repurchase Guarantee for Customers in Financial

Leasing Business”

(ARREHEXKTREFPEHEBRENZR)

“The Proposal on the Utilisation of Idle Funds to Invest in Financial Wealth
Management Products”

(ERNERNREESRE S BEMERMNESR)

“The Proposal on Commencement of the Hedging Business”

(ERRRESREEEHHEE)

“The Proposal on the Change of Registered Capital, Business Scope and
Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company”

(EREERBEMER  RERE - BFI<ARERESHHER)
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2023 (Continued)

(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

in 2023 (Continued)

Date of the
Meeting
AR B

18 April 2023

202354 F18H°

Session of the
Meeting
gRERX

The Nineteenth
Meeting of the
Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

EREEHE
EHIREH

20 FEEESTEER®)

(D)0RFEE=eSHAMBEL@®

Proposals Considered at the Meeting
EBNRAR

1.

K

“The Proposal on the Initial Public Offering and Listing of Shares in Zhengzhou
Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a Subsidiary of the Company, on the
Sci-Tech Innovation Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange”

- (ERBFARSMNEEEEREBRNBRARERARETRELE

LEESFR SR AR EmREER)

“The Proposal on the Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations of the Spin-
off and Listing of Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a
Subsidiary of the Company, on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board”

- KERDIFFIE T RREMNEET EM BN AR ARENEIR EMAA

MHEDER  ERRENFER)

“The Proposal on the ‘Contingency Plan Regarding the Spin-off and Listing of
Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a Subsidiary of the
Company, on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board™”

- (R <EN RS EE RN R ARBER OB FRREMEZE

EMEROER DR EM AR LR TFERSHESR)

“The Proposal on the compliance of the Spin-off and Listing of Subsidiary with the
“Rules on Spinoff of Listed Companies (Trial)”

- KBERFAE T RRAHF LT E<EMARDIRA (FIT)>HHE)

“The Proposal on Spin-off and Listing of Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control
Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board
is in the Interest of Safeguarding the Legal Interests of Shareholders and Creditors”

- KERDIFFIE TR EES ERM BN AR A BREEIR EmEH

RUEEBERAERA A AR ENER)

“The Proposal on the Ability of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited to Maintain Independence and Continue as a Going Concern”

AN

AR EMEERREE RN BRI RRE BN RSECERNNE
)

)

7
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2023FEESETHERE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z0BFEEEETEERE)
2023 (Continued)
(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (D)2023FEESEEgRARBE L@
in 2023 (Continued)
Date of the Session of the
Meeting Meeting Proposals Considered at the Meeting
AFRBH B2ER EBNRER
7. “The Proposal on the Function of Standardised Operation Capability of Zhengzhou
Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company”
7 (BARPIEFAREMNEEEEREROBER AT AEHEENREEER
NHER)
8. “The Proposal on the Explanation of the Completeness and Compliance of the Legal
Procedures for the Spin-off and the Validity of the Legal Documents Submitted”
8 (FARARDWEITETEFHTHENL - AR RRERAEEHNER
MR BARIERE)
9. “The Proposal on the Analysis of the Background, Purpose, Commercial
Reasonableness, Necessity and Feasibility of the Spin-off”
9 (BERARpHES - BE  BESEN L2URATESTHRESR)
10. “The Proposal on the Spin-off of Subsidiary to be Listed on the Sci-Tech Innovation
Board without Guaranteeing the Rights to Share Allocation to the Shareholders of the
Company”
10 ~ CRAR S IFPAE TR R ERIEIR E A RARR RIIRRIRHAR ) 9 BLRE
MR
11. “The Proposal on the holding of shares in the subsidiary proposed to be spun off
by certain Directors, supervisors, senior management and key employees of the
Company and certain related party transactions”
N (BRRAIMHAES - F  SRBERBEABRRZOEBREI2BEDIFA
BFRAFREEB R SRR
26 April 2023 The Twentieth 1. “The Proposal on the 2023 First Quarterly Report of the Company”
Meeting of the
2023F4 A 265 Fifth Session 1 (R AFI02FE —FEMERRR)
of the Board of
Supervisors
FEHEEESY

=T RuH
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2023FEESEITHERE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in T 20FEEEETEER®E)
2023 (Continued)
(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (Z)203FEEEELRARAB L@

in 2023 (Continued)

Date of the
Meeting
AR B

9 June 2023

202356 59H

3 July 2023

202357 H3H

Session of the
Meeting
gRERX

The Twenty-first
Meeting of the
Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

FEhEEERSE

TR gH

The Twenty-second
Meeting of the
Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

FEhEEES
Fot-REm

Proposals Considered at the Meeting
EBNRAR

1. “The Proposal on Adjustment of the Repurchase Price under the 2021 Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme”

1 CERFE021 FR AR E B S DB ERNER)

2. “The Proposal on the Repurchase and Cancellation of Certain Restricted Shares
Granted But Not Yet Unlocked under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”

2 (EREEBIFH021 FREMERZHE 2D EX TEBRRREERN
REIERZNFHS)

3. “The Proposal on the Fulfilment of Conditions for Unlocking the Second Unlocking
Period under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”

3 (BAR2021FRR B MBI R 8155 — IR AR B IR 5 AR IR IR SR ACREEY
EEY

4. “The Proposal on Adjustment of the Exercise Price of the 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme”

4~ (RN FEE2019F IR AR AE A BT TH(ERAIESR)

1. “The Proposal on the Increase in Registered Capital of a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of
the Company and Related Party Transaction”

1 (EREETAFIREBHEBIZNER)



Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2023 (Continued)
(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors
in 2023 (Continued)
Date of the Session of the
Meeting Meeting
EHBEH BRER
31 July 2023 The Twenty-third
Meeting of the
2023 7H31H Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors
FHEEES

o t=Red
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023 FEESEETHFRE

T 20BFEEFEETEER @)

(D)20RFEEEESHARBE L@

Proposals Considered at the Meeting

FRNBR

1.

“The Proposal on the Initial Public Offering and Listing of Shares in Zhengzhou
Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a Subsidiary of the Company, on the
Sci-Tech Innovation Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange”

KRB FRARSMEEE BN BRARERAHAETRELE

PEEFR BT AR W HEEE)

“The Proposal on the Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations of the Spin-
off and Listing of Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a
Subsidiary of the Company, on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board”

- KERDIFABFRREMNEETEMBZBRNERAREMAIR M4

HEDER  ERRENFER)

“The Proposal on the ‘Contingency Plan Regarding the Spin-off and Listing of
Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a Subsidiary of the
Company, on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board’ (Amended Version)”

- (ER<BMNRIEEREBROERABERDFAABF ARSI EES

ERERNBRAREMEIR EMHAR(ERT ) >HESR)

“The Proposal on the compliance of the Spin-off and Listing of Subsidiary with the
“Rules on Spin-off of Listed Companies (Trial)”

- KERFB T RRDHF EMTE<EMRARAIFRA(EIT)>HFHR)

“The Proposal on Spin-off and Listing of Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control
Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board
is in the Interest of Safeguarding the Legal Interests of Shareholders and Creditors”

- KERDIFAB T RRIEMNEETEMBZBNER AR REEIR A F

RUEEBRAERA A ERAIESR)

“The Proposal on the Ability of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited to Maintain Independence and Continue as a Going Concern”

C (ERBMEBEBEREBRNBERDDRFBLERFELLEENNZ

%)
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2023 (Continued)

(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

in 2023 (Continued)

Date of the
Meeting
AR B

28 August 2023

202358 H28H

Session of the
Meeting
gRERX

The Twenty-fourth
Meeting of the
Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

FEhEEES
Fotmrez

20 FEEESTEER®)

(D)20BFEEFESZCRBEN@®

i3

Proposals Considered at the Meeting
EBNRAR

7.

10.

10 »

11.

1

“The Proposal on the Function of Standardised Operation Capability of Zhengzhou
Hengda Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company”

- (EREFARSMEZEE RN AR AR EAHERNREEFE

NHEE)

“The Proposal on the Explanation of the Completeness and Compliance of the Legal
Procedures for the Spin-off and the Validity of the Legal Documents Submitted”

C AERTRAWEITEERFNZHIE - ARMESIERER XN ER

[ENETEEENEE

“The Proposal on the Analysis of the Background, Purpose, Commercial
Reasonableness, Necessity and Feasibility of the Spin-off”

C BERAERASHFESR - BH - BEAEN - K2UERAITTHESTHZER)

“The Proposal on the Spin-off of Subsidiary to be Listed on the Sci-Tech Innovation
Board without Guaranteeing the Rights to Share Allocation to the Shareholders of the
Company”

CERH BT ANSREIR L FRAA TR HRG SRR ER
FHR)

“The Proposal on the holding of shares in the subsidiary proposed to be spun off
by certain Directors, supervisors, senior management and key employees of the
Company and certain related party transactions”

AERRAIMNES &F  aRERAERZOEHEI2HEED A

BT AR RER S HHOHE)

“The Proposal on the 2023 Interim Report of the Company”

» (R RR023FFFEMEHER)



Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2023 (Continued)
(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors
in 2023 (Continued)
Date of the Session of the
Meeting Meeting
EHBEH BRER
30 October 2023 The Twenty-fifth
Meeting of the
2023104 30H Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors
FHEEES

15 November
2023

202311 A15H

15 December
2023

202312 A15H

29 December
2023

202312 A 29H

FE_TRRER

The Twenty-sixth
Meeting of the
Fifth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

FEREEEE
[l AN

The First Meeting of
the Sixth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

ERNEEEY
ERN k-

The Second Meeting
of the Sixth Session
of the Board of
Supervisors

ENEEES

Pa-a R
FIIREH
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2023
023 FEESEETHFRE

T 20BFEEFEETEER @)

(D)20RFEEEESHARBE L@

Proposals Considered at the Meeting
EBNRER

1.

“The Proposal on the 2023 Third Quarterly Report of the Company”

- (ERRRR0BFE=FEHRENAR)

“The Proposal on the amendment to the Articles of Association of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited”

+ (AR BRI EMNRREEREBRNERARER)HER)

“The Proposal on the Nomination of Candidates for Shareholder Representative
Supervisors to the Sixth Session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company”

- KERREARRENEEFERRAREEHREANER)

“The Proposal on the Election of the Chairman of the Sixth Session of the Board of
Supervisors”

AERERFEEEFEIENAR)

“The Proposal on Adjustment of the List of Participants and the Number of Options
and Cancelling Certain Options under the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
the Company”

- (ERBBRRR0NFREHE B 3B SR A E MR EL T

B HEAER)

“The Proposal on the Fulfilment of Exercise Conditions for the Third Exercise Period
of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of the Company”

- (R R RI20195 B Bk B EhA T 81 55 = (AT TR TR IR I RCRA O 22D
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2023 (Continued)

(i) Convention of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors

in 2023 (Continued)

Over the past year, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
performed its duties conscientiously in accordance with the law,
strengthened the supervision of the performance of the Board and
the management, supervised and inspected the production and
operation of the Company and the decision-making of major issues in
accordance with the law, and strived to promote the standardisation
and improvement of the Company’s system, and fulfilled its duties
and responsibilities for the development of the Company.

lil. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2023

1.

Law-abiding Operation of the Company

In 2023, the Supervisors of the Company were present as non-
voting delegates at or attended the Company’s Board meetings
and general meetings according to law, with rigorous supervision
carried out over the Company’s decision-making procedures as
well as the performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and
senior management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the
Board of the Company has complied with the laws and regulations
such as the “Company Law” and the “Securities Law”, as well as
the requirements of the “Articles of Association” and the “Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors”, with regulated operations as
well as lawful and valid decision-making procedures. The Company
has established and improved its internal control system, under which
the Directors and senior management of the Company discharged
their duties conscientiously with no acts found in violation of laws,
regulations and the “Articles of Association” or prejudice to the
Company’s interests.

Inspection of Financial Status of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the financial position of the
Company for 2023 and is of the view that the Company has an
established financial system, a standardised financial operation and
a good financial position. The financial report of the Company truly
reflects the financial position and operating results of the Company,
which is conducive to the shareholders’ correct understanding of
the financial position and operating conditions of the Company. The
financial report prepared by the Board of the Company reflects the
Company’s position in a truthful, accurate and complete manner,
without any false record, misleading statement or material omissions.

20 FEEESTEER®

(D)20BFEEFESZCHBEN@®
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lll. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2023 (Continued)

3.

Inspection of the Company’s Share Incentives

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors inspected the implementation
of the Company’s share incentive in accordance with the laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company adjusted the repurchase
price of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (hereinafter
referred to as the “Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”), repurchased
and cancelled the restricted shares granted to some participants but
not yet unlocked. The conditions for unlocking the second unlocking
period under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme have been
fulfilled. The Company handled the second unlocking and trading
matters of the restricted shares for 170 eligible participants. Upon
verification, the Board of Supervisors considers that except for some
participants whose restricted shares were required to be partly
repurchased and cancelled due to the occurrence of circumstances
such as departure from the Company, change of duties and failure to
achieve excellent results in the individual annual appraisal, all other
participants satisfied the conditions for unlocking of restricted shares
during the second unlocking period. The unlocking of the Restricted
Share Incentive Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of the
Administrative Measures on Share Incentives of Listed Companies
(hereinafter referred to as the “Administrative Measures”) as well as
those of the Incentive Scheme, without prejudice the interests of the
Company and all Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the exercise conditions for the third
exercise period under the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Share Option Incentive
Scheme”) have been fulfilled. The Board of Supervisors reviewed
the exercise price, the list of participants and the adjustment of the
number of share options under the Share Option Incentive Scheme,
and the fulfilment of the exercise conditions for the third exercise
period, and considered that the above adjustments and exercise
matters were in compliance with the relevant provisions of the
“Administrative Measures”; The performance appraisal indicators
for the third exercise period of the Share Option Incentive Scheme
and the individual performance appraisal results of the participants
are in compliance with the exercise conditions for the third exercise
period under the Share Option Incentive Scheme, and 283 eligible
participants have been approved to exercise the share options.
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lil. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2023 (Continued)

4.

Inspection of the Capital Operation of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company proposed to spin off
its controlling subsidiary, Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control
Technology Co., Ltd. for listing on the Sci-Tech Innovation Board
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Upon verification, the Board
of Supervisors considers that the spin-off is in compliance with
the provisions of the relevant laws and regulations as well as the
prescriptive documents, that the statutory procedures for the spin-
off have been performed in a complete manner, and that the legal
documents submitted in respect of the spin-off are lawful and valid.

Inspection of Related Party Transactions of the
Company

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the related party transactions
of the Company in 2023, and considered that the related party
transactions of the Company in 2023 took place in strict compliance
with the provisions of the “Articles of Association” of the Company,
were strictly carried out in accordance with the regulations of the
related party transaction regulations, and the transactions were fair
and reasonable. Such related party transactions were conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with the statutory approval process performed
and no act prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the increase in registered capital
and related party transactions of ASIMCO, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and considered that the capital increase and
related party transactions of ASIMCO, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, were fair and reasonable and followed the principles
of openness, fairness and impartiality. It would not affect the
Company’s control over ASIMCO, the combined statement scope of
the Company, and would not adversely affect the existing assets and
ongoing operation ability of the Company, and would not damage the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Inspection of Internal Control of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the internal control of the
Company in 2023 as well as the establishment and operation of the
Company’s internal control system, and considers that the Company
has established a robust internal control system which is under
effective implementation.
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lll. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2023 (Continued)

7.

Inspection of the Information Disclosure of the
Company

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the information disclosure of
the Company for 2023 and considers that the Company has strictly
complied with the information disclosure working system and the
disclosed information is true, accurate and complete, without any
false records, misleading statements or material omissions, and
without leakage of inside information or insider trading, which is in
compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations and prescriptive
documents such as the Securities Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Measures for the Administration of Disclosure of
Information by Listed Companies and the Rules for Listing of Stocks
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, etc.

IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2024

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to
strictly comply with the requirements of the “Company Law”, the
“Securities Law”, the “Articles of Association” and the relevant
regulations and policies of the country, perform its duties faithfully,
and further facilitate regulated operations of the Company.

Comply with Laws and Regulations and Discharge
Duties Conscientiously

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the “Company Law”, the “Securities Law”, and the
“Articles of Association”, supervise the Board and the management
in performing the obligation in accordance with law, and facilitate
the Company to further improve corporate governance structure and
improve its level of governance.
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IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2024
(Continued)

@)

Continue to Strengthen Supervision and Inspection
to Avert Operational Risks

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will take financial supervision as the
core, and monitor and inspect the financial position of the Company
in line with the law. Secondly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain
communication and liaison with the internal auditors and external
accounting firms, so as to make full use of internal and external audit
information to keep abreast of relevant situations. Thirdly, the Board
of Supervisors will pay particular attention to high risk areas of the
Company and carry out inspections on critical aspects such as major
investments, related party transactions, external guarantees, financial
endorsement and fund utilization.

Bolster Professional Capabilities through Greater
Self-improvement

The Board of Supervisors will constantly broaden its professional
knowledge and improve its professional capabilities by receiving
more training in banking, finance, law, auditing and securities, so as
to enhance the supervisory role, actively explore innovative ways of
supervision, and better perform the supervisory function of the Board
of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R

.

pwc

To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 124 to 279, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
Accounting Standards (“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEAMHRE

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

e Revenue recognition on sales of products
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

EEE S ERFANEERE

Refer to note 2 (summary of material accounting policies), note 3 (financial risk
factors), note 4 (critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty) and note 29 (trade and other receivables) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
were RMB7,787 million for which a loss allowance of RMB518 million was
provided.

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade receivables on a
periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables are calculated based
on management’s estimates of the lifetime expected credit losses, which is
determined by taking into account: a) the customers’ repayment history, aging
profile of their overdue balances, their current financial positions and other
relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts of future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the expected credit loss is subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the expected credit loss
is considered significant due to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of
significant assumptions used, and the significant judgements and estimates
involved in the process.
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BRETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMMETNAREEERENSHE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment when determining the loss
allowance for trade receivables:

We obtained an understanding of, evaluated and
tested management’s key controls which management
adopted for the determination of loss allowance for trade
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s 10ss
allowance estimates by examining the information used
by management to form such judgements and estimates,
including:

i) Evaluated the customer’s repayment history by
checking the settlement evidence of the trade
receivables to cash receipt and testing the aging
profile of trade receivables to sales invoices and other
relevant documents, on a sample basis;

i)~ On customers having a higher risk of default:

e Understood management’s process in
identifying customers having a higher risk of
default;

e (Obtained and reviewed those customers’
background information and their current
financial position provided by management;

e Reviewed transactions with those customers
and their respective collection patterns in the
past, and discussed with management to
understand the circumstances applicable to
relevant customers; and

i) Evaluated whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information by making
reference to market data.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
the loss allowance for trade receivables in the context of
the applicable financial reporting framework.

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the models, significant assumptions and data
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the risk
assessment of determination of loss allowance for trade
receivables remained appropriate and we found the judgement
and estimates adopted by management in determining the
determination of loss allowance for trade receivables are
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREHEE

Revenue recognition on sales of products
EmEERARR

Refer to note 2 (summary of material accounting policies) and note 5 (revenue)
to the consolidated financial statements.

In 2023, the Group recognised revenue from sales of products of RMB36,134
million.

Sales are recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.

We identified the revenue recognition on sales of products as a key audit matter
due to its magnitude. We incurred significant time and resources in carrying out
our work in this area.
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BRETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAENET N AEERRETEE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment on revenue recognition on sales of
products:

e Ve obtained an understanding of, evaluated and tested
the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls
around the Group’s transactions of sales of products.

e \Weinspected agreements with major customers, on
a sample basis, to understand the terms of the sales
transactions including the terms of control transfers to
assess if the Group’s revenue recognition criteria were
in accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

e \We conducted testing of revenue from sales of products,
on a sample basis, by examining the supporting
documents including sales contracts or sales orders,
goods delivery notes, and customers’ acceptance
documents on control transfer of the products. In addition,
we confirmed selected trade receivables balances as at
the date of financial position.

e \We tested sales transactions for sales of products that took
place before and after the date of financial position, on a
sample basis, by examining the supporting documents to
assess whether the sales transactions were recognised in
the correct reporting periods.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found that
the Group’s revenue from sales of product being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policy.
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Key Audit Matter
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Revenue recognition on sales of products (Continued)
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023 (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information including
chairman’s statement prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report
of the Board of Directors and Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2023 and
the other sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the annual
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MI5E AR® T AREFTT
Revenue WA 5 36,423,236 32,043,306
Cost of sales SHERMA 11 (28,575,291) (25,644,599
Gross profit EF 7,847,945 6,398,707
Other income EahUgA 7 492,117 476,430
Other losses, net H 518 R 58 8 (13,204) (120,034
Selling and distribution expenses HELOHEEY 11 (1,156,268) (831,593)
Administrative expenses ITHRAX 11 (1,199,587) (1,072,973)
Research and development expenses e 11 (1,568,223) (1,385,962)
Net impairment losses on financial and SRREREERE
contract assets E1ER5E 51,226 (137,284)
Share of profit of associates NG el 21 46,966 23,147
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(R S B EHRT 22 5,891 5,050
Finance costs BhE AN 9 (388,601) (265,410)
Profit before income tax PSR ARR 4,118,262 3,090,078
Income tax expense Frisfif 2 10 (616,668) (462,073)
Profit for the year FEREF 3,501,594 2,628,005
Profit for the year attributable to: LA AT REIEERRT -
Owners of the Company VNG S 3,301,334 2,538,235
Non-controlling interests IR A 2 200,260 89,770
3,501,594 2,628,005
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmRkAtEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BRE AR®TR AR¥ET T

Other comprehensive income: Hih2mEUKES :

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to T~& R E 18 & 27 7 4B 18251

profit or loss: EH -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit EFFrERKEANET

obligations 16,329 46,477
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair LAZX F{EEH 8 B & &)t A KM S

value through other comprehensive income ElmNeREENTEZD 3,202 247,305

ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: R E# P E 8 a9EH -

Exchange differences arising on translation BEELSNELZ5 27,667 9,528
Cash flow hedging Bensdh (773) 14,723
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREAM B - B

net of income tax FriSts 46,425 318,033
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEKNEHETE 3,548,019 2,946,038
Total comprehensive income for the year AT ALEGAFREZEY S

attributable to: B

Owners of the Company AARPEER 3,348,618 2,856,268

Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE RS 199,401 89,770

3,548,019 2,946,038

EARNINGS PER SHARE SRER

— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARED) 15 187.22 145.38

— Diluted (RMB cents) —BE(ARES) 15 186.09 144.55

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive PR A R E 2 R E KT M T — G5
income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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As at 31 December 2023 742023512 A31H

As at 31 December

M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 16 6,295,147 5,434,083
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 1,828,283 1,835,441
Investment properties LB 18 314,605 336,004
Goodwill EES 19 88,283 131,905
Intangible assets mREEE 20 813,309 927,015
Investments in associates N0 21 677,520 186,840
Investments in joint ventures AEBERIRE 22 99,664 92,028
Financial assets at fair value through AT ERT 2 A E &8 Algs
profit or loss M REE 23 6,872 -
Financial assets at fair value through AR ERT 2 B E e AEAM
other comprehensive income FHKENEREE 23 408,159 796,876
Deferred income tax assets FEIEFTSHEE 24 382,679 313,657
Finance lease receivables B ETE S FEWGRIR 25 78,998 49,994
Long-term receivables KA GRIE 26 213,498 166,468
Bank deposits FRITER 30 1,468,712 -
12,675,729 10,270,311
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion EE M E I RIE - RBIERG 25 21,825 50,963
Long-term receivables, current portion REAEI TIE - RENERD 26 216,230 88,032
Inventories FE 28 9,296,608 7,909,823
Trade and other receivables L5 R HE M EREE 29 10,353,472 9,118,627
Transferred trade receivables BEENE SRR 35 198,861 269,411
Financial assets at fair value through AT ET 2 A EEe T Algs
profit or loss M REE 23 5,944,162 5,228,176
Financial assets at fair value through MR ET= BEZE A EM
other comprehensive income FHKENERHEE 23 3,848,095 4,494,325
Derivative financial instruments TESRMT A 23 33,867 4,890
Tax recoverable BaEE 31,969 19,153
Assets classified as held for sale DEARFERENEE 31 91,072 -
Bank deposits RITFK 30 1,945,896 3,402,435
Cash and cash equivalents BekBELEEY 30 4,729,233 3,613,443
36,711,290 34,199,278
Total assets HEE 49,387,019 44,469,589




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

BINR AR E D B PR A F] 20235 3

As at 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H

As at 31 December

M2A831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T AREETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Borrowings TR 33 6,159,723 4,312,744
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 1,202,523 1,250,741
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSFI A E 24 152,475 179,464
Contract liabilities ERAE 27 37,491 21,5610
Provisions B 34 26,283 19,628
Employee benefit obligations EBERBMNEME 36 298,132 222,324
QOther non-current liabilities Hi3EREaE 248,653 239,157
8,125,280 6,245,568
GURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M ER IR 32 12,916,362 11,480,609
Contract liabilities ERAE 27 4,174,250 3,748,349
Income tax liabilities FEHasE 244,606 115,214
Borrowings (=R 33 1,143,514 3,237,226
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 145,305 146,261
Provisions B 34 532,108 571,275
Liabilities associated with transferred trade Mo BENE SRS
receivables HafE 35 212,812 269,411
Derivative financial instruments TESmIE 23 11,453 17,395
19,380,410 19,585,740
Total liabilities BaeF 27,505,690 25,831,308
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e MR R
As at 31 December 2023 742023512 A31H

As at 31 December

M2A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo5E AR®T AREFTT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGFEE

Share capital R& A 37 1,781,409 1,782,245
Share premium 1D R (E 4,533,431 4,538,675
Reserves B 14,063,372 11,486,347
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARFIREE RS 20,378,212 17,807,267
Non-controlling interests JEIEAR RS 40 1,503,117 831,014
Total equity FELRBEE 21,881,329 18,638,281
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 49,387,019 44,469,589

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in RS BRI L 2% e S BB BT BT 5 — DR B o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 124 to 279 were approved and IR E124 22798 iR & B SR 1 2024F3 A28 H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed LEESIEREENE  WHTIIATRERES :
on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao Jia Hao
RS B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;2023412 31 B 1L /&€

Attributable to owners of the Company
ADRRFE

Statutory  Currency  Cash flow Non-
Share Share  Treasury Revaluation  surplus translation hedging Other  Refained controlling Total
capital  premium share  reserve  rEServe  MSeIVe reServes reServes  eamings Tofal inferests  equity

EERH g% BeRE ¥R
Rx  ROEE ERRH EfdE fif EXGE HrEE HtEE REERA &3t B ERAE
RMBOOD  RMBIOOD  RMBIOOO  RMBYOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'OO0  RMBODO  RMBODD  RMB'OOD  RWBOO0  RWBOOO  RWB(00
ARETT ARETT ARETT - T ARETL ARMTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETH ARETI
(Note ) (Note ) ‘
(Mt (Kith)

At 31 Deoember 2022 end ANFANER

at 1 January 2023 ABEIAIA 1782245 4538675  (118198) 331,708 1,198,347 (111,73) - 008895 9377333 17807267 831,014 18,638,261
Proftfor the year ERgH - - - - - - - - 330133 3301334 200260 3,501,594
Othercompretiensie meome A REM 2B

forte e - - T - B (M) - 1 T R
Totd comprehensieneome AR ENELE

forthe year - - - 19,531 - 85 (m) - 3301334 3348618 199401 3548019
Share options i 892 3189 - - - - - 1,316 - 5,397 10 5407
Resticted share incentie scheme RIS gi@sr2] sEa0)

Note 39 07 @y e - - - - WM R % 19 815
Change of an investment %A% - - - (238840) - - - - e %5 - %5
Trnsachonwihnon-contoling — JEERRERR B (F3H40)

interests (Note 40) - - - - - - - 864 - 864 5162719 544920
Employee stock ownershipplan— —EHBATNE TER:HE

ofa subsidiary - - - - - - - 823 - 8239 1452 9,691
Share of o reserves fom EiEBELARARLE

s and ontventures ko - - - - - - -1 - mn - 1m
Didends ot 14 Ba (b - - - - - - - - %0 (%0 (520 (104328

At 31 December 2023 RABENANE 1761400 4533431 (242) 112309 1198347 (83212 (73) 87243 12016602 20378212 1503117 21,881,329
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Attibutable to oners of the Company

KAARRER
Statutory ~~ Curency — Cashflow Non-
Share Share  Treasuy Revluaton  suplus  tanshn  hedging Other ~ Retaingd contoling Tota
captd premium e fESeNe  /ESBNE /ESENE ISenes  resenes  eamings Toial  interests equy
ki3 EERR % RenE FER
kA& HE  ERERR EREE BB EXBR GeBE EbBR  REEN & Ba EaEE
RMBOOD  RWBOO0  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOO0  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBO0D  RMBO00
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETH ARETR ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note ) (Note b} (Note ¢)
(Biita) i) (Hizke)
A1 January 2022 RANEIAIE 1779493 4426100 (48724) 37926 1198347 (121266) (14728 161371 7576965 1479491 85486 15650977
Proft for the year ERiaf - - - - - - - - 202 2582 89710 2628005
Other comprehensive income.~—~— FREHZERE

forthe year - - - ;R - 958 1478 - - 3808 - 3808
Tota comprehensie incomejoss)  EAZENE /(BiE)

forthe year % - - - ;R - 958 IR - 202 286268 89770 2946038
Shere optons e 3600 R - - - - - [102%9) - b6 13 560
Restriced share ncentive scheme B 514 R2 &5 2 (Mistag)

(Notg 39) B4 80302 130526 - - - - | M1 20817 a3 21080
Disposalof a subsciary (Note 44) 25— A3 (Fiztas) - - - - - - - - - - (182669 (152669)
Dlsposal o ised equity securtes £/ EfA RS - - - - - - - - B 3p6s - e
Transacton with non-confroling ~~ FHERER LS

inerests (Notg 40) (Bt340) - - - - - - - 6w - 604942 216708 871650
Employee stock ownershipplan -~ —EHBARNE LK

of a subsidary #E - - - - - - - 2147 - ALY 484 3081
Dividends (Note 14) RE (Fin) - - - - - - - - (TTA080  (TTAO80)  (178991)  (983,071)
At 31 December 2022 RORERANA 1762245 453675 (118199 31708 1198347 (111739) - 8088% 9373 17807267 831014 18,638,261

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bl A He o B B 3R B BB B RE — DRI RE o



Note a:

Note b:

Note c:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association
of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the
Company and these subsidiaries.

The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains
and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non-
financial hedged item.

The reserves available for distribution to shareholders by the Group as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 was RMB11,234,396,000 and RMB8,773,959,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

PiizEa

HIED -

B sEc -

R B R RIEARAR R R E A R B AR S HF
BABMRAIER  ARFRZEWNEB R FFEBER
Bii& i MBE H10% 2 A E B - EERHDET
&A%/ 1L - LEIA R EETHR VAL RER
FFAAD KB SRHETT < VAT BB AN

FIFENER  WARALEXERAARRZEM
BARMWEIER -

RenEHhREEARSRELFIILNEFTA
MAFEEFESNRGEMBREFERESD - 2R
RenShREERRZFNET TANQAFEE
PEENR T NEMNEREEHNHEEYERER )
BEFHBEERS - REFTAFM LR NAE L
7 o

R2023F 202212 A31H » AlEAEE DR T %
EHIFEE D B A AR 11,234,396,000 T & A R
8,773,959,0007T °
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12831HILLEE
2022
20224
RMB’000
ARBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before tax B FE BT A 4,118,262 3,090,078
Adjustments for: JHEKR
Finance costs B & B AN 388,601 265,410
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RIT71F - REIEWROE LR E
receivables and finance lease receivables FAE FE W R IE R B U A (201,319) (161,326)
Share of profit of associates FE(HEG &N RS T (46,966) (23,147)
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(E A EERT (5,891) (5,050)
Net loss/(gains) on disposal of property, HEME  BELBENEE
plant and equipment (Uezs) 58 (3,701) (4,800)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MFE AR RS = (195,494)
Dividend from financial assets at fair value through UAF A= B EZFH ABTZA
profit and loss CREEMBRS (89) -
Net fair value loss of derivative financial instruments ~ $TAE & g T BN F(EEIE F5E 86,556 73,221
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value AR F{EzTE B EZ &t ABHH
through profit or loss CRMEEMNNTERZFE (43,179) (94,989)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BEREREITE 694,647 582,889
Depreciation of investment properties EMENE 21,399 18,815
Amortization of intangible assets A EE 252,318 190,402
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREEENE 162,011 152,526
Net impairment (reverse)/loss on financial and SRRAEREERERE), 8
contract assets R (51,226) 137,284
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERERE 113 1,491
Impairment of goodwill BERE 43,622 276,651
Impairment of intangible assets EmEEERE 290 99,116
Share options (Note 38) BB RS A (FT5E38) 1,326 7,116
Restricted share incentive scheme (Note 39) PR #I|14 RE Z e En st 2 (M93E39) 24,464 84,743
Employee stock option plan of a subsidiary —MM B A ER B TiFReT S 9,691 3,231
Accrual of inventory provision FEEtTFERE 29,986 44,879
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes e & 2 (84,138) (37,760)
Operating cash flows before movements in BIEES
working capital 5,396,777 4,505,286
Increase in inventories FEIEM (1,419,666) (1,892,131)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & E IR FIEIE N (1,199,910) (2,085,517)
Decrease/(increase) in notes receivable JEURE=IER A (1840) 646,230 (502,908)
Increase in long-term receivables and REAEWGRIA R BT E KGR
finance lease receivables AN (158,356) (143,013
Increase in trade and other payables H 5 N HAb e FRIEE N 1,285,316 1,575,698
Increase in contract liabilities A RAEEM 441,882 1,471,530
Cash generated from operations CEEESRS 4,992,273 2,928,945
Income tax paid BAETSH (542,208) (499,749)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING KETHBRESTE
ACTIVITIES 4,450,065 2,429,196




INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income on bank deposits, long-term
receivables and finance lease receivables
Government grants related to assets received
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Dividends from associates
Proceeds on disposal of associates
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary,
net of cash disposed
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(Payment)/proceeds on disposal of derivative
financial instruments
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Payments for other financial assets,
structured deposits and certificate of deposits
Proceeds from other financial assets and
structured deposits
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months and restricted cash
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months and restricted cash
Payment of pledged bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Net settlement amount of derivative
financial instruments

RN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20235 3%

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HmEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3BLEE
2022
20224
RMB’000
AREEFIT
REEE
BITFR - REEKZELRRERE
FEUGRIB RO FI B IR 201,319 161,326
BB EWE AR T B 88,482 91,487
AT ETEBEEE A2 EkED
SREEMNRKE 89 -
Bt A RIHIAR B 7,332 5,989
HER 2N R TS IE - 17,153
HE—RHEA mﬁm%?x
HBREHERS - 274,613
HEUAFEAELHEEHTA
Hiv2mK A€ e ETSH0E - 64,960
EBEAATEFEEHEEHTA
BRENEREE - (389,323)
HEMELR T AR,
FriS3RIE (773) 14,723
HEDE  BEREE
Frig 308 37,298 56,703
BEWE  BEMEE (1,431,077) (1,300,700)
BEEREE (99,196) (112,152)
YNEMESRMEE  HBETRR
FE (8,967,899) (8,006,832)
Hib @B E RSB IEFRNERE
8,295,092 6,109,931
FRREDIE B =@ A L EMIRTT1ERR
ZREIEE (1,511,738) (2,736,826)
REVRZEIE =@ B A L8R ITIER R
ZRFIEE 2,192,999 2,569,828
S NEEIFRITER (1,359,043) (665,609)
RREE BRI TIER 665,609 374,274
PTHESRI AN ELEE T8
(86,556) (73,221)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

RETBFAREFHE (1,968,062) (3,543,676)

133



134

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MEBRENER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2023 12 A31 8 L /&

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2022
20224F
RMB’000
ARET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Proceeds from new borrowings MEEETIE 4,567,150 4,920,439
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T BE AR P15 50R 4,081 18,513
Repayment of restricted share incentive scheme R i) IEHXK/%&@JQJ%U =5 (8,079) (4,508)
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (4,951,881) (3,142,964)
Interests paid BFIE (343,007) (221,602)
Contribution from non-controlling interests FEIERR RS HE 544,920 871,650
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ERARBIRERE (998,058) (774,080)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR E R B (81,916) (041)
Lease payments HAEHE (242,135) (191,312
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM REEE (FTH), e
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Note 44) R &R E (HEE44) (1,508,925) 1,475,595
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRE& RIS EEYILINBE 973,078 361,115
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES REeRRSEEEE 2 ERXEHH
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & 142,712 56,654
CGASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY MABIENBEESRESEEY 3,613,443 3,195,674
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RI2ANBNRERBESEEY
AT 31 DECEMBER (Note 30) (Ff5E30) 4,729,233 3,613,443

The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

BiliGraRERERER

BE PP oL — G BEIFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & %2023 12 A31 H L F[E

1

General information

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise in the
PRC. On 28 October 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Henan SASAC. Upon completion of the share transfer,
the parent of the Company was Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. and its ultimate controlling party was Henan SASAC of the PRC
Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

On 9 March 2017, the Company issued 93,220,338 ordinary shares
to ASIMCO (China) Limited. On 22 March 2017, the Company issued
18,129,032 ordinary shares to Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited — the first phase of ESOP, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd., Jinxiu
Zhonghe (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd. — Jinxiu Tianyou No. 106
Private Investment Fund, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningho
— HANG TANG WEALTH, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningho
— No. 2 Wealth Management Plan of Tianhong Dashu Dingzenghao and
Anhui Railway Development Funds Co., Ltd. After the issuance, Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. held 30.08% of the Company’s total
issued share capital.

On 26 February 2021, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
transferred 277,195,419 A shares of the Company to Hong Yi Investment
Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Hong Yi
Investment”). After the transfer, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. holds 243,892,381 shares of the Company (representing 14.08%
of the total share capital of the Company), and Hong Yi Investment holds
277,195,419 shares of the Company, representing 16% of the total
share capital of the Company. While Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Henan Asset”), the party acting in concert with Hong Yi Investment, holds
69,209,157 shares of the Company, representing 3.99% of the total share
capital of the Company. Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset held 19.99%
of shares of the Company in aggregate. According to the Acting-in-Concert
Agreement entered into by Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset and the
governance structure of Hong Yi Investment, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset have become the
controlling shareholders of the Company, and the Company has no de
facto controller.

—RER

BN S ERR D BR A R([ARAR )R E
AR ZEFE ([ AR B ) B7 1 5 50 B AR 4k 2 ()
EREEARELAE - BIEFPEAQFNER2008512
R28B BRI AR BRAT - 12015104
280 AMEARBNEAEEEEEELZES
(TTREEEZR DIFANARRRE BTRALEDN
32.14%EE TN EEBEEZM AN B QR R
WEBREEEEARETRR - ERMHEFETK
& ARTE AR RNEEEREREEEBRE
AR HE&Erslh 2P BEEAE TR mE E
BE o

7201048 A3H » A2 A58 X 140,000,000 A% AR 7
LEBERGHERARBEEY EH(RHAR
601717.8S) ° AR A BIN2012E12 ASBEFBHEAS
RZHBR AR ([HRAT]) ER LM (RGHREE
00564) e

20174398 » AR A FE(FEDIEEFR
A B1851793,220,338 % L@ A% - 201743228 -
AR A ) SN B AR S B AR (5 B PR A B — S5 1 A7
BIFRE  BmELERETARA - HBEP
MU EREBER QG —HBAERG10655AL2
WEES « RolEe —=FRIT—ERME - X3
e -FRIRIT - RAESABTHEFEES
BHE ML REERERESROHBR AT EIT
18,129,032% L iM% o MITAREEITIE -+ A BT 2
BREEEERETARFZEARTEBITIRAL
EE#730.08% ©

202152 H26H - I EEMEEREEEEGRE
ARAAARBEERECTIR) EREE(ERA
%) ([BARIEE |) EEAR R 277,195,419 A AL A%
7o BiEe  MMEMEBRESEEREAR
A5 B AN A 7)243,892,381 B AR 17 (15 AR A &) 48 R AR
#914.08%) * BAFRIE E A A QD F)277,195,4190% A%
7 EARREVBIEARE16% - MR E RN —BIT
PANBEEEEEARAR(CIEEENBEAR
7)69,200,157 X AZ 15+ (5 AN A 4B AR AN H93.99% + J5h
R BB EEAFEB AR TN AI19.99% °
RIEAFIE N EEEREM—BITBHEE)
ARGLFRIRERYRBRER - ARRESERA  BA
B EEEKABAR RIMIERE - AARNE
B|EBRITHIA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

1

General information (Continued)

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a
restricted share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”) to grant and issue
a total number of 42,300,000 A shares. After the completion of the
grant registration of the restricted shares under the Scheme, the total
share capital of the Company increased from 1,732,471,370 shares to
1,774,771,370 shares. As a result, the aggregate shareholding of Hong Yi
Investment and Henan Asset Management Limited has been changed from
19.99% to 19.52%.

On 18 December 2021, the first vesting period of the share options
granted under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme was due, and 301
participants with number of 4,722,300 shares were eligible for option
exercise in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive
Scheme. After the completion of the exercise of share options, the total
share capital of the Company increased from 1,774,771,370 shares to
1,779,493,670 shares. As a result, the aggregate shareholding of Hong Yi
Investment and Henan Asset Management Limited has been changed from
19.52% t0 19.47%.

On 11 October 2022, due to the reasons, such as resignation, job
transfer or position change of incentive employees under the Scheme, the
Company repurchased and cancelled 848,000 restricted A shares granted
to certain employees.

On 18 December 2022, the second vesting period of the share options
granted under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme was due, and 292
participants with number of 4,491,300 shares were eligible for option
exercise in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive
Scheme. As at 31 December 2022, the total outstanding shares of
the Company were 1,778,645,670 shares and additional 3,600,300
shares were exercised under the 2019 Option Inventive Scheme but the
shares registrations were completed subsequently on 12 January 2023.
Remaining 891,000 shares were exercised and registered on 8 December
2023.

On 5 September 2023, due to the reasons, such as resignation, job
transfer or position change of incentive employees under the Scheme,
the Company repurchased and cancelled 1,728,000 restricted A shares
granted to certain employees.

—RER @

202166 48 + AEBRERF RSP —IAR
HI MR B AT B ([3%5TE1)) - AR T RETE
$£42,300,000f% AR A% 19 © 5% AT BIIE T PR i) 14 1 22
KT ERTKE - NRFIBARZABH1,732,471,3700%
AR 38 221,774,771, 3700 Bx 0 © FH L - BARIRE K
MEEESEARATIMBEIRLLPIHR19.99%% A
19.52% o

72021612 188 » RIE2019F B4 2B 5T 81 %
A AR SEEARE SF —(E 5 B HA R HR - MARIR BRI
BETEIM MBI A ERITEEREN2EE
B301% - H%4,722,3000% B 15 o SEATTIE IR 2R
1% AR RAARRAE,774,771,370 8 I (7 18 &=
1,779,493,6 70/ B 10 o H It - BARIRE KB EE
EEBRAFINAAARER19.52%% F 519.47% °

R2022F10 A1 8 + AR ZATEIFTEEMEHE -
UABSIBEEE  ARFIREIHEETETE
£ #)848,000% BR Hl 1HAR ©

F20226F12 B 188 » 1RIE20194F B i B =1 8)9% 1
O A% 52 AR 55 — {57 8 B B HR - AR SR BB ED AT
SIS A ERITEBREN 2 HEEF292
B K4,491,30008 A% 9 o 7202212 A31H - K
NAE TN IR (0 1B 21 /51,778,645,67T0 AR 1
ifn %8 51 3,600,300 A% A% 1 18 #2 2019 5F B4 B Eh =1 =1
BT - BRHZEREREEN2023F1 A128 7%
A o #: T-891,000A% A% 17 722023 12 A8 B 1T{# K &
E

20239 A58 - MR KETEIFTEREMEHT « M
ABBGES - AARIOEFHERTETEE
#91,728,0000% BR HII EAR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information (Continued)

On 18 December 2023, the final vesting period the share options granted
under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme was due, and 283 participants
with number of 4,332,960 shares were eligible for option vesting in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive Scheme. As
at 31 December 2023, the total outstanding shares of the Company were
1,781,408,970 shares and additional 4,332,960 shares were vested but
not exercised under the 2019 Option Inventive Scheme.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery
and auto parts.

Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with IFRSs Accounting Standards

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
Accounting Standards (“IFRSs Accounting Standards”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622 (“HKCO").

IFRS Accounting Standards comprise the following authoritative
literature:

e International Financial Reporting Standards

e International Accounting Standards

e |Interpretations developed by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC Interpretations) or its predecessor

body, the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC
Interpretations).

e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

1

—RER @

2023512 5188 - R IE20195F EiME B AT IR
MREHRESE —EFEBRRE - mREAEY
B EMERGEXHEEREBERENSHEE
2834 4,332,960 % B {7 o 7A20234F 12 A 31
B RRAEITEIN IR B 2051,781,408,970%
[t - T EEYN, 332,960 A% A% 17 1R 1% 20194 HitE 2B
B ERBEMARITEE

AATREMFEE I R =22 BT QIR
RERIARER | —F - RRFEEMBRR(H
M AEE DR ERBERR S TETHRERK

EXETBREE

REFAVBERERAEANERNGBEREIIN T
X e BREFRIEARSN - R EBREBERRZ5IMAT
BEE - GAMBBRA/LEE(BEARRRE
B AR MR

2.1 IRBUEAE
() BFERBBREEREER

e BHmRIIRIEER I SRS ERIE
HERI(TBIR M B RS SR )
E6228 F BN REDI([ZERBED )
MR ERmE -

FR BT R R 3 R R DA T L

X

o« EBHTEEE LA

.« BRI

o EBETSEEEAREE R
BRRRBEERHTENRE(HI

REEMBREENREZRERE
LERREZEERE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

@i

(ii)

(iii)

Gompliance with IFRSs Accounting Standards (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4 below.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) — measured at fair value, and

e defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at
fair value.

New standards, amendments and annual improvements
adopted by the Group in 2023

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2023:

e |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts

e Definition of Accounting Estimates — amendments to IFRS
8

e |nternational Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules —
amendments to IAS

e  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction — amendments to 1AS 12

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The Group applies the exception to recognizing and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to
Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the amendments to IAS
12 issued in May 2023. The Group is in the process of assessing
its exposure to the Pillar Two legislation for when it comes into
effect (Note 10).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) Impact of new standard and amendments issued but not
yet adopted by the Group

The following new accounting standard and amendments have
been published but are not mandatory for 31 December 2023
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These new standards and amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements when they become effective.

e  (lassification of liabilities as current or non-current —
Amendments to IAS 1

e |ease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to
IFRS 16

e Non-current Liabilities with Covenants — Amendments to
IAS 1

e Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to IAS 7
and Amendments to IFRS 7, and

e Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture — Amendments to IFRS 10 and
Amendments to IAS 28.

These standards, amendments or interpretations are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

()

©

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

@

€

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)
(e)  Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”"). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the historical financial information of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
RMB as its key activities and transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group’s presentation currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis
within “other gains/losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or 10ss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued) IMEEBE ()
(©)  Group companies © ZEEIAE

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified into profit or
loss, as part of “other gains/losses, net”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00%
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00%
Other equipment 18.00%-33.33%

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition is
depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, and are recognised in “other gains/losses, net”
in the profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets when completed and ready for use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking
into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right 2%
Buildings 3.17%-4.75%

Intangible assets
@  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the aggregate purchase consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes at the operating segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)  Trademarks, patents and customer relationship

©

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks, patents and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Development cost

Costs associated with project development are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

e itis technically feasible to complete the technology so that
it will be available for use

e management intends to complete the technology and use
or sell it

e there is an ability to use or sell the technology

et can be demonstrated how the technology will generate
probable future economic benefits

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
technology are available, and

e the expenditure attributable to the technology during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
technology include employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as development
costs in intangible assets and would be transferred to completed
development projects or patents, and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use over its estimated use life.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(d)  Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do
not meet the criteria in (c) above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

(e)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following period:

Trademark 10 years
Software 4-5 years
Development costs 4 years
Patent right 5-10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets
such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

2 EREFHEBEH
2.2 BERSETHBUR (#)

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group)
are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the statement of financial position. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other liabilities in the statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been
disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of
business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, development costs not yet ready for use and intangible
assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

@

(b)

©

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(“OCI"). For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FvOoCI™).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flow from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continuead)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in “other
gains/losses, net” together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the profit or loss.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in “other gains/losses, net”. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “other gains/
losses, net” and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the profit or loss.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within “other
gains/losses, net” in the period in which it arises.
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2 EREFHEBED
22 BERGETEX @)

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued) SREEE)

(©) Measurement (Continued) © EFZE(E)
Equity instruments ATA
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair AEBBEEREAFEAEMERAKRE -
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present EASEEREREENEMEEKER
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there IR EN A FEKEREE - AFE
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses W REEE BRI IERIGER T EE
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. OB ZRER c ZFRENRENTEE
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised U B R T O R R R S B A AE A B 2 FE AR, ©
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at FVPL NATER 2 BEEZB ABmmN e &
are recognised in “other gains/losses, net” in profit or loss EAFEEHR BT Ealas B
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment BFEICGRERBR) R - LAFER
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not A EEFHT AL MEEKETENRAR
reported separately from other changes in fair value. WERRBERE (X ERERRD) g

ANFEEMEB SR o
(@ Impairment @ JRE

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are subject
to IFRS 9's ECL model. Please refer to Note 3 for details.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (contnued) 2 EAEFHEHEHME(2)

2.2 The material accounting policies (ontinued) 2.2 ERZFTEOR (#)
Offsetting financial instruments KEEMTHE

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within a year and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 29 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 3 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the income tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the
statement of financial position in the areas where the Company,
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)

©

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures and associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
income tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the joint ventures and associates’ undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits provided in various forms of consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees or compensations for
the termination of employment relationship.

@

(b)

Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or
salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, short-
term paid absences, labour union running costs and employee
education costs, etc. The short-term employee benefit liabilities
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group’s legal or constructive obligation for the plan is limited to
the contributions.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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2 EREFHEBEH
2.2 BERSETHBUR (#)

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued) EERR(E)

(b)  Pension obligations (Continued) b) BOELEEE)
Defined benefit plans TEFEfE T ET &I
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined R SR —IEIERTHIEREET
contribution plan. EIE
Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension FERERAFE— T AlE BB IRER
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually BHRhRESEMNesE  FHSEARRT
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service —IEZERARME - FIANFER - REF

and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the profit or loss in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the profit or loss.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

©

@

©

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide other post-retirement benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting methodology
as used for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

®

©@

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the statement of financial position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date

Share-based payment expenses should be recognised over
the period during which the employees provide the relevant
services. This period may commence prior to the grant date. In
this situation, the entity estimates the grant date fair value of the
equity instruments for the purposes of recognising the services
received during the period between service commencement
date and grant date. Once the grant date has been established,
the entity revises the earlier estimate so that the amounts
recognised for services received is ultimately based on the grant
date fair value of the equity instruments.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees
via the A share Option Incentive Scheme (the “Employee Option
Plan”), the executive short-term incentive scheme and share
appreciation. Information relating to these schemes is set out in
Notes 38 and 39.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies Continued) =~ 2 BEAREFTHFRME (&)

2.2 The material accounting policies (ontinued) 22 BERGTHXK &
Employee benefits (Continued) EERR(E)
(@ Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date O HRGBERETH —FZ R RE L A
(Continued) H(E)
Employee options & 5 Bt

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option
Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with
a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g. the
entity’s share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g.
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (contnued) 2 EAEFHEHEHME(2)

2.2 The material accounting policies (ontinued) 2.2 ERZFTEOR (#)
Employee benefits (Continued) EERR(E)
(9) Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date @ ARG BEFETH — BT ER R H
(Continued) H(E)

Restricted share incentive scheme

Under the restricted share incentive scheme, shares are issued
by the Company to the selected employees on the grant date.

The total amount to be expensed which is determined by
reference to the fair value of the granted restricted shares as
of the grant date less the proceeds received from the grant,
is amortised to profit or loss over the relevant service period
being the vesting period of the shares, and recorded under
other reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company.
The proceeds received from the grant are treated as capital
contribution wholly belonging to the participants. The proceeds
received from the grant are firstly recorded under treasury
shares and other payables until each unlocking date when the
relevant vesting conditions are satisfied.

The number of shares expected to vest is estimated based on
the non-market vesting conditions. The estimates are revised
at the end of each reporting period and adjustments are
recognised in profit or loss and other reserves.

R IR RRE a2

RBRBINE R A BDET ) -
A HAA AR T 1B B 31T

$ NGNS dan

XHEBRKSERERH AP REMNR
%lJ \E%E‘%E’J ~HER A B R B KRR
FIREETE - AR RSHR (AN H
ﬁﬁﬁ)%ﬁﬁi{am » WET ARR AR
*ﬁ_/\ﬂgfﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BREREINmE
RERELZHEN2EBANEE MR
ii!i BRERBKREBINAEFIRE L ABER
Bein REM RN IR - EEERGB T
BERENESBRRRER -

B BRBEOROBEDREIET SRS
st - ARAMFESRERRETE
71 MBS M EMRHEPERRE -



162

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
:-v_\é\ﬂjﬁ%ﬁi Bﬂ-%}
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Provision

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises provisions in respect of the estimated liability
to repair or replace for assurance type — warranty. This provision is
calculated based on historical experience of the level of repairs and
replacements.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

If an entity has an onerous contract (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it), the present obligation under the
contract is recognised as a provision.

A restructuring provision is recognised only when the general
recognition criteria for provision are met. The obligation for a
restructuring is often constructive. A constructive restructuring
obligation arises only when there is: (a) a detailed formal plan
identifying the main features of the restructuring; and (b) a valid
expectation in those affected that the entity will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected.

A restructuring plan does not create a present obligation at the
statement of financial position date if it is announced after that date,
even if it is announced before the financial statements are approved.
A sale or termination of a business might fall under the definition of
a restructuring. No obligation arises in respect of restructuring costs
associated with the sale of an operation until the entity is committed
to the sale (that is, there is a binding sale agreement).

Restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not those associated with the entity’s
ongoing activities. Any expected gains on the sale of assets are not
considered in measuring a restructuring provision.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (contnued) 2 EAEFHEHEHME(2)

2.2 The material accounting policies (ontinued) 2.2 ERZFTEOR (#)
Revenue recognition PN i

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale of coal mining machinery, spare parts, auto
parts and rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group also assesses its role as an agent or principal for each
transaction and in an agency arrangement the amounts collected
on behalf of the principal are excluded from revenue. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each
of the activities, as described below.

Sales of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining machineries
and auto parts to its customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. The retention receivables which will be settled by
customers after warranty period, is included in trade receivables.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service is
assurance type, and the Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see
Note 33.

Transportation and handling cost

As the transportation and handling activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are not separate
performance obligation, therefore, related costs are fulfilment costs
which are recognised as assets. The assets are amortised on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or service to which the assets relate. Due to the short
period of transportation, related assets are not material at the date of
the statement of financial position.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Significant financing component

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 3 to 5 years.

Rendering of services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. The service provided by
the Group is mainly related to the service for repairing service.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the
presentation of any unconditional rights to consideration as a
receivable separately from contract assets. The Group has therefore
reclassified its contract assets and contact liabilities in accordance
with IFRS 15.

Contract liabilities are recognised as follows:

e  (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to advance received
from customers for non-cancellable contracts.

e  (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to Research and
Development (“R&D”) reimbursements — The Group recognises
the related reimbursement payment from customer as contract
liabilities and recognises the amount as revenue over the
expected production to customer in future period. The related
R&D costs are capitalised as contract fulfilment cost and
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis consistent with
the pattern of the transfer of the products under production to
the customer as part of cost of sales. Any R&D cost which is not
recoverable or when related production is not proceeded by the
customer is written off to profit or loss directly.

The Group also has the contract related assets, recognised in
relation to nomination fee. Nomination fee represents the fee
paid by the Group to the customers to participate in the tendering
process, and the fee is not refundable once the customer’s contract
is secured. Such payment to customer is capitalised as an asset
and subsequently amortised to deduct against the revenue over the
contract life.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received,

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that
rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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2 EREFHEBEH
2.2 BERSETHBUR (#)

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 The material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

e any initial direct costs, and
e restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is amortised over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.
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3 Financial risk factors

3 SREREX

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include loans receivable
from associates and joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, finance lease receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment,
trade and other receivables, derivative instruments, bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings, transferred trade
receivables and liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@ Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk and price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is
primarily with respect to non-functional currency bank balances,
receivables, borrowings and payables (collectively “Non-
Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using
foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Non-Functional Currency
[tems at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2023
2023128318

ARBTT AR®TR

USsD

EP

RMB’000

Assets BE 885,217
Liahilities affE (236,268)

AEETREREELAERERBREBE RS
BEEEFR  UAFEAEBAEEHFABEND
BEE  AXFEFEBEZSHFTAELMEEEE
MEMEE  BREHERYGE - REEEGIA -
BERE  BHREMEKFIE - TETA  iRTT
TR ReRBeEEY  BHREMBMNTEA -
B8  EAENBESEERARECIENE S E
WHBEABNERE - ZEFERMTAFENSMER
- Az SR TANRR MARERHEZ SRR
MBREIINT - EREEEYEEZEFRAR -
EREESAERERESERE

(a) THi/E bR

AEBEBEETIZATEERR - FIXE
B RBETRBRRERRER - NEBERZH
ZERBRREELFERRND AR -

(i) E¥RkE

AEER BB - WEAXZEID
REE R RMINER R - SNERKR B BiZ
BERS  CHERBEERBREEL -

BRI IEL 78N S [ T S ) T R NG L B X 22K
BFIRE B RIRITAEER - IR - 18
R REN AR SEEE B’ EE ]) -

BEEEEINERE - WNFEREZEF
REMINER FEHHETINERE

REREHR - NEEZENERRIAEB
FRE(EWT

31 December 2022

2022412 A31H
HKD usb EUR HKD
BT e BT BT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN-L BT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

1,981 1,062,259 134,066 10,005

(103,095) - (130393  (280,415) -

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between United States dollars (“USD”)/RMB, Euro (“EUR”)/RMB
and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)/RMB.

REBT2AEITAARYE  BUTEA
RE LB ARERINER -



3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & %2023 12 531 B L5 Z
3 TREBREE@®
(@) TiZE ks )
(i) E¥ERE)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. The rate of 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates but does not consider the effect of derivative
financial instruments. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit for the year and a negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit for the year where the
relevant foreign currencies change 5% against RMB.

TR AEEHERIINE L ARETHE
K2 ES% M GURE 1T © 5%M LR R A
T2EEABNI2|MIMNER RN GURE
e WREREEBHERS B EEH)
B - SUREDITERIEASNETIER
ARSI ERIRR - WHEREHRAE
RBBSRIFE N FHE - T RITES
BTANTZE - THRRBBAINEEAR
WEHS%FMNIBEN - EBRRFARRY
BRI - BB RFRBNRD

If the currency strengthens  fil &% i,

against RMB AREFE
If the currency weakens HEHS
against RMB AREERZE

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

20231243180 2022512 A318
usD EUR HKD Usb EUR HKD
ESH B BT e BT BT

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE ARETT ENGL-SWUNEUN-::S

28,104 712 75 39,066 (5,903) 375

(28,104) (712) (75 (39,066) 5,003 (375)
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see Note 33 for details). Currently,
the Group does not have a specific policy to manage its interest
rate risk, but management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at
the end of each reporting period and the excepted changes in
interest rates taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and being held constant throughout the reporting period.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings had been 50

basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year

F AR A

3 sEEREZE®)
(@) TiZRE k)
(i) FIEER

AEERT S E AL R0 AT
BeRBFIERS o 55T - AEBELES
EHEEEEFIERS - EEREGHY
BEFRABLEABEREBHHEA
RIS -

T S E AT R E B S R & 5
R R U A T B B A 3R 4 )
REHB B ARERE RRBTE) B
E o

it F B EEBF X _EFH50EEE - MAA

Huh Z &N - AIF BRI R A KR
Ao

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
(28,115) (28,406)

The post-tax profit for the year would have increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all
other variables were held constant.

4% 2 48 B e0 FIE TRB0MEES - MATA
HABEBTE - AIFNRBILRTISE L
EECE
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(@ Market risk (continued)
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3 ERERBEEE
(@) MIZEE @)

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the statement
of financial position either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (Note 23) or at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) (Note 23). To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.

The Group’s equity investments include both publicly traded
investments and investments in unlisted companies.

With the 10% change of the price of those equity securities
including both listed companies and unlisted companies, the
Group’s other comprehensive income and profit before tax
would increase or decrease by approximately RMB40.8 million
and RMB1.3 million (2022: RMB79.7 million and RMBO.1
million respectively), respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative
assets, loans receivable from associates and a joint venture, pledged
bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and
cash equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the
Group placed them in or entered into the contract with the banks with
high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

(iii) EiEERE

REBAZEFEREMEENRAE S
BRRER - XRBEARRRDBRBIARF
Bt 8 B R E B A B2 m e (T
B)RARTEE B HEB AES (M
i23) - RERERAFFKEMELERN
ERER  AEEREREBESG SR
A& Z B R IR A 68 B 3R 57 /9 (R H1E
T

AEENBEREBRREARZZIRERR
JELTMARMIRE -

M2 SR AFHERHIR10%E S (BIE
FWARIRAETNAR)  NEBEREM
2 EME KRR A& 5 RIS sk
DAREWSEETLRARBIIAET
(2022%F : DRIBARKEOTEETRA
REBOIHEETT) °

b) EER

EEERKEE S REMEBKTOR - EHE
FEWRRIE - REEMFOR - #BIEER  0T4E
BE  BUBEARN—Be20EENR B
ERRITER  REMREFEY -

BERRBERRTER  Re KRS EE
W - MR RTA AEIARNER - A%
B SAETENBERFORITAERS
FTTIAR ©

AEECDFIEBRERABEREERIT - A
BEEVBE N REECERLRHEAELPIRT
TEFEITHE - AEETFERMETE
Fr o RERIREUREE R R BET o
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3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SRERBREE®

() Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit
limits to individual customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business
of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the Group generally
receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash from
customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts,
normally a credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparties’ ability to meet its
obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of counterparties

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of counterparties

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of counterparties, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparties.

(b)

S ] A e
= 5 R e E)

AN AREEREHE T ENEFEFPNEER
B RS ERE 5 U RR A Bl S5 - DARE
RBLEEN @ F IR R SR EEE - LS
RIERWETME - ARE— RN EEMA
AEFEEREERELRS AN (RE
RERERL0%) » Wit TEREBERRE
FRTIBOREEM - sAEZTHHME @ &F
P—RERIEIRNEESR -

WAFE » AEBEDEERRIHERE TR
RE - NEHAZTERENE 5 REMEN
HIA - ARAREERR  ARMACSBERIK
REMBER NP EMRITEL RIEHRE
* o BMRNEEEREEENRBRTAK o

REEEEBR S EREERHEL AR
REREHENEERR S ERERZEM -
RAHEEERRETBERN  AEEKEE
RS B ERE SRR BN HER B B2
HEBREITHLE - BREEEERENBE
ESFBEEEERIBEAERE - LIFHHAR
WA RBR B P 458 R WS RBE N R
RE=ZEEANAIRMLER - REETE BRI E
BSHARAEAEEER  UTERLERE
MAEEEE -

. BB PHEREERIERIEHLRE
ATHEE - BRBERUTHEOR
IR E A

o HISEREMERSEEHLREAR
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
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3 ERERBEEE

(b)

The Group has the receivables from different customers and debtors
operate in different industries. In the meantime, customer portfolio
basis are also different between China and other countries. Thus, the
Group classified the above assets into below categories:

e (ategory 1: trade receivables — coal mining machinery group

e (ategory 2: trade receivables — ASIMCO group

e (ategory 3: trade receivables — SEG Automotive Germany

GmbH (“SEG”) and its subsidiaries (“SEG group”)

e (ategory 4: notes receivables — commercial notes

e (ategory 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

e (ategory 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

e (ategory 7: other receivables

e (ategory 8: transferred trade receivables

e (ategory 9: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

= N
= B2 Ak )

AEBEEFERE TRTENER MMEE
Ao R PEEEMERZHANEFHESE
AR - At NEEK EREES D /IOT
15l -

R BB REGEUE - AR
R« BB ERGE - DRI E

¥ RI3 : & 5 FE U FKIE — SEG Automotive
Germany GmbH([SEG|) & E B A =) ([ SEG
£E )

R4 EREE -EERE

KRS ¢ IR — RITHE IR

516 : BhETHE WA K & UK
A

7 - EtbREMRIA
$R8 : EREMNE ZEUIR

BRI UATEFEAHESH AERSR
MEREE
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 to 36 month before 31 December
2023 or 31 December 2022 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the Producer Price Index (“PPI”) of coal mining and
washing industry and Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) to be
the most relevant factors for coal mining machinery group, and
general PPl and GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant factors for auto parts
group and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

3 SRERBREE®

(b)

N

5 A
= 5 R e E)

@

B 5 RWFIR

A& e A B B 1S S R 9SR AL
% RBEFERNERERRETE
P B SIEMGRIRMTRHIEEEE - /3
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REERBREFHBLEHADHE -

TEEE 1B R IE 5 B 2023F 12 531 H sk
20224E12 A31 B 122361 A EARS £ 1
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 SREBEEE
(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERB @)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) )y BEIEWEEGE)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables of different 72023512 A31 BT RERIE 5 K GRIA

categories as at 31 December 2023 are listed as follows: EREBBEENT

Category 1: Coal mining machinery group ZEFT : R IBHEEE

Over Over Over Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2 years
Within ~ butwithin  butwithin  butwithin  but within Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2years 3Jyears 3Jyears Total

BENX BBIX BE-F BEWF
WA E180XA  B-FR  EWER  B=Fh  BB=F At
RMB'OOO ~ RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'0O0  RMBI0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Trade receivables gaEKTE
At 31 December 2023 20235128318
Expected loss rate kil spp 0% % 5% 2% 50% 100%
Gross carying amount (excludng A AE (T EIEEMES)
receivables assessed indviduall)  FFEEIELMZIE) 2,031,044 1,131,547 1,014,462 670,842 96,027 49260 4,993,182
Loss allowance provision EEEE - 22,631 50,723 134,168 48,014 49,260 304,79

Individually impaired receivables — {ERIiFIE U EE
Loss allowance provision EiRkE

4,995 26420 102,839 22,481 59906 216,641
4,690 20,089 45,604 13,797 95,059 139,739

Total loss allowance provision ~ EigH &4 %

21321 70,812 179,172 61,811 104,819 444535

Trade receivables R EhEE
At 31 December 2022 R2022512A31A
Expected loss rate gkl =ppe 0% 2% 5% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  BREE(E (T EHEE AR T

recelvables assessed individuall) — A)FEUFIE) 1,066,494 1,025,989 1,124,118 736,386 58,544 64,051 4075582
Loss allowance provision BiERE - 20,520 56,206 147,217 29212 64,051 317,326
Individually impaired receivables — {EBI3EIE U EUE 700 1,212 26,409 108,229 86,030 101,925 324,505
Loss allowance provision EERE 700 1212 14,180 43475 21,742 88,125 175,434

Total loss allowance provision ~ FEREAE 700 2713 70386 190,752 57014 152176 492,760
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Credit risk (continued)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

Category 2: ASIMCO group

3 TREBEE®

EERE @)

() EBmEREE(E)
BRI THHIEE

(b)

Over Over Over
90 days 180 days 1 year
Within ~ but within but within but within Over
90 days 180 days 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
BEOX  BBIBX BBEB-F
90XA  {B180KA B—FR ERER BAmE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Trade receivables g5 EWE
At 31 December 2023 R2023512A31R
Expected loss rate EHERE 0% 0% 25% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  BRE 42 (E (e 3R RI
receivables assessed individually) A5 E BN FA) 791,415 304,065 30,908 2,598 953 1,138,522
Loss allowance provision EERE - - 1,121 1,299 9,536 18,562
Individually impaired receivables  {EIIJjgi (& & U ZUE - - - 5,858 4917 10,775
Loss allowance provision EERE - - - 914 4917 5,831
Total loss allowance provision 518/ &% - - 1,721 2,213 14,453 24,393
Trade receivables g5 EWHE
At 31 December 2022 R2022512A31R
Expected loss rate EHEEEX 0% 1% 18% 83% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding 85 E 48 (& (T35 €@
receivables assessed individually)  ETfE #0 Y ERIE) 573,970 239,141 54,937 7,481 6,335 881,864
Loss allowance provision EEEE - 1,19 10,107 6,172 6,335 23,810
Individually impaired receivables (&R} (& FE UL FE - 914 - 701 4216 5,831
Loss allowance provision ERERE - 914 - 701 4216 5,831
Total loss allowance provision 518 B8 %E - 2,110 10,107 6,873 10,551 29,641

Category 3: SEG group and contract related assets

The trade receivable balance of SEG group and contract related
assets are mainly related with SEG group’s customers, who are
the global OEMs in auto industry. The Group assessed the credit
losses of trade receivable balance of SEG group individually using
simplified approach. As at 31 December 2023, RMB49 million
(2022: RMB47 million) has been provided as life time loss
allowance for trade receivables.

FF)3 - SEGEE K & A6 & =

SEGEE M ERMBHEEENE 5 BKEIE
HETZHESECEENE,AEHR  HAR
BOAEITEMNRBRERER - AEEIK
AL E¥ISECRE & 5 U IR ATER
EEEBEITERFTE o 7202351231
B BB SHEUGIEE TR EFERNE
BREERARMKIOAEIIL(2022F : AR
MATEBIT) °
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(b) Credit risk (continued)
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3 ERERBEEE
b) EERB @)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes receivables
Category 4. notes receivables — commercial notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
commercial notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2023, RMB6.0 million (2022: RMB7.2
million) were provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes
receivables — commercial notes.

Category 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
bank accepted notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2023, RMBO.1 million (2022: RMBO.1
million) were provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes
receivables-bank accepted notes.

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables
Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables are mainly
due from the customers of coal mining machinery group. The
Group has provided financial leasing or long term payment plan
to certain customers because these customers are mainly state
owned companies or guaranteed by third parties with special
credit profile. The Group has granted a relatively long repayment
plan to the customers based on the credit assessment. The
Group assesses the credit losses of finance lease receivables
and long-term receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2023, RMB69 million (2022:
RMB93 million) were provided as life time loss allowance for
finance lease receivables and long-term receivables.

Other receivables
Category 7: Other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage approach to measure
expected credit loss (“ECL”). Other receivables comprise:
advances to staff, deposit and others. Since the credit risk
of other receivables are considered not significantly increase
since initial recognition, therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months ECL. As at 31 December 2023,
RMB100 million (2022: RMB106 million) were provided as loss
allowance for other receivables.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FEW R
Hhl4 - EHFE - B REE

AEERAZREAHBEREE -HEE
BN EEBEEITEBIFE o 72023512
A318 - EREKEE - mEREE2
B AEIERBARE60E BT (20226F ¢
ARBI2HET) -

KR ¢ JEW IR — IRTTAE IR

REEFRA =AU IR — SRITHE
HEENEEERETERIFEE - 12023
F12A318 - AEEFEREE — RITE
HEERTIRREASEBREARKIIE
Br(20226F : ARWEOIEETT) ©

BMERERYUFRER R EKE
FEhl6 - BEHEEWHER R EWITE

BERERKFERRBERAEETER
EREEEREERSE - ARNETEPE
TAERE¥LBAERAIEERINE
ZHER  RAREERZERFRER
ERERRAANRGTE - AEEERIERE
BiHEREL R D AR ROERTE -
AEEFRABCEERERERKRIER
REBUGEETTERIEE BB - ¥
2023F12A31H * EFREAEEUGRIA
MR RIBHE R AT E SR EE
ARBECIE B T(20226F « ARKBES
JL) e

Hth YR TE
27« B A ER IR

7N [ E B B B B T R A AR RN 05T R T
I =PEEE AT ETE R E B EIB ([ T8
BEE]) - AtRIRERE  mEIR
o e REA o AR E A EBGEIENE
BREBHAR A B SRR mEEg
me BREREEERIEAEHREES
E518 - FA2023F 12 A31H - Bt EMAEK
FIEFHEEEREEARE1008 & (2022
£ ARK106EETT) °
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Credit risk (continued)
(v) Transferred trade receivables
Category 8: Transferred trade receivables

Please refer to Note 35 for the detailed description of
transferred trade receivables. The Group assesses the credit
loss of transferred trade receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2023, the related loss allowance
was RMB14 million (2022: Nil).

(vi) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Category 9: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to asset
management products that are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. The maximum exposure at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of these investments
of RMB5,944,162,000 (2022: RMB5,228,176,000). As of 31
December 2023, the Group assesses the credit loss of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and made a fair value
loss of RMB272 million due to the high uncertainty on the
collection of these investments. And management believes that
no additional significant losses are anticipated as most of the
investments are high rating bond investments in open market
managed by reputable financial institutions.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group is required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 SREBEEE
() Liquidity risk (continued) © mBERERE@E
Weighted  On demand Total
average  orless than 3 months 1year 2years Over  undiscounted Garrying
The Group 150 interest rate 3 months tofyear  to2years  to5years Syears  cashflows amount
BEXT, AR
METHHE  HWMEAR MEARIE 1226 2855 BiBsE BERBAE K
(% per annum) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(5% ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETLE ARETR BT ARETR
Asat 31 December 2023 R023F12831H
Non-derivatve financil liabiiies —~ FEATA S BEE
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTE
(excluding non-financiel labilfies) ~ (FaE3E2RIE(RE) 9362913 2,106,391 - - - 11480304 11,489,304
Liahiites associated with translerred 7 2125 5 lisiE
frads receivables BBNEE 22812 - - - - 212812 212812
Borrowings L 283 817,559 50912 311,243 3220339 - 7658263 7303237
Lease liabilties E5E 286 97,666 229,882 295,779 13131 1804303 3,165,001 1,347,628

Derivative financial iabiltes fTEsRas
Designated as hedging nstuments 1872 A¥/H LE 8,197 3,256 - - - 11,453 11,453

10519147 28480651 3407022 397710 1804303 22536833  20,364634

Weighted O demand Total

average  orlessthan 3 months 1yearto 2yearsto  undiscounted Camying

The Group 158 interest rate 3 months fo1year 2 years 5 years cashflows amount
BER AR

MEFENE  PRER  MEAEIE 1208 E5F ReREUE HEE

(% per annum) RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(BF%) ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR  ARETL  ARET:

As at 31 December 2022 02127318
Non-Gerivatve financial liabiities ¥iricpat
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTE

(excluding non-financial liabiities) (TaiEEspaR) 8,476,537 1,801,580 - - 02817 10278117
Liabiiies associated ith transferred SR 2B E B EUFIE

trade receivables BENEE 21,616 24779 - - 269411 269411
Borrowings EE 240 1,498,438 1,866,920 543,475 3,974,968 7,883,801 7,549,970
Lease liahilties fgak 290 59,353 109,592 146,353 1,207,144 1,522,442 1,397,002
Derivative financial liablties (il
Not designated as hedging instruments  MER B4R T E 17,395 - - - 1739 173%

10073339 4,025,887 689,628 5182112 19971166 19,511,895
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

©)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next one year from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed notes receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these notes fail to honour their obligations, please refer to Note 43
for details.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2; The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
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(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial instruments
$RIE

Financial assets at fair value
through OCI, non-current

PUSToE EEE RN
Hi2EhaNeE
& 3EREH

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

WATEEREEFA
BRNEeREE

Derivative financial instruments
PTHEERMIE

Derivative financial instruments
fTESRMIA

Derivative financial instruments
PTHEERMIE

Derivative financial instruments
fTESRMTIA

BIMEERMEBR N AR AR 2023551

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

Fair value as at 31 December 2023
R2023F12AN A2 AT E

Listed equity securities in A-share
- Nil (2022: 392,987,000)

POAIRE) LT RAE S
—42(20224F : 392,987,000)

Listed equity securities in A-share

— RMB4,430,000 (2022: Ni)
FAARREY) R A E 5

— NRH4,430,00070 (2022« 48)

Forward foreign exchange contract not
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB23,533,000
(2022: RMB4,890,000)

TET AR TEMEEINES R
— AR 23,533,00070
(20204 + AJR1#:4,890,0007T)

Forward foreign exchange contract
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB10,334,000 (2022: Nil)
EEARHPIANEBINEAR
— AR#10,334, 00070 (20225 © )

Forward foreign exchange contract not
designated as hedging instruments
- Nil (2022: RMB17,395,000)
TMEEBHH T ANERNELR
— (20225 : ANRH17,395,0007T)

Forward foreign exchange contract
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB11,453,000 (2022: Nil)
EEARHPIANEBINEAR
— ARHE11,453, 00070 (20225 + )

e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

3 emAKEZR®

0 s TAEZAFEEFZE@®

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DYESH

Level 1
E1R

Level 1
b

Level 2
Eo

Level 2
EVEA

Level 2
Eo

Level 2
EVHA

HETERERBARE

Quoted bid prices in an active market
WERTSMR EAEB

Quoted bid prices in an active market
WERTSMR EAEB

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
hased on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

BHRBELRE - RRRSRENBENREREE
E(REREAHRNTHEZENER) REREH
Fl& - BiRTREEFANEERB LT MR o

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
hased on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

BRBRHRSTE - ARBLRENHEDBERHE
E(RaREAHRNTRREHER) RERRS
F& - BiE0 REEFHNE SRR AR -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
hased on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

BHRBELRE - RRRSRENBENREREE
E(REREAHRNTEZENER) REREH
Fl& - BiRTREEFANEERB LT MR o

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
hased on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

BERRENE - AREERENEENREBRAE
E(REREBHANTRREHER) RERRS
F% - BT REEFHNE SRR R -
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial instruments
$MIE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

MATEEAEZEA
BRfeRERE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

AT EEEEZEEA
BafepEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

KATE B ALZHA
ERfeRERE

Financial assets at fair value
through OCI, current

WATE 8 RESBHA
Hiv2EAlmmemE
& A

Fair value as at 31 December 2023
RABE1ANBZATE

Other financial assets — assets
management products
— RMB4,660,138,000
(2022: RMB4,077,805,000)
HttemEE-EEEEER
— AR #4,660,138,0007C
(2020% + AR H4,077,805,0007T)

Certificate of deposits
—RMB673,023,000
(2022: RMB578,258,000)

TF3E — AR™673,023,0007C
(20227 = AR ¥578,258,0007T)

Other financial assets — principal guaranteed

financial products and principal
non-guaranteed financial products
- RMB605,275,000
(2022: RMB570,817,000)

Hih 2@ EAE - RS RER KR
A& RE R — AR605,275,0007T
(20225 = ARH570,817,0007)

Notes receivables
— RMB3,848,095,000
(2022: RMB4,494,325,000)
JEIETE — AR #3,848,095,0007C
(2022 + AR ¥54,494,325,0007T)

3 SRERBREE®

d €mTAEZAFEEFFE@®

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DVHEER

Level 2
EpE

Level 2
EpE

Level 2
Fo

Level 3
538

REFEREXABABE

Fair values of investment schemes of which underlying
assets including debt securities, shares, base and options
contracts have been determined based on quotes from
market makers, funds administrators or alternative
pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant inputs are market interest rates, net asset values
and latest redemption prices or transaction prices of the
respective investment schemes.

BRAEREREES K ERRAESONE
BHEANATENERETSHER - ESEENAK
BRABRH A BB NEMEBRITRNRERE
E o HRREENBASRATSTE  REEE
REHENEEFERTIBEEBRIRHER -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
based on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that
reflects the expected return rates ranged from 2.60% to
3.85%. The higher the expected retum rate, the higher the
fair value.

ERMRBSNE - ARBLMENBENEEER
8 BRATRMBARGEMLE(NTF260%E
3.85%) 8% - BHIOHEME - ATELR -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
based on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that
reflects the expected return rates ranged from 2.90% to
3.46%. The higher the expected retum rate, the higher the
fair value.

BHRALRE - KRRERENBENRESR
S8 - B RBEHEREMLE (N T290%2
3.46%) 8%  BEIEHEME - ATELS ¢

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
based on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that
reflects the expected discounted rate ranged from 0.90%
t0 3.95%. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
value.

BRSNS - AR RENEENRREAS
B FBIR0.90%Z3.95% ML KA © BRIR KA -
AFEBIE
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)
Financial instruments Fair value as at 31 December 2023
LRIA R2023F12A31 A 2 A YA

Financial assets at fair value Equity interest in unlisted company
through OCI, non-current with no open market price quote
WATEREREZHTA  -RMB408,159,000
Hi2EhaNeRE (2022: RMB403,889,000)
7 - FEENE WEARTIZRENFE LM ATRE
1 — AR 408,159,007
(20204 = AR¥:403,889,0007T)

Financial assets at fair value Equity interest in unlisted company
through profit or loss with no open market price quote

MATEEEHZE A -RMB1,296,000
BafeNEE (2022: RMB1,296,000)

TEDFISRENE LT D ARA
1% — AR 1,296,007
(2022%F = AR¥1,296,0007T)

Financial assets at fair value Equity interest in unlisted company
through profit or loss, with no open market price quote
non-current - RMB6,872,000

WAFE2EEZEEA (2022: i)

BRNemEE WENR I RENIE LT ARRA

1% — AR 6,872,0007T (20224 = £E)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year.

In 2022, the Group transferred an equity interest investment from
Level 3 to Level 1 due to the investment listed in an active market,
and there were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 in 2023.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of current financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

3 emAKEZR®

0 s TAEZAFEEFZE@®

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DFESH

Level 3
E3R

Level 3
EEREN

Level 3
E3R

HETERERBABE

Valuation multiples. The fair value is based on EV/EBIT
multiple and discount for lack of marketability (‘DLOM”).
The higher the EV/EBIT multiple, the higher the fair value.
The higher the DLOM, the lower the fair value.

ALY - AFENERVBIERRHZ TSR
PR ([H2 s mBLaR ) o EUEBITEEH
® ATENS - BpzmenEtRREs AT
(AR -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on expected volatility, discount for lack of marketability
(“DLOM”), and discount rate. The higher the expected
volatility, the lower the fair value. The higher the DLOM, the
lower the fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

BHRALNE - KRB RENRBE HREES
KB (i TS MBI ([ Bz mig it ah
B))RERE - BEHEEMA - ATEWE - 5
ChERAMLERNS  ATEYE - BREY
& ATEWE -

Valuation multiples. The fair value is based on EV/EBIT
multiple and discount for lack of marketability (‘DLOM”).
The higher the EV/EBIT multiple, the higher the fair value.
The higher the DLOM, the lower the fair value.

HERY - ATENERVBIZARGE TiERE
PR ([Hz TR nBILaEER |) - EEBITE B
& ATESS - RzmERERERES AT
TEHE -

FREIREZE2AR 2 [ R

R2022%F - REEK —ARAERIRE B E3
TEBEEF 1A RERZRER GRS L
M BER2023% - 1R E IR 2 B0
B

BEE2RR - PR MTERAR NIREIHR AT
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4 BEREBTTHERGTFTTIEREREZNE

of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
date of the statement of financial position. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information such as actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of customers, actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2023 was RMB88,283,000 (2022: RMB131,905,000). Further
details are set out in Note 19.
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

The management considers the potential impairment based on the
recoverable amount. The intangible assets with finite useful lives are
reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that would indicate
potential impairment may include, but are not limited to, the significant
change in technology associated with the intangible assets. Determining
whether intangible assets is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which intangible assets belong. The
recoverable amount of CGUs at the end of the reporting period is based on
the value-in-use calculation which requires the management of the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

Residual values of property and plant and equipment

The Group estimates the residual values and related depreciation charges
for its items of property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the management’s experience of the actual useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and actions
of its competitors. The management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are less than previously estimated.

Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of pension obligations. Details of key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 36.

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4 BEREBTTHERGTFTTIEREREZNE

of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of provision

The Group makes provisions for product warranty (only assurance type),
onerous contracts and restructuring cost. Management estimates the
related provisions based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent that it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and that the amount can be reliably estimated.

As for onerous contracts, the Group assessed at the date of the statement
of financial position on whether unavoidable costs of meeting contractual
obligations have exceeded the economic benefits expected to be received,
and made provision for these onerous contracts based on the estimated
least net cost of exiting from the contracts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment properties

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and investment properties to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. Determining whether property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment properties are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use
of the assets and the fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use
calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing, the applicable tax rates, and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are set out in Note 24.

Estimation of the fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.
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BERRATSHTERE - WAEEEZERMLIA
BITERAL - MBS Sefhat - RIERR
S

REFARME - AEERYBMAKE BFHER
BiITaREEMTAIE2NK AR D EBENES
AN - WARRR N ZEEE & RN RE
PRANF L% E A RIE R -

WE - BB ERE  ERAREENMK
BYEARE

AEESRMEDE  BEMRE  EREEER
KREMENREE  AEEEEAEATRBRZ
SEECHBERERE - BEDE - BERRE -
EREEEMIBEMELSTRERL IRE SR
(ANEEEABERAFERLEXAMETRD
E)ELEE - EAEEFEERZER A ES
SEEAZSEERARRHESEENRKRE
MERABMBAEUAERE - MERARKESR
EBREMAL - BIRRELEANRERE
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

5 Revenue 5 WA

Year ended 31 December 2023

B Z2023F12A31HILFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERBRE RESETIN #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT AR¥T T
Sales of auto parts HEEIAEE - 17,462,835 17,462,835
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIS ZEHSHE 11,727,518 - 11,727,518
Revenue from steel and other il & H A R A E Z R
materials trading 3,746,353 67,281 3,813,634
Sales of spare parts for coal IR E
mining machinery 2,536,593 - 2,536,593
Sales of other coal mining equipment  E b SRR B HIHE 593,642 - 593,642
Other revenue Eablg A 249,699 39,315 289,014
18,853,805 17,569,431 36,423,236
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE202F12A31HIEFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUER R RBERET M 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBT T ARETTT
Sales of auto parts REBETEMREE - 15,170,886 15,170,886
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIS ZERSHE 9,239,798 - 9,239,798
Revenue from steel and other i & H A R A E 5 R
materials trading 4,330,804 74,774 4,405,578
Sales of spare parts for coal R RIEE
mining machinery 2,399,574 - 2,399,574
Sales of other coal mining equipment  EL{h FREE LAV E 636,784 - 636,784
Other revenue EmUA 150,348 40,338 190,686
16,757,308 15,285,998 32,043,306

All revenues are recognised at a point in time.

BB WA R — B R B HERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

6 Segment information 6 oEER
Information reported to the chief executive of the Company, being the HERDE LD BRBFERAQRZERITEAE
CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of (BAEBLERRE ) MENEREP RIS IRHE
segment performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or WS Mo RISTESRE - A8 s - BIBEERT KBRS
provided. Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are (i) RIS - AEE M A] 2 W 264 () RIS H B
manufacture of coal mining machinery; and (i) manufacture of auto parts. W (i) BE R E T - WL E DA KA
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable REEA2RHE o

segments of the Group.

CODM primarily uses a measure of segment net profit to assess the FELBRREZZEFREFFERG 2 TEL
performance of operating segments. EOEBRIR o

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REB R R EEIZ T 25 RS E D ERI DT
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepares the segment T o REEEFNRER D BwE - T ?Eéﬁii

reporting for net profit excluding the impact of impairment of goodwill, FAET S RN ERENTE
which is related to the manufacture of auto parts segment.

Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total

SUSRTERW  SUESET IRt Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETTT ARBETT ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2023 BZE2023F12831HILFE

Segment revenue 2 EBUTA 18,853,805 17,569,431 36,423,236
Segment net profit excluding DEFERHE - AEE
impairment of goodwill AERE 3,262,067 283,149 3,545,216

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12831HILFE
Segment revenue 7 EBUTA 16,757,308 15,285,998 32,043,306

Segment net profit excluding DEBFEFE -
impairment of goodwill TEEFERE 2,553,138 351,518 2,904,656
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
6 oEERE

For the year ended December 31
BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT

Segment revenue and consolidated revenue D EBIRA R ERE WA 36,423,236 32,043,306
Segment net profit excluding impairment of goodwill SECENE - TEEMERE 3,545,216 2,904,656
Impairment of goodwill [EESEAE (43,622) (276,651)
Consolidated profit for the year FRETE T 3,501,594 2,628,005
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by REBMEERBRBRIZMELED MO
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepared the segment T o REERBREENBBEERED BHRE - T
reporting for total assets and liabilities excluding the impact of goodwill, FRHEREETE TGO PEFMNEENTE -

which is related to the manufacture of auto parts segment.

As at 31 December
M2H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETIT

SEGMENT ASSETS DEERE

Manufacture of coal mining machinery B IR 33,365,207 29,924,697
Manufacture of auto parts BT TR 15,933,529 14,412,987
Total segment assets woHEE 49,298,736 44,337,684
Goodwill SRS 88,283 131,905
Consolidated assets BEEE 49,387,019 44,469,589
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SEEE

Manufacture of coal mining machinery BU s R TR M 18,136,449 16,453,699
Manufacture of auto parts B ST T 9,369,241 9,377,609

Consolidated liabilities

RERE 27,505,690 25,831,308
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEHER®
Geographical information Hofs &
The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as WARE P BB DT ¢
follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

The PRC =a 23,562,860 21,716,648
Germany =k 4,343,077 4,337,463
Other countries HABER 8,517,299 5,989,195
36,423,236 32,043,306
Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the consolidated DEBEERE ,?/\Hﬁ%atﬁ%%*ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁri 2%
financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations BERBOHFEE REEERMEETOR

of the segment and the physical location of the assets.

2023
20234
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets

REERTR wE

THEE BEEXNEEA FRBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®TR AR®T T

Manufacture of coal mining machinery &3 B iR Ak

The PRC 2] 33,144,260 672,297 675,294
Germany = 19 - -
Other countries HEMER 221,496 - 1,088
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R T IR
The PRC =] 8,590,560 104,887 764,406
Germany %= 2,612,562 - 81,606
Other countries HMEZR 4,801,423 - 215,556
Total segment assets BB E 49,370,320 777,184 1,737,950
Elimination Epec| (71,584)
Unallocated: Kofe

Goodwill eSS 88,283
Total assets as per consolidated GEMBSIRNRIT R EEE

statement of financial position 49,387,019
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IIV_\%ﬂji%iﬁéé Bﬂ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEHER®E
Geographical information (Continued) Ho I3 & # )
2022
20224
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets
REEE R TR NE
DHEE AELENRE EMENEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETTT ARBETTT

Manufacture of coal mining machinery Y15 E FEHEAR,

The PRC 2] 29,738,194 186,594 692,146
Germany = 77 - -
Other countries EMER 128,104 - 346
Manufacture of auto parts Bl RE T A
The PRC aa 7,237,882 92,274 656,381
Germany =E 2,593,778 - 137,065
Other countries HbEE 4,696,207 - 241,388
Total segment assets BoHERE 44,394,242 278,868 1,727,326
Elimination Ekic! (56,558)
Unallocated: RO
Goodwill [GES 131,905
Total assets as per consolidated GRAMEIRR KR RNEEE
statement of financial position 44,469,589
Information about major customers FERPER
No customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for HE2023F R2022F 12 AN BILFE - WEEARE
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. BB ABIBI0BHEF -
7 Other income 7 HMA
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Government grants (Note) BT B (M 3E) 290,798 315,104
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITIFR - REAEUEIE
receivables and finance lease receivables BbE M E W IE R F B 201,319 161,326
492,117 476,430
Note: Government grants mainly represent government grants received from the MisE : BB Z MM EMEEMERI RRUAE
local government for compensation of research and development expenses ROFTEE B T B H7 BURS BB KT B - &£
incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s new plant which are AT ELERKABEERFERFHERNERELT
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss when related expenses UG A BB 4825 o

incurred or over the useful lives of the relevant assets.



1 92 Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
8 Other losses, net 8 HMEES:

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Net fair value loss on derivative financial instruments THEEmTARFEBEFA (86,556) (73,221)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 19) BRI A (FFE19) (43,622) (276,651)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44) HE—HMBE AR/ RE

(Hf7E44) = 195,494

Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair AT ETEBHEEE ABa
value through profit or loss MEMEENATERZFRE 43,179 94,989
Net foreign exchange gain or loss INEW R S SRR 84,138 37,760

Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BB KR AR ER
equipment, and intangible assets BEMZFE 3,701 4,800

Dividend from financial assets at fair value AT EEBEEEHT AEE
through profit or loss HEREEMSRE 89 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) ~ #12% - = K& ERUE (F15E16) (113) (1,491)
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 20) & E R E (M3E20) (290) (99,116)
Others Hit (13,730) (2,598)
(13,204) (120,034)

9 Finance costs 9 BERAK

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Interests on bank borrowings RITHEER S 330,225 226,682
Interests on lease liabilities HEAEF L 38,108 38,728
Discounting charge Prnp A 20,268 -

388,601 265,410
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10 Income tax expense

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

10 FAEBIRAX

2022
20224
RMB’000
ARET T
Current income tax BIHAFTIS S 671,245 496,479
Deferred income tax EIEFTSH (54,577) (34,406)
616,668 462,073
(@) PRC corporate income tax (@) PEEMEH

The corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on the statutory
profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the applicable
tax rate in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after
adjustments on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

In accordance with the PRC tax laws, standard corporate income tax
rate is 25%. The Company and certain subsidiaries are qualified for
new/high-tech technology enterprises status and enjoyed preferential
income tax rate of 15% during 2023 and 2022. In addition, pursuant
to the Announcement on Increasing the Pre-tax Deductions in
Support of Technological Innovation (Announcement [2022] No. 28)
issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration
and the Ministry of Science and Technology, during the period from
1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022, the cost of newly purchased
equipment can be fully deducted against taxable profit in 2022, and
entitled to additional pre-tax deduction at 100% for these certain
qualified new/high-tech technology enterprises.

According to the Notice on Improving the Pre tax Deduction Ratio
of Research and Development Expenses (CS [2018] No. 99)
and relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation, and the Ministry of Science and
Technology, as well as the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation on Further Improving the
Pre tax Deduction Policy of Research and Development Expenses (CS
[2022] No. 13), the Company and certain subsidiaries are entitled to
additional pre-tax deduction of research and development expenses
at 100% during 2023 and 2022.

Germany profits tax

Applicable profit tax rate of Germany is 29% (2022: 29%). During the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no profit tax has been
provided due to accumulated losses as there is no estimated taxable
profits for the current and the prior years.

EEMEH([EEMEN ) BREHBERBK
ERERE A BTE ML E A RIREE
BMERABEREAERS - R EHEHNA
BHmE BAFRI T AIHRAE TRZR
B o

RBEAPEF L  ZEDEMSHE A% o R
20234 }20224F » AR A R E o M B A E R
AR EEER  ZX15%NEEMSEH
Ko fpHh - IRIEBTEGED - BB REHE R
(AR MAZ BRHRAIFRATINBR N ERNRE)
([2022]55285% ) » 720224E10 A1 B 2022412
A31HERE A REMEEERMEDN
B SRAER AR AT 2022 FE SR B AP 2 530
% o I A SN 00%EFL AT FOAE o

REIEED - BB RS ERRER T
FTHARE AT AT NG INER B 8B A ) (B B
[2018]55995% ) R B RAFRE + LA R BT BB R BiT%
AR AN E — PR EWMEEB B A IR0
BRI RN E Y BF[2022)8135%) « AAFIRE
T B BB A B 720234 1220224 7] = E8IM00%HY
AT BRI -

REFIED

=B A A RIS 8 R 529% (20224F © 29%) ©
HE2023F 2022512 AT A IEEE - ;R
RAFEE - B RHEREREE  RRA
ER B FEWEGTEREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2023 12 A31 8 L /&

10 Income tax expense (Continued)
(c) Others

Applicable profit tax rates of the Group’s other subsidiaries are
between 9% and 34.01% for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

(d) Certain subsidiaries of the Group are within the scope of the
Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD”) Economy —
Global Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules (“Pillar Two”) model rules.
Pillar Two legislation will come into effect from 1 January 2024 in
those impacted countries. Since the Pillar Two legislation was not
effective at the reporting date, the Group has no related current
tax exposure. The Group applies the exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related
to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in the amendments to IAS 12
issued in May 2023.

The Group is in the process of assessing its exposure to the Pillar
Two legislation for when it comes into effect. Due to the complexities
in applying the legislation and calculating GloBE income, the
quantitative impact of the enacted or substantively enacted legislation
is not yet reasonably estimable. The entity plans to engage with tax
specialists to assist them with applying the legislation.

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense:

10 Fi8HMAZ ()

©)

Hith

HE2023F M202F 12 A B ILEE - A&
EEMMBAREANFERENTI%E
34.01%2 8 e

AEENETHBARBREEAFREEAR
(AR DB — 2R ERALER
RO D SDERIREE - Tk
#HE2024 F1 A1BERZEIFENBERE
W MR ISER RS BEI M AR A
HUR S E N AR R BV AR SRR - R IR 2023
F5 A EMHBER 2T ERIE129E R AR R
F o ASEERERNREEES F - ATEHE
BREEATSHEE R A BERREAFIIME
jR °

255 B TEAE ATl P ST = 370 A RS P T B
MR o B E AR KAt EGIoBEW A RE
M BAREESBMEACEMRES I
ERMIDENECTE - BRFEZTERBEE
K BB ERARZILA °

PRSHR S MBI HI0K

2022
20224F
RMB’000
ARBT T
Profit before tax BB A1 V5 A 4,118,262 3,090,078
Tax at applicable tax rate of respective entities RENEEANTRAENTIE 669,496 500,295
Tax effect of share of result of associates and EREENRI NAEDE
joint ventures EENTSTE (7,973) (4,224)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HERRW AR T S 2 (144,213) (73,920)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible A NF R L T ISR 2
for tax purpose 189,000 143,833
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences KRB IBEE R
not recognised TRERENEETE 101,805 97,039
Utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences  F|F 5E BT R MR R B A 1B &
previously not recognised RS (5,865) (342)
Additional deduction for qualified research and BE BRI EROEEINIT
development expenses (154,117) (125,119)
Additional deduction for qualified equipment A B R X REEIMNIF
expenditure = (61,109)
Impact of eligible preferential tax rate HEEABNEERENTE (44,514) (34,124)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 13,049 9,744
616,668 462,073

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in Note 24.

FRIRERAF BRI K E24 -



11 Expense by nature (including cost of sales,
selling and distribution expenses, administration
expenses and research and development

expenses)

Raw material costs

Employee benefits expenses (including directors)
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment

Service fee
Freight charges
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Tax and surcharges
Short-term rental expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit service
— Audit of overseas subsidiaries
— Non-audit services
Depreciation for investment properties
Provision for inventories
Others

EPN BEREAAR 5 B AR (0 A BR A A 20234 5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

[REFFIRCA
BRERNFEX(BRES)
RIS E
5EE
BV EE#E
EREEENE
BRI INE R
EETHEM
2 Gllien
— BRI
— BN B R BB IR
—IFEERIE
REMENE
FERE
Hit

1 ZEEE DR (BIEHERA -
ﬁ;;%&ﬁﬁéﬁﬁi * AT X R T 3

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETTT

24,544,665 22,232,787
3,519,006 3,117,881
694,647 582,889
604,732 439,346
816,152 900,242
252,318 190,402
162,011 152,526
179,729 166,829
12,261 15,890
6,120 6,120
10,276 9,200
2,613 1,919
21,399 18,815
29,986 42,423
1,643,454 1,057,858

32,499,369 28,935,127
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BeTHRAEBREEZMS

remuneration

RIERN EMRRREBARRIFENFAE
EREEHNT ¢

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZABFNRANALER
Restricted
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive
and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 5)
RAHERE
#8218  ERRAY BIER b CIEE |
REMEH %3 HiE 5 20k EhRE (Hzs) h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR AEETTR AEETT AEETR AEETR AEETR AEET T
Execuive drectors: HEE
r. Jiao Chengyao ERERE 1516 1,365 U - - 241 5,387
r. Jia Hao (Notes 1) EELE(H) 2176 1,966 68 - 2 1978 6,210
Mr. Fu Zugang REEE 1,075 1,084 U - 19 1,648 3,860
Mr. Li Kaishun (Note 4) SRIBE L (k) 46 3 4 - 0 18 107
r. Meng Hechao (Note 4) REBEA(HY) % !} 3 - 0 2 %
. Xiang Jiayu (Nofe 3) PEGhEAER) 537 535 16 - - 824 1912
r. Wang Yinying (Notes 2, 3 BeRA(IE 3) - = = - = = -
Sub-lotal 15t 5,386 5,023 159 - [ 6,062 1751
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BEABENANALEE
Restricted
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive
and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 5)
RtRR
Fe TE  HRRAH BINER b UIEE ]
REAEH fse HE 5 20k ERE (H3ts) h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARETR AEETTR AEETT AEETR AEETR AEETR
Non-Executive diectors: FHEE
Mr. Cui Kai (Notes 2) B (M) - - - - - - -
M Yue Taiyu (Notes 2.4 ERTRE(M4) - - - - - - -

M. Fef Guangsheng (Notes 2, 3)

BERAE( 3)

Sub-fotal

et
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE > BTRAEREEME

remuneration (Continued)

ERBITEEME I EEH AR R RAREER
BB IR AV ARG 2 o

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BEABENANALEE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  confributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

RitRE

F& 18  ERRHN BUEH M
REMmER e HE[:5 - £:20E iy ] (Ht3E5) @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEETT AEETR AEETR ARETT AEETTR AEETT

Independent non-executive diectors, BV AB7EE

Wr. Cheng Jingle REELE - - - 140 - - 140
Mr. Ji Feng S i - - - 140 - - 140
Mr. Fang Yuan hEEE - - - 140 - - 140
Is. Yao Yanqiu (Note 4) R (B4 - - - 12 - - 12
M. 6uo Wenging (ote 3) IRERL () = - - 140 - - 140
Sub-total et - - - 572 - - 572

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were BT IERTESE IS EEALFNE

paid for their services as directors of the Company. EMEMMRET S -
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BEABERANALEE

Restricted

Salary,wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors’ fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

R RE

$8 I ERBEY BHER HEE
REMRER ks HEUE EZpd BhE (B3ts) &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR AR%Tn ARETn  ARETR

Supervisors: £%:

Mr. Liu Qiang Haks 105 554 3 - - - 1,293
r. Wang Yue (Note 2, 3) TREE(WE - 9) = = = = = = =
Ms. Zhu Yuan (Note 4) mERL(fFR) 8 - 2 - - - 10
Wr. Zhang Minglin (Note 3) R () 67 ¢] 5 - - - 145
M. B Y (o ) HERAE(HD) 100 % 1 - - - 19
Hir. Cui Zongln (Note 3 ERAE (F3) 187 140 A - = - 361
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong (Note 2) BAREE () - - - S - - -
Hir. Zhang Yonglong (Note 2, ) FERE (- 9) - = - - - - i
Sub-total et 1,067 852 86 - - - 2,005
Total @i 6,453 5,875 245 572 fl 6,962 20,148
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BETRAEBREEZME )
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BEN2F12ANALEFE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors' fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

R HIMERE

e I8 HRRES RARER G E]
REMET il HEE e FEfiE (iR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETRT ARWTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Executive directors: HIEE:
Mr. Jiao Chengyao ERELE 1,513 1,322 R - - 6,342 9,209
Mr. Jia Hao (Notes 1) Btk L (KT 2,466 1,615 63 - 355 5074 9,573
Mr. Xiang Jiayu ARWAE 1,072 921 2 - - 4,028 6,253
Mr. Fu Zugang FERTE 1,072 1,038 32 - 304 4,228 6,674
Mr. Wang Xinying (Note 2) T8 RE(R) - - - - - _ -
Sub-total it 6,123 4,896 159 - 659 19,872 31,709
The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their FliFITEEE IS AR R R AEEES
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company MERMREN RS
and the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BZNNENANALERE
Restricted
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive
and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors’ fee  Share options (Note 5) Total
BilRE
¢ I HRBHN EARER o CIRE]
RERER ol R EEEn Bk (PizE5) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTr ARETR
Non-Executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Cui Kai (Notes 2) Bk A (H:2) - - - - - - -

Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Notes 2, 3) B RS 4 (W52 3) - - - - - - -

Sub-total st - - - - - - -
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12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
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12 EX  RETRAEBRESEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BR02F12ANALEFE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive ~ benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors'fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

BHIERE

¢ I8 HERREY RIER HEEEl
REMET ki HELES L0 Bk (M&5) izt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETt ARETR

Independent non-executive directors: BV #HTEE :

Mr. Cheng Jinglei BEERE - - - 140 - - 140
Mr. Ji Feng B - - - 140 - - 140
Mr. Fang Yuan FREE - - - 140 - - 140
s. Guo Wenging (Note 3 Fa L (fizrs) - - - 8 - - 8
Sub-total Nt - - - 502 - - 502

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were

paid for their services as directors of the Company.

BT IERTEEME IR REREARANE

=M ARB AT o

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BEN2F12R31ALEFE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors’ fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

BHIERE

e IF ERRAN SRR A2l
RAMRR e HEEE EENe ke i) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTRT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARNTR

Supervisors; EZE:

M. Liu Qiang EEy 702 606 32 - - - 1,340
Mr. Wang Yue (Note 2) TREE (M) - - - - - - -
M. Znang Minglin Rttt 365 329 2 - - - 716
M. Bao Xueliang MER%E 214 160 2 - - - 406
Mr. Cui Zonglin ETMEE 190 142 2 - - - 364
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong BoEsE - L - - _ _ =
. Znang Yonglong (Note 2) FXERE (M) - - - - - % -
Sub-total it 1,461 1,287 128 - - - 2,826
Total @i 7,584 6,133 287 502 659 19,872 35,037
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n‘l_\/El\Exzt;f%iﬁ% M{I.%I
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Note 1: Mr Jia Hao is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his
emolument for the role as chief executive officer is also included above.

Note 2: All or partial of these directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were borne by investors,
including Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd., investor of Hong Yi
Investment and Henan Asset.

Note 3: All of these directors and supervisors resigned during the year ended 31
December 2023 or the year ended 31 December 2022 and the amount
shown above represents the remuneration paid for in connection with their
service as directors or supervisors.

Note 4: All of these directors and supervisors were newly appointed during the
year ended 31 December 2023 and the amount shown above represents
the remuneration paid for in connection with their service as directors or
SUPEIVisors.

Note 5: The amount recorded in the restricted share incentive scheme were the
amount recorded in the financial statement.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Except for Ms. Guo Wenging, an independent non-executive director, who
has waived part of remuneration in 2022, no other directors or supervisors
has waived any remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2023.

12 EE - BESTHRAEREEME »)
TEEME IR BEEHRARIRAEBREBENE
EmiRHmRS M e
MisEt : BEUERETNARARMNITHRAE - MEEETH

BENFHBIIES A _ LS ER -

faE2 + B ZE 20234 K% 20224912 A31 B IEFEHFT A =50
PEEREEMEHTMEREERESERR
EARARE - BB RTHEESIREEAE -

Mi3E3 : ZEEFREFHREZE2023F12A318IEFE
AL E2022F 12 A1 B IEFEFHT - B EXATR
SRR S ETEEREEMNT T -

Mtk : ZSEFEREFHIREE2023F12A318EFE
MEM BENAI RS EERESETEENE
HFTHEEN -

MisEs - ABRREHIMRE SR ENSEAARRY S

HRWEHE -

BRI ES F BIRAERE RERIAB D IR
H 2 2023F M2022F 12 AT IFFEMRIRETE ©

H E2023F R2022F 12 A3 B ILFE - REB T &
MESHREST NI - EAEMBESNNE
NEBE RS B EE -

BR2022 B IEMITE S BN E R THEEL BN F
FEFBNON - B 20224 12202312 A31 B ILFE -
BEE M E RN ENEEMAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

13 EEME

Employee benefits expenses include wages and salaries, performance
related incentive payments, share-based payment expenses, pension costs
— defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group,
three (2022: four) were directors or supervisor of the Company whose
remuneration is included in the disclosures in Note 12 above. The
remuneration of the remaining two individual (2022: one) was as follows:

BERIAXBEFERITE  BRBPHBHHOR
T AR AERONRAX - BRRERA - RE
HHETBIRSUERMETE -

REFBREZRSFALTZF - =5(20224F : UF)
ARNRAREERES - FEOISHBEHL X
F12ME - A TMAZ (20224F © — %) ATHIENS
N

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,192 1,751
Performance related incentive payments HRIFABM RS 1,977 485
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKER T2 114 63
Share options BERG A 22 178
Restricted share incentive scheme PR ) 14 % 22 B =2 1,154 1,480

5,459 3,957

The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration fell within

the following bands is as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$9,000,000
HK$9,000,001 to HK$11,000,000

1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T 2 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 7T 25,000,000/ 7T
5,000,001 727,000,000/ 7T
7,000,001 7T 29,000,000/ 7T
9,000,001 £ 11,000,0007 7T

HK$11,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 11,000,001 7T 13,000,0007 7T

MENFTIBENIEZRSHALTHBELT

2023 2022

20234 20224F

[ [RGECET TR No. of employees
EE®E EEEE

NN = |

1
N = = =
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e R RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&
14 Dividends 14 RE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FRNEREDRAEE
— 2022 Final (RMBO.56 per share) —20224F K HH
(BRAR®0.567T) 998,058 -
— 2021 Final (RMB0.435 per share) —20214F K 5
(B ARM0.4357T) - 774,080
998,058 774,080

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2023 of RMBO0.84 per share (2022: final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB0.56
per share) in an aggregated amount of RMB1,499,852,000 has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

15 Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per
share (profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company) (RMB’000)

WMEHRE - ARFESEEALEZE2023F12A
31 E IEFEIRS RAR R 2 &% A R#0.847T (2022
£ REE2022F12 A3 B ILEE RN KK 85
A R¥0.567T) - 4% A AR 1,499,852,0007T
BFRERERERFBEFASHE - FOEE -

15 SREF
@) SREARF
ARA TR B REA BRI FRIRs

SAEESRERANN AT
(A RBIBR NG F AEF)
(ARETT)

=1
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
3,301,334 2,538,235

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share

AHEESRERRN N EBER
I

1,763,366,008 1,745,986,996

Earnings per share (RMB cents)

FREFARES)

187.22 145.38




15 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

15 ERERN (&)
b) BREEAET
GRS BAE B BT S BRI
ez

T
BUARRAAE AR I ENERARC B
EITFE - ARFAMBABECHEYENE

categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options and
restricted share incentive. The share options and restricted share
incentive are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares.

A% R MR B AR - R R
RIS BB ERR D BIRA TR -

2022
20224
Earnings: BR
Profit attributable to owners of the Company used =t & & A & & FFr A A Q7
in the diluted earnings per share calculation R A SH A (AR FIT)
(RMB’000) 3,301,334 2,538,235
Number of shares: BoEE -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares STEERSREEITERRKD
in issue during the year per share calculation IntEF 8 1,763,366,008 1,745,986,996

on o RERHE
PR I A4 R (P 5E39)

Add: share options
restricted share incentive (Note 39)

4,332,960
6,375,701

3,352,667
6,561,603

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue and potential ordinary shares used
as the denominator in calculating diluted
earnings per share

RET B ERNERED
B2 3T B AN
REFI8

1,774,074,669

1,755,901,266

Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) FIEERR(ARESD)

186.09

144.55
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R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

16 Property, plant and equipment

16 V¥ - BENRE

Plant and Motor Other  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BT RBERKES B Hitik e REIR -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn  ARETxR
0ST KA
At 1 January 2022 20221 A 18 1,669,727 4,004,390 53,961 865,312 1,029,764 7,623,154
Additions NE 25,290 249,788 7150 95,407 924,750 1,302,385
Transfer : 384,855 623,892 3,761 149,853 (1183,709) (21,348)
Transfer in from investment properties BREMEE A (Fi518)

(Note 18) 21,607 - - - 24,029 45,636
Disposals e (16,902 (265,974) 6.954) (136,790) 6,711) (433,331)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEBLR (36,657) (123,869) 927) (2,338) (4125) (167,916)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) BB EREME (HizH18) (43,386) - - - - (43,386)
Currency exchange differences EHHRER 10,750 89,791 - 64,382 7,353 172,276
At 31 December 2022 12022E12 8318 2,015,284 4578018 54,991 1,036,826 792,351 8477470
At1 January 2023 R202BE1A18 2,015,284 4578018 54,991 1,036,826 792,351 8477470
Additions NE 17,786 178,792 4705 151,615 1,243,533 1,996,431
Transfer [ 131,078 576,635 14,830 84,648 (811,569) 4,378)
Transfer to asset classified as BREHEABEREN

held for sale (Note 31) BE(M3s1) (108,902) (8,442) - - - (117,344)
Disposals e (1,210) (187,158) (5,662) (103,123) (14,509) (311,662)
Currency exchange differences ERGAER 16,010 148,069 - 116,012 12,161 292,252
At 31 December 2023 12023E 12318 2,070,046 5285914 68,864 1,285,978 1,221,967 9,932,769
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND 23t &R

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 20221 A 18 441255 1,741,042 21,117 572,104 (2,702) 2,779,416
Provided for the year FRERE 72,017 389,474 6,763 114575 - 582,889
Impairment loss for the year ERREER - 285 - - 1,206 1,491
Transfer in from investment properties BREMELA(H8)

(Note 1) 9,151 - - - - 9,151
Disposals i (15929) (044,942) 7.417) (130,583) - (398,871)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FMBAT (11,406) (39613 (534) (591) - (52,144)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) BB ZHREME (H318) (899 - - - - (899
Currency exchange differences iR 4915 66,163 - 49,780 1,496 122,354
At 31 December 2022 2022E 124318 499,164 1,912,400 26,529 605,285 - 3,043,387
At 1 January 2023 H202BE1A18 499,164 1,912,409 26,529 605,285 - 3,043,387
Provided for the year EREE 76,299 448,873 12,398 157,077 - 694,647
Impairment loss for the year FRRERE - 13 - - - 13
Disposals e (1,120) (161,981) 3,101) (97,354) - (263,556)
Transfer to asset classffied as BAENBEABELER

held for sale (Nofe 31) EGERD) (53,739 (4,965) - - - (58,704
Currency exchange differences B A 8914 113,245 - 99,576 - 221,735
At 31 December 2023 2023E 124310 529,518 2,307,694 35,826 764,584 - 3,637,602
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2022 12022%12A318 1,516,120 2,665,609 28,462 431541 792,351 5,434,083
At 31 December 2023 R2023E12A31H 1,940,528 2,978,220 33,038 521,394 1,221,967 6,295,147
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16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with a net book value of approximately
RMB480,990,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB405,352,000).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property
ownership certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring
significant costs.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of approximately RMB390,619,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB294,474,000) to secure borrowing granted to the Group.

In 2023, ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co., Ltd (“ASIMCO
Shuanghuan”) has transferred part of its building and plant and machinery
with carrying value of RMB58,640,000 into assets classified as held for
sale as there was a contract signed with government to sell several assets,
details as stated in Note 31.

17 Leases

() Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

16 Y% - BERRE @)

7N B A FE A 20234E 12 B 31 B IR EDRHEL A A
F2 #480,990,0007T (20224F : A R #5405,352,0007T )
WEFHEMENGESR - NAREER A ERN
WSHREMEMEEE  MAGEEEAMAE °

20235128318 » AEBEERETFENAR
#390,619,0007T (20224F : A R #294,474,0007T) K
Y% BB REE  AAEEERNEERNIKM -

20234 - BIL AN ERAERER QAN EH
MER|)ERBFEEHESHEENRLY  HE
BRE{E A AR 58,640,000 TV B D HEF A R HFE
Mg RE AN BERFIEHENEE « FHITHNHE
310

17 HE
() REFFEARRRERN SR

PBRRKRINRAT BB S ERENEHE

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234 20224F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings B 1,225,884 1,266,627
Land of use rights -+ b {5 PR A 542,938 512,850
Machines pi =] 12,451 8,364
Office and operating equipment PNE RN 2,595 3,468
Others Hib 44,415 44132
1,828,283 1,835,441

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current BNER 145,305 146,261
Non-current JERNER 1,202,523 1,250,741

1,347,828 1,397,002
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

17 Leases (Continued)

()

(i)

17 HE )

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial () REBRARERN SR ()
position (Continued)
The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China AEEEPERMENR A A ERE
government.
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023 financial year ROVBFHBRFENFEAREEREAAR
was RMB134,776,000 (2022: RMB312,789,000). #134,776,0007T (20224 : A R % 312,789,000
JT) °
The Group has pledged right-of-use assets with a net book value of MR20235F12A31H - AEEE HAHREEF
approximately RMB73,135,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022 B AR®731350007T (2022F : AR
RMB31,276,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. 31,276,000 W EAEEE - AASEERKN
HRITRE VR -
In 2023, ASIMCO Shuanghuan transferred its land of use right with R20234F  ERIEIREEBTRENEZE
carrying value of RMB32,432,000 into assets classified as held for BEMNSH - BEKREE R AREE32432,000
sale as there was a contract signed with government to sell several TCR L (E BiEE A E AT ERENEE -
assets, details as stated in Note 31. FEIEEPAMIEEST -
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or (i) HiBm & E A2 R ER A
loss and other comprehensive income TR
The profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: BaRIIRATHEEEENSE
2023 2022
2023 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FHAREEERERY
Buildings EF 126,543 119,328
Land use rights b (F A 14,847 14,583
Machines JiS N 2,950 1,378
Office and operating equipment WAERGEE T 2,392 2,028
Others Hih 15,279 15,209
162,011 152,526
Interest expense (included in finance cost) BT (BARERKA) 37,857 38,728
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in % EAFE EMERARI L (B AL E
cost of sales and administrative expenses) MARITERAR) 4,550 5,566
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KRR EXF | AREEHEENKEE
that are not shown above as short-term leases B EMEERERZ (P ATTE
(included in administrative expenses) Hx) 7,283 9,543
Expense relating to variable lease payments KINANHEBEN I SHETIA
not included in lease liabilities (included in MRS (B AITEE )
administrative expenses) 428 781

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was RMB254,396,000
(2022: RMB207,202,000).

RABFHEMBEALBBER/ARE
254,396,000 7T (2022 % = A K ¥ 207,202,000
TL) °



18 Investment properties
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"v_\é,ﬁ\zri%ﬁ%% B{qﬂ
For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 202312 A31H It F &
18 REYE
Leasehold land
and land
Buildings use rights Total
HELHE
e T fEFARE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT ARBETTT

cosT R
At 1 January 2022 H20224F1 A1H 457,774 7,521 465,295
Transfer in from property, plant and B WEREEEA

equipment (Note 16) (FfisE16) 43,386 - 43,386
Transfer out to property, plant and EEEYE  RE MK

equipment (Note 16) (FF5E16) (54,018) - (54,018)
Transfer out to right-of-use assets EER S RAREESE - (7,521) (7,521)
Disposals e (22,577) - (22,577)
At 31 December 2022 and 2023 FA20224F K2 2023F12 A31H 424 565 - 424 565
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2022 H20224F1 A1H 86,518 1,184 87,702
Transfer in from property, plant and B WEREREEA

equipment (Note 16) (FfizE16) 899 - 899
Provided for the year FREE 18,677 138 18,815
Transfer out to property, plant and EEEYE - WEMRE

equipment (Note 16) (FI5E16) (17,533) - (17,533)
Transfer out to right-of-use assets EER S RAREESE - (1,322 (1,322)
At 31 December 2022 HR20224%12 A31H 88,561 - 88,561
Provided for the year FE R 21,399 - 21,399
At 31 December 2023 2023512 A31H 109,960 - 109,960
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 PR20224%12 A31H 336,004 - 336,004

At 31 December 2023

72023512 A31H 314,605 - 314,605

207



208

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘l_\/El\zE\ZI-;]’%ﬁ% Bﬁ-ﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

18 Investment properties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB723,604,000 (2022: RMB777,089,000). The
fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the
management of the Group. The fair value was determined based on the
direct comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are of
the view that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment
properties. The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction
prices or current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.17%-4.75%

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised rental
income with the amount of RMB19,944,000 (2022: RMB18,990,000).

All the buildings recorded as investment properties are located in the PRC.
The Group had not obtained the relevant property certificates for buildings
with a net book value of RMB45,451,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB47,035,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the relevant property ownership certificates can be obtained in due time
without incurring significant costs.

18 WEWHE @)

M2023F12A31H - AEBREMEN LA TFER
AR #723,604,000 7T (20224 A R # 777,089,000
TL) c AT EEREASETEEELNMHES
e AT EEBRBEERLEAEESL - AAF]
EERBUTIHEEREMENLNTENREGRE -
BEEMBUERMBLUMENSOR BRI E R,
BE - WMEEWMENATER  ERERGAEE
EEak&ENRR -

B A R A R R R A 6 DA E AT
& EANEEMT

gF 317%%4.75%

HE2023F12A3BILFE - AEBERE S K
A A R #19,944,0007T (20224 : A R #18,990,000
TL) °

PR BIEEMENMBEFHIMNPREA - K
EE HARERR2023F12 A3 BERMFEAARE
45,451,0007C (20224 : A K #47,035,0007T) KIEF
HEVMEMBEE - AARIESRE - 0 EFFER
FEAEEMAEFM N BEERKAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Goodwill

The Group carries out its annual impairment test on goodwill by comparing
the recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations used pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five or six year period with a terminal value related to the future cash
flows extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below beyond
the five-year period. The accuracy and reliability of the information is
reasonably assured by the appropriate budgeting, forecast and control
process established by the Group. The management leveraged their
extensive experiences in the industries and provided forecast based on
past performance and their expectation of future business plans and
market developments.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUS)
identified. The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGUS:

Year ended 31 December 2023
BRABF12ANBLEE

ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. SHRBEREERR AT

Opening

RMB'000
ARBTR

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

19 BE

AEEEBEBReELBM([REELEN]H
A EeERREE  HHEETFERENR -
ReEf BB RECABETEE
E o RE AT EERREEREMIENRERFR
NEHROPBEESHOGRHARSRERA -
MEZARRE R E AN KLEERIER TN
FIRFHMRENEHEREEE - ZERNERE
MASEBEBRAEENENEERE « TR RIZS
RFEHEERE EEBERTHRENEETE
&5 WIRBBERS IREERREB B R
SR TR M T TR -

BMENEEASECBNNRSEESL - TXRE
FRSEXSBUNMEDREME
Addition

Impairment Closing

4 "B I LTS

RMB'000
ARBTR

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB'000
ARBTR

(Shan) (ASIICO St (L) ([ EHFRULE)) 43622 - (43,622) -
ASIMCO Shuanghuan THHNER 88,283 - - 88,283
131,905 - (43,622) 88,283

Currency

translation
Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing
4 B HE ERREER EX
Year ended 31 December 2022 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HENRF12A31ALEE ARETT ARBFT ARETT AREFT ARBFT
ASIMCO Shanxi THRHILE 104,516 - (60,894) - 43,622
ASIMCO Shuanghuan THRER 88,283 - - - 88,283
SEG group SEGEE 220,051 - (215,757) (4,294) -
412,850 - (276,651) (4,294) 131,905

209



21 O Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

19 Goodwill (Continued) 19 A& )

Impairment review on the goodwill of the Group has been conducted
by management as at 31 December 2022 and 2023, according to IAS
36 “Impairment of assets”. For the purposes of impairment review, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. After taking into consideration the competition in the market
of the products of SEG group and ASIMCO Shanxi, the Group has adjusted
down the forecast and its cash flow projection. Accordingly, an impairment
of RMB43,622,000 (2022: RMB276,651,000) has been provided for the
goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the significant CGU value-
in-use calculations are as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

BEIRE RN 2022F K 2023F 12 A1 AR ERE G5
ARSI EERE | H A EBEEETRER
e ptRERSME - AEMNAWESEREE
FREEEET - 5t RSEGEBE Ko ¥ EHL A
ERMBEHRTE  A£EEEEIRERSREE
AT o Bt - EREE2023F12 A3 A L FER
EEHERE A R#43,622,0007T (20224F « AR
276,651,0007T) °

EARCEAENFEREBFERMARBRER
BRIR RO ¢

A2023F12H431H

Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax

(%) (%) discount rate

WARBRE EFI=

(%) (%) BiAlRAE =

ASIMCO Shanxi S ETRNL P Around#) 0% 16%-19% 14.57%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TRl IR 0%-11% 31%-33% 15.07%
As at 31 December 2022 120225128318
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WA R EFZE
(%) (%) BATRE R =X
ASIMCO Shanxi EEEziE i) 0%-10% 18%-21% 14.91%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan DRFTRIER 0%-4% 34%-36% 14.91%
SEG group SEGEE (11%)-3% 16%-18% 16.25%

The budgeted gross margins used in the goodwill impairment testing,
were determined by management based on past performance and its
expectation for market development. The expected revenue growth rate
and gross profit rates are following the business plan approved by the
Company. Discount rates reflect market assessments of the time value and
the specific risks relating to the industry.

AREEREIANBEEEN XA EEEREBE
RRLEHTISEROAHETE - BHRAERE
REMRKEARBIENERE - BRERBR
HEEMEERTER ERRH TS -



BHEweREERHERAR 0058 D1 ]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ll‘l_\éﬂjﬁiﬁi Bﬁ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
20 Intangible assets 20 B EE
Development Patent Customer
Trademark Software costs right  relationship Total
B B RS =il EFBE @zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  AR%TR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR%Tx

COST KA

At1 January 2022 20221 A1A 77,860 165,960 765,000 588,754 553,373 2,150,947
Additions NE - 32,832 79,063 257 - 112,152
Disposels e - (2,267) (17,162 (956) - (20,387)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HEIBAR - - - (55,590) (145.920) (201510)
Currency exchange differences ERHBES - 4729 25,174 9,239 8,108 47250
At 31 December 2022 1202412R318 77,860 201,254 852,075 541,702 415,561 2,088,452
Additions RNE - 29,056 70,140 - - 99,196
Disposals st - (36,925) - (5,790) - (42.719)
Currency exchange differences ERHRER - 8,843 52,251 19,703 17,409 98,206
At 31 December 2023 12023E12A318 77,860 202,228 974,466 555,615 432,970 2,243,139
AMORTISATION B

At1 January 2022 20201 A18 68,875 144160 112,200 293,249 232,829 851,313
Charge for the year FRMEk 7414 23,945 60,723 57,146 H174 190,402
Disposals HE - (2,252) - (822) - (3,074)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RIBAR - - - (41,930) (74,176) (116,106)
Currency exchange differences ERHBES - 4445 6,340 6,812 4616 22,213
At 31 December 2022 1202F12R318 76,289 170,298 179,263 314,455 204,443 944,748
Charge for the year ERIB 1,571 26,262 131733 53,767 38,985 252,318
Disposals e - (36,925) - (5,790) - (42.719)
Currency exchange differences ERHBES - 8,236 14199 13,920 9,408 45,763
At 31 December 2023 12023128318 77,860 167,871 325,195 376,352 252,836 1,200,114
IMPAIRMENT HiE

At1 January 2022 1R202F1A18 - 790 121530 390 - 122,710
Adaitions (Note 8 RE (Mi7s) - - 99,116 - - 99,116
Disposals st - - (16,736) - - (16,736)
Currency exchange ERGHER - 2 11,566 1 - 11,599
At 31 December 2022 120225124318 - 812 215476 401 - 216,689
Additions (Note 8 RE (M7 - 290 - - - 290
Disposals ik - - - - - -
Currency exchange differences ERGBER - 48 12,665 24 - 12,737
At 31 December 2023 120238124318 - 1,150 228,141 425 - 229,716
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 December 2022 12022124318 1,571 30,144 457,336 226,846 211,118 927,015

At 31 December 2023 2023 12A318 - 33,207 421,130 176,838 180,134 813,309
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

20 Intangible assets (Continued) 20 BILEE(®)

Total research and development expenses incurred during 2023 was
approximately RMB1,638,363,000 (2022: RMB1,465,025,000), among
which, RMB70,140,000 (2022: RMB79,063,000) related to auto parts
technology project have been capitalised as development costs. As at 31
December 2023, the related development projects were in progress and
were tested for impairment and no impairment was provided for these
in progress development projects according to the impairment testing
result. During 2022, the Group made an impairment of approximately
RMB77,291,000 related to BRM technology in auto parts segment,
additional impairment of approximately RMB21,825,000 on other certain
development projects in progress according to the impairment testing
result, which also belong to the manufacture of auto parts segment.

21 Investments in associates

21

20234F FE M AB TR B B 2 40 B A R #51,638,363,000
TC (20224 + AR#1,465,025,0007T) + B/
BT IRAHEMEE AR70,140,0007T (20224 + A
R#79,063,0007T) B & AMb BFEEAA o 720234
12A31H - HEFABEE HE#ETH - WE#TT
BEAS  MBERENRER  TERZSE
B E ER R ERE - R2022F - AEETE
B9 35 T R 4 43 ERBRMER fiT A BA HU R (B 4 AR BE
77,291,0007C + A RABBREFERNER - BtRAB
RELETETEMF D E 2 DR E TR E M A TR
18 B {EH BINRE A AR 21,825,0007T °

REERNRNRE

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

Cost of investment in listed associate R ETEE A RINIZE KA 445,911 -

Cost of investments in unlisted associates RIE LT E R RIMIEE KA 92,278 92,278
Share of post-acquisition profits and other DEWEB R EF R EM

comprehensive income, net of dividends received 2EE - BB RIRE 139,331 94,562

677,520 186,840
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IIV_\éﬂji%iﬁéé M;J-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
21 Investments in associates (Continued) 21 REEEQNTINRE @)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had interests in the A20234F 2022512 A31H - AEERATEE R
following associates: REA R
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of Proportion of
Name of entity registration registered capital voting power held Principal activities
ERER sk hEMEREELH EEERAELA TEEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 20006 2023F 2002
Bestway Nanjing Intelligent Control The PRC 6% N/A 6% N/A~ Manufacture of Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (Note a) A N N equipment
AREREERERAERD R (M) HERESRE
Zhengzhou Suda Industrial Machinery Service Co., Ltd. The PRC 19.82% 19.82% 19.82% 19.82%  Aftermarket services
BN RE T ERTRBROERAF HE ERRS
Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC 47.50% 47.50% 47.50% 47.50%  Manufacture of mining
EETEEREEHARAR g machinery
R,
Yizheng Nahuan Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Providing services for auto
BERRBHEAR AT g spare parts
RETET R
ZMJ Jiangxi Zongji Equipment Co., Ltd. The PRC 38.00% 38.00% 38.00% 38.00%  Manufacture of mining
NEEOIR) R EER AT HE machinery
R,
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machine Co., Ltd. The PRC 35.00% 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%  Manufacture of mining
NEEOIR) R EER AT HE machinery
R,
ZMJ Tezhong Duanya Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49,00%  Manufacture of mining
M E RS R RERERR AR g machinery
R,
Pingdingshan Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic ~ The PRC 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%  Sales of hydraulic products
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. h HERBEM

FRLTSFEREEEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&
21 Investments in associates (Continued) 21 REE QNRINKRE®)

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit from REBDIGHE L % T

continuing operations pek] 46,966 23,147
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other REBDGHMEEWZRERE

comprehensive income - -

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total REED(hEEWRERE
comprehensive income 46,966 23,147

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in INE BN LR N TR

these associates BREE/E3E 677,520 186,840
(@ In February 2023, as communicated with the Board of Nanjing Bestway @ FA2023F2A - EEE IS EREROBRA
Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd., (“Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control”) (RIS EDESSHTERR - AR 77%3;
the Company assigned one director to Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control for REFRNAGER—EZEFEAFARILBER -
the interest of its long-term development. As the Group has the significant ARASESERIREREERTEN  BREKR
influence over Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control, the investment was BHEREATEIENCREAEET S EARBEZEA
reclassified from financial assets at fair value into investments in associates. AIIEE - At REMEEREPEZNZ R
Accordingly, the accumulated net fair value gain recognised in the other TEUZFECEREZREAET  EAARE
comprehensive income was transferred to retained earnings amounting to 283,825,0007T °
RMB283,825,000.
()  There was no commitments or contingent liabilities in respect of associates as () FR2023%F K20229F12 A31 8 » B & A &)L & ) &

at 31 December 2023 and 2022. HHHARBE -
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e mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
21 Investments in associates (Continued) 21 REEEQNTINRE @)
(i) Summarised financial information for material associates. (i) EEHERNTNTBERRE
The table below provided aggregated financial information for the material TRBERBAIE SRR RN FR A R R I ®
associates of Bestway Nanjing Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd. and ETERWRERMDARARMEZRE AR
Zhengzhou Suda Industrial Machinery Service Co., Ltd. TBEFIELR
2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Current assets mENAE 3,177,248 3,237,727
Non-current assets IERENEE 1,106,903 784,626
Current liabilities mEaE 932,870 936,180
Non-current liabilities EREAE 206,783 272,115
Net assets EEEE 3,144,498 2,814,058
Reconciliation to carrying amounts: HEMSEZHE
Opening net assets AR A 134,765 119,088
Other additions HAvihnga 445,911 -
Profit for the period EAR i A 42,751 21,666
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 AR 651 -
Dividends paid BEfBE (4,735) (5,989)
Closing net assets HAREEFRE 619,343 134,765
Revenue WA 2,009,004 2,084,040
Expenses s 1,648,503 1,756,654
Profit for the period AR F 360,501 327,386
Other comprehensive income H i 2 E WS = _
Total comprehensive income ZHEMELERE 360,501 327,386
Dividends received BB 4,735 5,989
22 Investments in joint ventures 2 REELENKRE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT

Cost of investments in unlisted joint venture RIELTEEDERENKA 55,895 55,895
Share of post-acquisition profits and other comprehensive %31 U B 14 S T K& E At 2 &
income, net of dividends received Wi - H0BRE AR B 43,769 36,133

99,664 92,028
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22 Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had interests in the
following joint ventures:

2 REELENRE R

20234 ] 2022F12 3318 + REERUT A& &
AL

Place of Proportion of nominal Proportion of voting
Name of entity registration value of registered capital power held Principal activities
ERER L i B HEMESEELA ERERRAELA E
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 20026 2023F 20006
NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing The PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%  Manufacture of auto-parts
(Yizheng) Co., Lid. = EERETEHHT
BEARTHRN R o @ REFRAF
Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face The PRC 28.00% 28.00% 28.00% 28.00%  Manufacture of high-tech
Technology Co., Ltd. e coal and mining parts

BINREDE TIFRRRARAT)

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of ASIMCO Shuanghuan, a subsidiary of the Group.

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face Technology Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. that was
incorporated by the Group in December 2018. The Group had joint control
on Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face Technology Co., Ltd. due to
the board representation and voting right.

FERMBRRRRE

Tt

BIAEARTHMHN RS REER AR EAEEN
MB AR RN B

SN B TEMBHE IR A 75 8N BT
EEROHBRATINEGERE - ARAEEMN2018
F12RFMAL - AEBEEESRRRIGERY
BN g TEEBHE AR A B &G ERIEH o

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit from REBDGEHBEKEETR
continuing operations S 4R %R 5,891 5,050
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other AEFESGEMEENELREE
comprehensive income - -
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total AEB DG EEBEEEE
comprehensive income 5,891 5,050
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in =~ AREBRZEZESE D ENERD
these joint ventures IEE{EARE 99,664 92,028

There was no commitments or contingent liabilities in respect of joint
ventures as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

R20234F N 20225F12 5318 » WEAMASDEDN
AERHARBE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/Derivative financial

instruments

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income

UAREFEBEHESETTABENS
MEE LAV EFEEESETA
EE%EWEE@%E&EE/@TE%E&
T

DATENEAEBBHALMEE
st S AR

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMETIT

Non-current assets EMBEE

Equity securities listed in A-shares (Note 21(a)) FAARE_E TR IR AN 3B 5 (B 7E21(a)) - 392,987

Unlisted equity securities (Note a) FE_E R A FEFH (FitTa) 408,159 403,889
408,159 796,876

Current assets MENEE

Notes receivable (Note b) FEU =R (M 7ED) 3,848,095 4,494,325

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UAFETEAHESH ABENS
A& E

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Non-current assets EMBNE EE

Unlisted equity securities I ETHRRARGE 55 6,872 -
Current assets MENVEE

Other financial assets (Note c) H it E E (M 5Ec) 5,265,413 4,648,622
Certificate of deposits TF 673,023 578,258
Equity securities listed in A-shares AR =T IR ANZE 5 4,430 -
Unlisted equity securities BN 1,296 1,296

5,944,162 5,228,176

217
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Note:

(@ In August 2022, the Group acquired 16.67% shareholdings of Luoyang LYC
Bearing Co., Ltd. with a consideration of RMB389,323,000. And the Company
designated the investment as a financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income in 2022.

(o) The Group recorded the notes receivable as financial assets at other
comprehensive income due to the Group’s intention to either holding note

receivables to maturity or endorsing or discounting.

(c) Asat 31 December 2023, the other financial assets were as following:

23

UAREFEEESHTTABENE

MEE DAV EFEEESETTA

%fg&éﬁﬂ&éﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁé/’ﬁi%mﬂ
(%)

NAFEFEEREESTABRNS
Bl & B (|)

BiaE

u

@ 202248 H @ AEBWEESLYCHFABR AR
16.67% M54 - KRB B AR389,323,0007T ° AAA AR
2022F IR BIEE AUATETE A EESHTA
Hih2ERENEREE -

() $F$Egﬁﬁﬁ$W¥ﬁ§ﬂﬂi%§i%ﬁ
MRS BB ERERIEAREMEE RETENS
BhEE -

© FA2023F128318 » HthSEEEMT ¢

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETT

Assets management products BEEEER 4,660,138 4,077,805
Principal non-guaranteed financial products FER A S BLAEE G 605,275 470,817
Principal guaranteed financial products RASEIEER = 100,000
5,265,413 4,648,622

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held some assets management products
amounting to RMB4,660,138,000. The assets management products are
the combination of different investment portfolios and are managed by the
securities companies entrusted by the Group. The fair value of the assets
management products are assessed based on the fair value changes of
underlying investment portfolios.

On 19 November 2023, the Group announced that one of the asset
management products named Foreign Trade Trust — Huaruan New Power
Selection No. 1-3 Single Fund Trust Plan had a risk of not being able to
redeem on schedule due to the breach of its underlying assets. As at 31
December 2023, the principle of related asset management products was
RMB272 million, due to the high uncertainty on the collection of these
investments, the management fully impaired the investment and recorded as
net fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised net fair value
gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to
RMB43,179,000 in total, which were mainly related to assets management
products (Note 8).

R2023F12A318  AEEFEBHEEERERARE
4,660,138,0007T ° &#éFEEEWmKH&QQDA
B WHRASEBEZANESFDREE - é%aﬁﬁm
HAFERBAABIREEEN AT EEETE -

meiﬂﬂwa AEESH ﬁ#**%%%%ﬁ
—EHHE N RBEI3RE B EAENEES
Euuma%%ﬁém@ GHEESAZHERNER 7502023
F12A318 - MEEEERERNASAARKNEE
7T ARBEIZERENTREERS - EREHZE
BYEHEBEERE TR ATFEFEAEES AR

ENERMEAEATEBETE -

HE2023F12A3NALFE - REBERALTEFER
HEES ABENeREEATERSFESREARE
43,179,0007T * X B M EETEEMEG M (HFES) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23 UAFEFEEHSBHTABENE

loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE UQFPEFEEESEHTA

comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hih2EKENESREE TESH

instruments (Continued) TERu®

Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as PTHETAZRARKEBLETER  TAREKIERE - A

speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the [l Wﬁilﬁﬁ\%’fé\%ﬁqﬂééﬁ%ﬁ ' H%?dﬁ@%&%@ﬁ

hedging accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for MO BARIFHERE]  WARATXUAATE;EAR

accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or Bt ARG - AREREA TSTESMTA

loss below. The Group has the following derivative financial instruments:
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT

Not designated as hedging instruments TEEAYHTA 23,533 4,890
Designated as hedging instruments IBEAYEIFTA 10,334 -
33,867 4,890

Derivative financial liabilities fTESmEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Not designated as hedging instruments TEERHHIA = 17,395
Designated as hedging instruments EEA¥HIA 11,453 -

11,453 17,395
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

24 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities

The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

24 RIEFIEHEE &6

RPBREN S - BEFAEHEBRANAT

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT

Deferred income tax assets to be recovered 15 F U B FEEFTS T A E
— within 12 months —12( AR 298,729 235,933
— after 12 months —12{@ A% 240,041 247,393
538,770 483,326

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BT EMNEENEHAE
— within 12 months —12{8 AR (42,976) (40,696)
— after 12 months —12(8 A& (265,590) (308,437)
(308,566) (349,133)
Deferred income tax assets, net ELEFASHEEZRE 230,204 134,193
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24 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities (Continued)

The following are the major deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

24 EEFFEHEE BB w

RN T BRIEAMSHEE/ (BB REZEHM

I

Property,
Trade plant and Revaluation Revaluation
receivale  Wite- equipment  Intangible on prepaid Revaluation  of property,
loss  downof Accrualsand  Unrealized fax assets fax lease ofintangible plantand Revaluation
allowance  inventory  provision profit ~ difference  difference  payments assefs equipment  of FOCI  Others Total
HATE
tEAH
g5 ER 0¥ BEIFA
EisE Eitfix A% BERRE EFEE RAEE EVEE  BER Ef2E
FEBE FEME  RER Mg REER REER  REER Bff  REER WEEM i &5t
RMBOO0  RWBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOD  RWB000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOOD  RWBOOD  RWBO00
ANRET ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
The Group 1£E
At 1 January 2022 RN2E1ATA %6 17516 18T A AT 5 (16296 (4173 (40080) - B3 %97
Oredtcharge) toproftorloss 7 EEF A/ (88 16,684 3529 8366 18540 (8817) o 603 471 6,122 - By AT
Charge tootercomprebensive 7B A2 TR
income - - - - - - - - - (789 - ([B7eY
Disposal of & subsidary HE-THERA R R (349) - (334 - 2810 12816 1333 - - 8106
Curency exchange diferences % Az 53% 20 2691 (524) ) 4 (019 299) 3 - (6.202) 9
At 31 December 2022 RNREIANA 16108 19008 189432 45450 (120980) 103 (133 (@076 (32838 (5769 59097 134193
Oredtcharge) toproftorloss— FEEF A/ (188 (13499 11804 11006 44131 0019 %) 583 815 6,146 - (1968 54577
Charge tootercomprebensive 7B A2 EUER
income - - - - - - - - - (9,007 - (9,007,
Trnstertoretaned eamings ~ EARLZEF - - - - - - - - - 00 - 50087
Curency exchange diferences &7 3 A=sE 454 /X, 1 - 38 5 - i3] - 166 4
At 31 December 2023 RABENAYA 103060 31394 202740 89%81  (12961) 8 (2759 @172 (743 (4709 30582 230204
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R BB ERARMIEE

24 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities (continued)

The net balances of deferred income tax assets and liabilities after

offsetting are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets, net
Deferred income tax liabilities, net

24 EEFEHEE BfFw

RIEFFSHEE R BB E BRI R NARF R
T

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

BEFTS A EFHE 382,679 313,657
BIEFTSH B EFE (152,475) (179,464)
230,204 134,193

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

RBEIR - NREB TNIRERN AR AHIERE

unrecognised unused tax losses: B
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Unused tax losses RENB R IBEE 6,193,812 5,515,887
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax A PSR TE I SR B S F AR - STt bt R IB g

losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

31 December 2023
31 December 2024
31 December 2025
31 December 2026
31 December 2027
31 December 2028
No expiry date

2023512 A31H
2024512 431
2025512 A31H
2026512 A 31H
2027512 A31H
2028512 A31H
g im B

BERRELCHAEE °

FRURHERSRE R ER A BT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBET T

2,014 2,024
3,562 3,562
86,605 86,924
258,228 -
5,843,403 5,423,377

6,193,812 5,515,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

25 Finance lease receivables 25 BEHERWEIE

2023 2022

20235 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Finance lease receivables due from customers FEN R E Rl A TEE fE W IE 163,217 152,992

Less: loss allowance VER, St (62,394) (52,039)

Finance lease receivables due from customers FENZ F AT E eI FRIE 100,823 100.957
Less: Finance lease receivables due within 1 year B MM EFERE SR ERE

iGN (21,825) (50,963)

Non-current finance lease receivables IEm B AL & A & G TR 78,998 49,994

AEBETRERIEVELELAE - MEHEEURA
R¥GHE - REEEFHN F22105F -

Certain of the Group’s equipment is leased out under finance leases. All
the leases are denominated in RMB. The terms of finance leases entered

into ranged from 2 to 10 years.

Minimum lease receivables

BERAERKRE
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 1 year 1FER 26,531 54,945
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BIE1E1B D RR2F 27,297 11,888
Over 2 years but less than 5 years EBIE2EE 1B DB 39,963 20,640
Over 5 years B 21,183 27,260
Less: unearned finance income B AR BREREA UL A (14,151) (13,776)
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable HIEREEKHIBIRE 100,823 100,957

Present value of minimum

lease receivables
BREAEEKRERE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Within 1 year 1ER 21,825 50,963
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BiE1EB D RR2F 23,974 9,699
Over 2 years but less than 5 years B2 1B DB 35,569 15,845
Over 5 years HBiBsE 19,455 24,450
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable SR EEKIERE 100,823 100,957
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25 Finance lease receivables (Continued)

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease terms. The weighted average effective interest rate is
approximately 3.61% (2022: 2.84%) per annum.

Please refer to Note 3 for the loss allowance of finance lease receivables.

26 Long-term receivables

25 FiEHEEWFIE

FHEMENEZINARBET  BRAREEM
EH o METFHERFFRLY A3.61%(20224F :
2.84%) ©

ERR AT E B IR - 2B -
26 RHIEWRE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT

Long term receivable due from customers R PR EWGRIE 436,392 295,133
Less: loss allowance e kit (6,664) (40,633)
429,728 254,500
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year B 1FE AR ER & B UGR IR (216,230) (88,032)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year 1F & B R AR E R GRIE 213,498 166,468
The amount is expected to be received as follows: IETEEARA LA T B R UER
Within 1 year 1R 230,463 91,334
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BBIFEDR2F 214,235 163,513
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BT DRASE 3,624 7,093
Less: unearned finance income B REERE IS U (18,594) (7,440)
429,728 254,500

Note: The balance represents long-term receivables from customers arising from
sales of goods. As at 31 December 2023, the amount of RMB248,437,000
is secured by letters of credit (2022: RMB149,126,000). The rest amount
is interest free, unsecured and repayable in 2 to 5 years. Deemed interest
income of RMB8,589,958 calculated based on effective interest method was
recognised during current year (2022: RMB5,884,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided loss allowance with the
amount of RMB6,664,000 (2022: RMB40,633,000) for the long-term
receivables.

MitE: ZEBEREREEMEREF MR BAEIKR
T8 o A2023F 12 A318 » AR #248,437,0007T LA
B EIER(20224F + AREE149,126,0007T) ° 4T
FBEARE - EIEFRER2ESFNEE - 81F
BEBRMBIEFTENF B MAARYS589,958 7T
(20224 = AJRH55,884,0007T ) RANEE R HERR ©

M2023F 12 A31 8 - NEE gt K HE K GKIER
IRE BB E AR 6,664,0007T (20224F : AR
40,633,0007T) °
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AR RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
27 Contract liabilities 27 cEAE
2022
20224F
RMB’000
ARET T
Contract liabilities cRAE
Contract liabilities, current mEAERARE
— advances from customers (Note) —RFEER (M) 4,128,105 3,663,770
Contract liabilities, current mEERAE
— R&D reimbursements from customers — B mE 46,145 84,579
4,174,250 3,748,349
Contract liabilities, non-current FRHERAaRE
— R&D reimbursements from customers —RE U wE 37,491 21,510

Note: Advances from customers are mainly from coal mining machinery segment
for non-cancelable contracts, and normally would be recognised as revenue in
next 12 months. RMB3,297,421,000 (2022: RMB1,768,154,000) of contract
liabilities that was included in the beginning of the period were recognised as

revenue during 2023.

28 Inventories

28

Wit REBREEZRETAFHEE RAEREER D
7 — Rz &12(8 A RIER BN © 720234 -
FFAHBIIRA R & FE A R3,297,421,0007T (2022

F : NE¥1,768,154,0007T ) B HER RUA ©

#H

2022

20224F

RMB’000

ARETTT

Raw materials and consumables R N EFE SR 2,038,490 1,889,694
Work in progress TR 952,967 1,117,820
Finished goods BIRK G 6,554,669 5,118,946
9,546,126 8,126,460

Inventory provision GFERE (249,518) (216,637)
9,296,608 7,909,823

Movement in inventory provision during the year ended 31 December

2023 and 2022 are as below:

H E 20234 [ 2022F 12 A31 B IL FE M TF SR

BERINT

2022

20224F

RMB’000

ARBFIT

At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31 A 216,637 188,396
Additional provision in the year FNEEIMNE A 29,986 44,879
Utilised E8A - (2,456)
Write-off b6 - (4,185)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHNEAE = (15,380)
Currency exchange differences B R 2,895 5,383
At 31 December 2023 #2023 12 A31H 249,518 216,637
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
29 Trade and other receivables 29 ES K H WA
2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets CRVEE
Trade receivables B 5 RGIE 8,305,300 7,100,804
Less: loss allowance e SEi=E (518,274) (569,818)
7,787,026 6,530,986
Financial asset receivables (Note) B EE B FEWGRIE (I EE) 500,178 320,344
Deposits HiEA 83,867 179,397
Receivable from disposal of investment HEISE e R IR 65,519 65,526
Staff advances BEBT 30,361 31,068
Others Hih 798,548 709,124
Less: loss allowance o SRR (99,575) (106,348)
1,378,898 1,199,111
9,165,924 7,730,097
Non-financial assets EERMEE
Prepayments to suppliers M ER TR IR 625,721 942,844
Other tax recoverable Hab e Y B FiIE 561,827 445,686
1,187,548 1,388,530
Total trade and other receivables 5 REMBEWRIESR 10,353,472 9,118,627
The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables net of loss AT ASREMRNREZANZE 5 KGR
allowance presented based on the invoice date at the end of each B E IR R R ARER D AT
reporting period:
2022
20224F
RMB’000
AREETIT
Within 180 days 180K~ 6,090,486 4,600,006
Over 180 days but within 1 year HBIE180KB1FER 1,033,652 1,169,412
Over 1 year but within 2 years HBIB1FE2FR 601,844 660,208
Over 2 years within 3 years HBIB2FEIFR 56,697 87,560
Over 3 years HBiE3F 4,347 13,800
7,787,026 6,530,986
Note: BisE
In 2023, the Group purchased financial asset receivables amounting to RMB500 R2023F - AEBR—RE=ZFBHFTHEESRARE
million from a third party securities company. The estimated annual yield rate is 5008 & 7T ° #5 BIR20244F 3 A 202449 A B BRI ELAY
3.6% or 3.1% and the financial asset receivables will be due in March 2024 and CREERBGIE - HFEZESERMER3.6%K3.1% °

September 2024, respectively.
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The trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currencies as at
31 December 2023 and 2022, are expressed in RMB as follows:

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

29 B R HAMEWRIE )

LASNESTHERE 5 & E Ath FE W FRIB A 2023 F 522022
F12A3NBAARESRIAT ¢

2023 2022

20235 20224F

) RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

EUR BT 546,708 623,241
usb =TT 648,569 504,204
Indian Rupee (“INR”) ENEEL 256,773 233,894
Brazilian Real (“BRL”) ERELR 87,027 51,420
South African Rand (“ZAF”) EER: ks 4,759 14,310
Mexican Peso (“MXI”) EETFHER 2 19,686
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) H 12,178 12,631
Russian Rubble (‘RUB”) REEHTEM - 7,780
Hungarian Forint (‘HUF") 9 7 FFEAR = 271
1,556,016 1,467,437

Movement of loss allowance on trade and other receivables

B 5 R AR BB R

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Opening balance FHaEER 676,166 584,341
(Reversed)/provided during the year FR (B, ks (57,197) 126,837
Write off 3 (3,656) (15,667)
Disposal of a subsidiary L E—FENE AT = (18,505)
Currency exchange differences EMEHBRER 2,536 (840)
Closing balance FREEH 617,849 676,166

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had litigations against overdue
customers with trade receivable balances of RMB76,213,000. Among
those litigations, trade receivable balance of RMB27,775,000 had
been reached settlement. Litigations relating to trade receivable of

RMB48,438,000 were on-going.

M2023F12A318 - AEBHBEARFIREHFL -
B RE G REWF IR % A ARYET6,213,0007T © 5%
LR 0 B 5 RIGIAE H AR 27,775,0007T
BEMKMME o BE 5 EUGRIE A K #48,438,0007T
BRENFRLEENTH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

30 Cash and cash equivalents/bank deposits

30 RERREEEY BITEN

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents RekESEEY
Cash =4 654 448
Bank deposits with original maturity within REHAA A ={8 A A T AR TIFE
three months or less 4,728,579 3,612,995
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSZEEY 4,729,233 3,613,443
Bank deposits — current SRITFER—RE
Pledged bank deposits EHEAIRITIER 1,359,043 665,609
Bank deposits with original maturity between FREEENF={EAZE—FH
three months to one year RITIFEF 582,696 2736,734
Restricted cash ZREIRE 4,157 92
1,945,896 3,402,435
Bank deposits — non current SRITER—FERB
Bank deposits with original maturity over than JREIEAR B—F A EMIRTTIER
one year 1,468,712 -

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates
which ranged from 0.0200% to 2.7500% per annum as at 31 December
2023 (2022: 0.0001% to 2.75% per annum).

31 Assets classified as held for sale

31

BRI R BIEIR FIRIT A AR T A B
ZRRENRES  ARESBEARBEE - &
HIRRITFRIE T B FERF L - 72023512 A 31
B - FE 5= F0.0200% 2 2.7500% (20224 = |
0.0001%ZE2.75%) ©

DERFFHENEE

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Building ¥ 55,163 -
Land use right Tt R4 32,432 -
Plant and machinery R M 2% 3,477 -
91,072 -

Note: During 2023, Yizheng municipal government bodies entered into an
agreement with ASIMCO Shuanghuan, a subsidiary of the Group, to purchase
back the unremovable buildings, land and equipment in the original factory
area of ASIMCO Shuanghuan, for the purpose of urban planning. Based on the
agreement, this arrangement will be completed in 2024, the Group therefore
reclassified all the related assets from long term assets into “assets classified
as held for sale” as at 31 December 2023. As of 31 December 2023,
ASIMCO Shuanghuan has paid a deposit amounting to RMB43,300,000 for
purchasing a new land.

MIEE © FA20234F N + (EAE T BT A4S BN SR E A0 FT B A
RIEHEIEIRET S ek - AR R TR 3T R IR R R
EATABENIET - T RaEE - ARRMR
Bl o IRIEZ R - HELPEER2024F R 0 i
M2023F 124318 - AEBBFAMBEERER
HEESHHOEAIBIEHENEE] - B E2023
F12A310  DFHNERCRBE —RBH X
R~ AEA R #43,300,000T8)IRE ©
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

32 EZRHEMENTRE

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Notes payable (Note a) FERT =4 (Ff5Ta) 3,521,748 3,290,909
Trade payable (Note a) 5 EMNFE (W Ta) 7,047,194 6,053,833

10,568,942 9,344,742
Salary and bonus payables B H e mEe 499,136 474,244
Deposits (Note b) HEACIEED) 88,963 74,842
Interest payable FERHF B 35,450 27,366
Other taxes payable EAb R FiE 927,921 728,248
Restrictive shares payable (Note 39) JREASF PR 1 1 AR =2 (B 5E39) 52,427 118,198
Factoring payable (Note c) IRIRFE FE (M REe) 68,546 49,586
Dividends payable %S TR = 36,686
Accruals and other payables (Note d) TE 4R M E A< R0 (B ) 674,977 626,697

12,916,362 11,480,609

Notes: Fi5E
(@ The following is an ageing analysis of notes payable and trade payables @ LA AR20234F M20225 12 A3 AR K BH %
presented based on issuance date/invoice date as at 31 December 2023 and FZHEBZINENEERE S RN FIERER AT :
2022:
2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
Within 1 year 1FR 10,251,496 8,966,683
Over 1 year HBim1eF 317,446 378,059
10,568,942 9,344,742
() Deposits represent the deposits received from transportation and other b) FTRIENER R EMRSHERNTS -
services vendors.
(©) A subsidiary of the Group entered into an agreement to arrange factoring upon © AEBE—MBNBARE—RITITL—MREARSE

certain accounts receivables with a bank, and the Group derecognised those
accounts receivables due to the factoring meets the derecognition criteria
of financial assets under IFRS Accounting Standards. The factoring payable
balance represented the cash flow subsequently received from these accounts

receivables on behalf of and payable to the bank.

(d)  Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition of @
property, plant and equipment, rental payables, sales rebate and payables for

other services.

TR HRIZ - B RMRIZN & BRI %55
SEAGHERBETHEREER LERARE K
SEERIERZERUIREN - RIBENFIBLR
RIS RUSRRPRYL BN FROTNRESRE -

IR R MR RAE B R ERN KRN - B
TSH N FRIA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

33 Borrowings

33 B

2023 2022
20234F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Non-current: JEBNAR -
— Bank borrowings — secured or guaranteed —RITIEE — B ER
(Notes a, b and d) (Bi¥3Ea ~ bXd) 1,287,723 2,286,588
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIEE — &R 5,385,000 4,552,092
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings A FEENHAE E MRV EREE o (513,000) (2,525,936)
6,159,723 4,312,744
Current: BNES
— Bank borrowings — secured or guaranteed —RITIEE — A B ER
(Notes a, b and c) (BfsFa ~ ble) 220,656 291,293
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIEE —EIKH 409,858 419,997
Add: current portion of non-current borrowings o JERNERE B R BNERIR 513,000 2,525,936
1,143,514 3,237,226
Total borrowings ER -tk 7,303,237 7,549,970
Secured A 1,508,379 2,577,881
Unsecured IR 5,794,858 4,972,089
7,303,237 7,549,970
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEMEE 471,858 468,998
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 6,831,379 7,080,972
7,303,237 7,549,970
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33 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

@

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of bank borrowings totalling
RMB195,792,000 (31 December 2022: RMB49,000,000) were secured by
the pledge of the land use rights and property, plant and equipment.

The balance of RMB1,312,587,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB2,397,931,000) mainly represented:

i

SEG entered into a revolving facility agreement of EUR100 million with
the lenders in 2022, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch
and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited acted as mandated
lead arrangers and bookrunners. The Group has drawn down a loan of
EUR20,187,000 (equivalent to RMB158,657,000) (31 December 2022:
EUR30,000,000 (equivalent to RMB222,687,000)), with the effective
interest rate of 3-month Euribor+1.80% per annum, and it is a revolving
loan on a three-month basis and is repayable finally in July 2025. This
borrowing is guaranteed by SEG Automotive Germany GmbH, SEG
Automotive North America LLC and SEG Automotive Products (China)
Co., Ltd.

SEG entered into a term loan facility agreement of EUR300 million with
the lenders in 2022, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch
and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited acted as mandated
lead arrangers and bookrunners. The Group has drawn down a loan of
EUR146,825,000 (equivalent to RMB1,153,930,000) (31 December
2022: EUR293,045,000 (equivalent to RMB2,175,244,000)), with the
effective interest rate of 3-month Euribor+1.40% per annum, and is
repayable in July 2025. This borrowing is guaranteed by the Company.

In addition, the revolving facility agreement is secured by the pledged shares
of New Neckar Holdings and Operations GmbH & Co. KG and are secured,
inter alia, by one or more of the following assets in SEG group worth of
EUR568 million (equivalent to RMB4,460 million) (2022: EUR588 million,
equivalent to RMB4,364 million):

@

Global Assignment of money trade and insurance receivables and
intra-group receivables, security assignment of all intellectual property
rights, bank account pledge over all bank accounts (including in U.S.),
but excluding any bank accounts for the collection of trade receivables
that are the subject of arrangements constituting Permitted Factoring,
security transfer in respect of all moveable assets of SEG;

Shares of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Components Brazil
Ltda., Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG
Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain,
S.A.U., SEG Automotive North America LLC);

e ISR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

33 BE&

i

@

2022312318 - RITEELEHRAEARE
195,792,000 7T (2022412 A 31 H : A K # 49,000,000
TR T E AL RDE - BEREEERFEER
o

R2023F 12 A31 8 - 4 #% A R ¥1,312,587,000 7T
(20224 : AR152,397,931,0007C) E & 4 -

()  SEGH20224 EZRFK AT L1008 BEUTHTEIR
BB HP@EEERTHINE 21T BT
HRIT(BB)ERATHERFEEBLHITRE
EWEIRA o REBEDARE FUEVE IR —
£20,187,0008 7T (AHE 7 A R #5158,657,0007T )
(20224E12 431 : 30,000,000E: T (EE R AR
#5222,687,0007T) ) R E K - BERFANEA=1E
AEuribor+1.80% * A=A ABENEEER
WH2025F7 A1EE - ZEEBRBETEEE
BIRAR - REBKSEILEFERAGLERRE
ERE (R E) AR A BIERER ©

(i)  SEGH20224F EZ R FK AR 32300 F B BT Y E A
BEXmEwZE  HPEESEITHMEST
MBITHRIT(BE)ERAREAREERER
FITRESEEA - REBCRE LMEE
535 FRE — $5.146,825,000 B 7T (B & A A R #
1,153,930,0007T ) (2022412 A 318 : 293,045,000
BT (A& R AR #2,175,244,00070) ) E K
B4 A% 5 = (@ B Euribor+1.40% - 78142025
FTRER - ZEEHEAAREER -

b A+ 18 3% Bh & 15 5% B New Neckar Holdings and
OperationsGmbH & Co. KGEYE IR IRRZ D EHER - LA
(EHE4E) 5 — B8 2B MSECE B E E MK -
B1ES68E BEUT(HER AREA4608 & 1) (2022
F - 88EBHUT(HEENARB4364BET))

SRR D 5 KR K BRI LA K S BRI E R
RIE - EIRFTE A EE IR A RTE
F(BREEE)MEBTES  ETREHRAEKDE
HERFRER B2 EWGRIBR R EMERITERS - 5t
SEGHIFT A Al B ) & E R R e

ETHEBARRG (REBRBEHHEHEGR AT -
Starters E-Components Generators AutomotiveHungary Kft.
RERAEREFEEGRAT  RERTEAN
FEBRRA - REETEILEERAT)
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33 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE

33 B8w@m

(c)  Bank accounts, rights and receivables (other than trade receivables) of
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kift.;

(d)  The credit rights arising from bank accounts and trade receivables of

SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U.;

As at 31 December 2023, the secured assets in SEG group were as follows:

T« (88)
b (&)
(c) Starters E-Components Generators Automotive
HungaryKft. #RTTER P - #EFIREWFIBE (B S
FEUGRIEBRSN)

@ RBEAEAIITARIFORITEPELN
EERNNE S EUIA

H2023F 128310 + SEGEEMAEBEENT ¢

2023 2022

20235 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREETFTT

Cash and cash equivalents e NEEEEY 358,047 287,921
Trade and other receivables B 5 REA R KIE 1,383,941 1,498,525
Property, plant and equipment ME - BELEE 260,797 167,716
Investment in subsidiaries of SEG TASEGHYFT B A R E 1,734,293 1,638,015
Others Hih 723,294 772,058
4,460,372 4,364,235

() Asat 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of RMB19,606,000 were secured
by the trade and accounts receivables and were repaid in July 2023.

(d) Asat 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of EUR15,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB111,344,000) were guaranteed by the Company and were repaid in April

2023.

© 20229128318 + RITEE AREE19,606,000
T E 5 REMGRIE R ERER R ERE - WER
202347 AEE -

d 2022412 A31H - $R77 & & 15,000,000 8 7T
(FEE R ARM111,344,0007T ) B AR A B EE
R WER2023FE4FEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
33 Borrowings (Continued) 33 &)

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Carrying amount repayable: AR T EREERREE

Within one year —FR 1,143,514 3,237,226

More than one year, but not exceeding two years 8 —F{E BB F 2,989,430 450,000

More than two years, but not exceeding five years — #A:BFR4F{B A8 T 4F 3,170,293 3,862,744
7,303,237 7,549,970

Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities B REBBEE N IREE (1,143,514) (3,237,226)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities EREBEEHE NIRRT 6,159,723 4,312,744

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the AEBEEMNRMEN TS EEHE

following currencies:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMETIT

RMB AR 5,990,650 4,945,906
EUR BRIt 1,312,587 2,604,064
7,303,237 7,549,970
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted AEBBEEMNERFE(TMEENERFIXR)&HE D
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: ™
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
Effective interest rate per annum HERFEFE
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE 1.05%-3.80% 0.95%~3.95%

Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 2.200%~5.230%  1.748%~3.965%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
34 Provisions 34 B1E
Onerous Restructuring
Warranty contracts provision Total
R BEaRE EHRE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 202291 A1H 222,012 198,799 328,690 749,501
Additional provision in the year FNREIMNEE 133,302 73,909 - 207,211
Reversal/utilisation of provision B E SR B S (152,265) (135,907) (72,533) (360,705)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBAR (13,000) - - (13,000)
Currency exchange differences B HIRETE 1,270 1,052 5,574 7,896
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 191,319 137,853 261,731 590,903
Current portion BIERER 186,865 122,679 261,731 571,275
Non-current portion JERNERER &> 4,454 15,174 - 19,628
191,319 137,853 261,731 590,903
At 1 January 2023 202351 A1H 191,319 137,853 261,731 590,903
Additional provision in the year FRREINEAE 184,579 40,389 - 224,968
Reversal/utilisation of provision Bm BB (163,449) (100,753) (20,117) (284,319)
Currency exchange differences B HIRETE 2,869 5,322 18,648 26,839
At 31 December 2023 7202312 A31H 215,318 82,811 260,262 558,391
Current portion BIHAEB 213,353 58,493 260,262 532,108
Non-current portion JERNEREE 1,965 24,318 - 26,283
215,318 82,811 260,262 558,391
The warranty provision which represents management’s best estimate RIEBEBIEEEEREBAHENBERPREH

of the Group’s liability under warranty periods granted to customers
(who purchased coal mining machinery and auto parts), based on prior
experience relating to defective products claims.

Onerous contracts provision represents management’s best estimate of
the expected contract loss, based on the forecast performance relating to
the contracts.

Restructuring provision represents the costs relating to the spin-off of
SEG group and restructuring plant plan from the former group and the
restructuring plan relating to SEG group in 2022 and 2023.

BAEER  BIARNEE R A BB R T T AR
MEPE TREH N B BN &EME

FEEEEIEEREAHARNERARR -

R A
HIEHIA R BRAREMAE o

EHEBBEREBASECRE AR SES T REETF
sHEILA N A BE20224F [ 2023 FSEGE E B HH 2 /Y
B e



35 Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into agreements with certain equipment leasing

BINR AR E D B PR A F] 20235 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

i) the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated to be
used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing companies

and received the payments from leasing companies;

i) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof supports to

the end-user customers;

iiiy  the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts due
by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the end
user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment leasing

companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognise
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-users of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate end-

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
3 TREEEE

ARREETREBEER R REHABP R W
=it

) AKERREBEEEQRHERERGEER
ah AP ER) RMEE R RUER R

iy REMEAFTHERBIZETFRIEAFE

i) A% P LARZ B R BR Y 73 SHE R (A1 RR 7R
ERFER  AEERATENKRAPEN
HERRMAGNHEDH -

%BAX%E’J\EE REE LR m AP HREET
EEFRENEGAHRRTHAEKTIE B
ERmAPEMEERSHEERSE -

users.
The transferred trade receivables and associated liabilities were offset to MEBRmAFPNEENS @ BEAENE S EUGK
the extent of the settlement by the ultimate end-users of the equipment. HREEAED THEE -

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Transferable trade receivables T2 g 5 E R IR 212,812 269,411
Less: allowance B B (13,951) -
198,861 269,411

Liabilities associated with transferable trade RN E|EE 5 REWFRIE
receivables EEMaRE 212,812 269,411

36 Employee benefit obligations 36 EERNEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Defined benefit pension plan (a) TFERAERETEIQ) 116,337 116,988
Other employee benefit provisions Hib{E BBFEE 181,795 105,336
298,132 222,324
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan

The Group’s post-employment benefits include defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
or unfunded pension systems or systems financed by insurance
premiums.

The major pension and post-retirement medical care plans are
described below. These plans are subject to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risks, interest fluctuation risks and capital market risks.

Germany

The pension scheme SEG VORSORGE plan (former Bosch VORSORGE
Plan), which was introduced on January 1, 2006, is a defined
benefit including interest with salary-based contributions. The SEG
VORSORGE Plan is partly funded via an external pension fund. The
value of the assets of the external pension fund is offset against the
pension obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method.
During the vesting period, employer and employee contributions are
added to the assets of pension fund up to the tax-allowed ceiling.
Contributions that exceed the tax-allowed ceiling are allocated to
the unfunded obligation. The benefit amount rises in line with the
performance of the pension fund. Grandfather provisions were
transferred to the former Bosch VORSORGE Plan. For a constantly
decreasing number of members of the workforce in the vesting
period, a transitional arrangement guarantees a fixed rate of return
on the defined benefit obligation. On reaching retirement, or in the
event of occupational disability or death, the earned benefits are paid
out in the form of a lump-sum payment, pension payments, or a
lifelong annuity.

India

The Gratuity Plan in India provides a lump sum benefit to employees
upon leaving for any reason. The benefit is 15 days of the final
base salary for each year of service upon retirement or termination
provided the employee has worked for the company for at least 5
years. In the case of death or disability during active employment,
there is no minimum service requirement to receive the benefit, and
the lump sum amount is 30 days of the final base salary for each
year of service plus 21 days of the final base salary for each expected
future year of service had the death or disability not occurred. There is
a benefit ceiling of one million Indian rupees except for management
employees hired before 7 May 1998 who have no benefit ceiling.

36 EESFETw®
(@) TEEBAIRIREETE

REBERNEEN BB ERET B R EEE
MEHE] o ERRA B RS HF AR
ERGHARBEEINES o

TRERRE MERRERREAINBRER
AT - ZEHVEEBRERR(FIMRSE
b FEIRB AR KR EARTISER) o

2]

SEG VORSORGE &t & iR &k & & #/ ( A7 Bosch
VORSORGEET ) 720061 A1 H#E © A
NEBERR(BEMNE)NEEEF -
SEGVORSORGERT | M abiR & E & IR — B
DES - INBERSESHEERGENERTE
BB DA ENERSE MR - REB
BN BEEREENERSMARKSESH
BEAZIEVERT LR - BEFBESH
ROEFEIEERERET - BRSEAE
BARSESHRBEN - TEPEXCEEE
AiBosch VORSORGE:T I - s iR HIN 4 E) 1
REFHERVOBERME @ BB BELHHRE
TRBHNEENETEHRE - RERSME T
BHER S - FIREBTIE A — K
M BRESENREER TSN H R -

ENE

EEMERSEAREMNRARFANESR
XX AHET - WZEBAARBMNE
ED5F  BRARBRIKIEEREES R
BEEAZHEEGTNISE T o WREBUE
B HAR B il sk A R - S IR A I AR A
RISFHZESR - m—A N RSB AT R
BEE A ZHEEGFH0EFE - S0
B ERERNT B AR FERF
BRIEEF2IBEHM - BF ERA—BEHE
ELb - HERR1998 5 A7 BRI BN E IR E R
BmMEWERA LR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
36 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 36 EEENEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) (@) TERENRNKRETE (=
The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is ERENETEEFENERINTIRAZY

presented in the following table:

Impact of

minimum

Present value Present value funding

Fair value of of funded of unfunded requirement/
plan assets Obligations obligations asset celling Net valug

IR

SHEIAE 3 HER  BEREE
/N EARE BEfRE LRe¥E A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT  AR%TE ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 7202051 A18 637,215 (800,920) (1,387) - (165,092)
Current Period: ZRHAR - 8,608 (36,627) (117) - (28,136)
Current service cost RERASHA - (25, 460) (107) - (25,567)
Interest expense/(income) MemZ/ (BAN) 8,608 (11,167) (10) - (2,569)
Past service cost and gains and BERBAAUR

losses on settlements EEWRRER - _ _ _ _
Remeasurements: B8 (46,818) 93,270 291 - 46,743
Return on plan assets, excluding FEEERB(PEETA

amounts included in interestincome R BUAKLEE) (46,818) - - - (46,818)
Loss from change in demographic BADRREBELNER

assumptions - 1,770 - - 1,770
Loss from change in financial BHBEIESEENEE

assumptions - 55,977 387 - 56,364
Experience gains mEs IS - 35,524 (96) - 35,428
Change in asset ceiling, excluding BELRESH(TRETA

amounts included in interest expense  FISB L HIS%E) - - = - =
Currency translation differences BHhEEE 757 (3,692) (37 - 2,972
Contributions: I (162,315) - - - (162,315)
Employers Ex (162,315) - - - (162,315)
Plan participants HEpmE - - _ _ _
Payments from plans: P ERE ol (61,269) 62,966 % - 1,790
Benefit payments BRI (61,269) 62,966 93 - 1,790
Setilements ©E - - - - -
Others Hit - 63 (208) - (145)
Transferred to third party ERTE=A (60,666) 253,805 - - 193,139

At 31 December 2022 2022512431 315512 (431,136) (1,364) - (116,988)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEENET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EFEARKSE S @)
The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is TREMETCAEFENERIOTRAZY

presented in the following table:

Impact of

minimum

Presentvalue  Present value funding

Fair value of of funded of unfunded requirement/
plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net value

SRR BYEE  FHEREE REHRER/

ZBFE B HE BELR.¥E #E

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  AR®TR  AR®TR AR®TR  AR%TR

At1 January 2023 1202351 A1A 315,512 (431,136) (1,364) - (116,988)
Current Period: RHAf 12,682 (41,695) (83 - (29,096)
Current service cost RERBRA = (23,828) (54) = (23,382)
Interest expense/(income) FERZ/ (WA) 12,682 (18,272) (29) - (5,619)
Past servioe cost and gains and BERBRAARLEE

losses on settlements W RkER - 405 - - 405
Remeasurements: i 21,938 (1,667) 67 - 20,338
Return on plan assets, excluding HEBEDR(TRIETA

amounts included in interestincome M EWAREE) 21,938 - - - 21,938
Loss from change in demographic BAODRREBELHER

assumptions - - 1) - 1)
Loss from change in financial B ERREHELNER

assumptions - (7,906) (59) - (7,965)
Experience gains Fus e - 6,239 121 - 6,366
Change in asset celling, excluding BELREH(TEIEA

amounts included in interest expense  F|SHZH£%E) - - - - =

Currency translation differences EMREES 17,112 (25,464) (63) - (8,415)
Contributions: M 11,487 - - - 11,487
Employers Ex 11,487 - - - 11,487
Plan participants HERmRE = - - . _
Payments from plans: L EREEE (45,772) 54,951 63 - 9,242
Benefit payments BRIAE (45,772) 54,951 63 - 9,242
Settlements #e - - - - -
Others Hfth (3,471) (68) 634 - (2,905)

At 31 December 2023 Ro03E12A31 B 329,488 (445,079) (746) - (116,337)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
36 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 36 EEBANET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EREMRARAKREFE#
For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation MEHMEMS - ERENE(TAIRE ] HEE
can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BEEERMT -

At 31 December 2023

20235128318
Present
value of the Plan Other Unrecognised

RMB‘000 obligation assets assets asset Provision
ARET T BEERE FHEIEE Hth&E KEIEE 3]
Germany =B 389,555 - (293,802) - 95,753
India E 35,059 - (34,644) - 415

424,614 - (328,446) - 96,168

At 31 December 2022

202212 431H
Present
value of the Plan Other  Unrecognised
RMB000 obligation assets assets asset Provision
ARBFT AERE StEIEE HnEE RBEREE B
Germany = 378,956 - (280,959) - 97,997
India ENfE 36,606 - (33,651) - 2,955

415,562 - (314,610) - 100,952
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEENET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EFEARKSE S @)
The Plan assets comprised the following components: FIEIBERENNTIER ¢

As at 31 December 2023
7R2023%F12831H

Germany India

=E NE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

BB E BB E

Equity instruments AT A 44% -
Debt instruments EBITA 46% -
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS FEEY 4% -
Others Hib 6% 100%
100% 100%

As at 31 December 2022
2022412 A31H

Germany India

=H ENE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

BOLLET Epaisd &2

Equity instruments g AT A 43% -
Debt instruments BT A 46% _
Cash and cash equivalents REeRRESEED 1% -
Others HAith 10% 100%

100% 100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
36 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 36 EEBANET @)
(@ Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EREMBARAKREFTE )
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRENOT

As at 31 December 2023

72023128318
Germany India
=H ENE
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
AALEF BALEF
Discount factor BRI = 3.20% 7.10%
Projected salaries growth rate TERISET BN I R R 3.00% 8.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERARAKESIERE 2.00% N/A
TiE

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRNOT

As at 31 December 2022

2022412 A318
Germany India
= ENE
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
AN LLEF ADLLETF
Discount factor BhIBH = 3.70% 7.35%
Projected salaries growth rate TERIE BN R R 3.00% 8.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERRR S IE R 2.00% N/A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 36 EEENET @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) EFEARKSE S @)

To determine the discount factor in the Euro zone, reference was AETRBTREMNMREEZ  E2E5 H—
made to bonds rated AA by at least one rating agency. This was FF RS BARIES - WERRE B H
reviewed as of the reporting date. In all regions the discount factor KRR - FTAENBEEEIRER RS
was determined in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits. ZRIFE1957EERFIET -
Projected salaries are future salary increases estimated on the basis TEORIZT BN T iR IR (R AR 848 B AR S B AR 1
of the economic situation and inflation, among other things. FHEYR R E BN 1R o
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FTEBREREROT
Germany =

As at 31 December 2023

M2023F12A31H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R BB R IE N BRRR D
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BALEF B LEF
Discount factor BRIRAZ= 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 1.9 Increase by 2.2
0518 B 2 & T#1.9 £F82.2
Projected salaries growth rate FERE IS R & 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1  Decrease by 0.1
0.2518 & 2 2 £3Roa1 T 0.1
Projected pension growth rate BRI E R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.2  Decrease by 0.2
0.2518 & 2 2 £3Ro0.2 T&0.2
Life expectancy ST Oneyear Increase by 0.5 N/A

—F E#805 TEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

36 EEBFEX®
(@) TrEEFARKRETEIE

India HE
As at 31 December 2023
72023512 H31H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
EEE - EEE RER 2D
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
AALLEF BALEF
Discount factor BhIBE = 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 2.9 Increase by 3.1
0518 & 7 B T 7829 £33
Projected salaries growth rate T8 B 1% = R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.0  Decrease by 1.0
0.25{E B 7 & £71.0 T#1.0
Projected pension growth rate ~ FEBRRSIZ R = 0.25 percentage points = =
0.25{8 5 2 & = =
Life expectancy SELEEST Oneyear Increase by 0.2 N/A
—F £0.2 ~EHA
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERIRNOT
Germany =E
As at 31 December 2022
7202212 A31H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R E) REZIE AN R
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
A LEFT AOLLET
Discount factor ARIR = 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 2.1 Increase by 2.4
R EEE T 2.1 24
Projected salaries growth rate TEBIH NS R 2R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.25(E 5 7 Bh 7801 T#50.1
Projected pension growth rate FBRRIKESIE R R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.3 Decrease by 0.3
0.25(E 5 7 Bh 1703 T#90.3
Life expectancy e One year Increase by 0.6 N/A
—& +550.6 TE A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

36 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

36 EERNET®

() EFEMEARTFE )

India BE
As at 31 December 2022
7202212 4318
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
(EE ¢ R38N RFR D
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BOLLEF BOLET
Discount factor BRIR A Z= 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 3.0 Increase by 3.2
0.5EEH 2 T383.0 3.2
Projected salaries growth rate  JE RIS 1% & & 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.0 Decrease by 1.0
0.25{E B 72k #1.0 TH1.0
Projected pension growth rate  FEARR & IE R &= 0.25 percentage points - -
0.2518 & 7 - -
Life expectancy jEEEEST) One year Increase by 0.2 N/A
—4& 0.2 TEMA
37 Share capital
Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
LHAR LHHR #ar
Number of Number of Number of

share Amount share Amount share Amount
ROHE £8 RAEEA £8 RAEEA x|
'000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
TR AR%ETR TR AR%ETR TR AR%ETR
At 31 December 2022 20224124318 1,535,411 1,539,011 243,234 243,234 1,778,645 1,782,245
At 31 December 2023 #2023 12A31H 1,538,175 1,538,175 243,234 243,234 1,781,409 1,781,409

() Movements in ordinary shares

) EEREBER

Number of shares Total
RHOEE st
Notes (thousands) RMB’000
BiaE (F8%) ARETT

Details 15
Opening balance 1 January 2022 2022F1 A1 B 9S4 1,779,493 1,779,493
Forfeited restricted shares during the year PR U B9 BR i AR Z 39 (848) (848)
Exercise of share options — proceeds received 1T{F & IS — B UL P18 0E 38 - 3,600
Balance 31 December 2022 2022F12 A31 B 45 1,778,645 1,782,245
Forfeited restricted shares during the year TATE AZ U HIBR I M IR Z 39 (1,728) (1,728)
Exercise of share options — proceeds received 1T{F & IS #E — B UL TS Z0E 38 4,492 892
Balance 31 December 2023 2023F 12 A31 B 1,781,409 1,781,409
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mEMEImRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
38 Share option 38 fEMRRE
Employee Option Plan e B BitERT 2l

The establishment of the A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved
by shareholders at the Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, the
First A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and the First H Shareholders
Class Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the
Share Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of
options to the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company.
Under the plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain
performance standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the board’s
discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the
plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company has provided RMB1,326,000 (2022: RMB7,116,000) in
respect of these options as share-based payment expenses in 2023.

The source of the underlying shares of the scheme shall be ordinary A
Shares in RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the participants.

& PA20195F10 A 21 B 21TAI20194F 28 — K ER FF A%
BAE - 2019F 5 — RARRIERIIE R A S K&20194F
F—IRHIREERI IR R K & £ b AR L AR % SR HAME
HEET S - RIBEREERAEE - ARFEM
EEBBEERIE T2 E AR E AR R ARRR
T o REZE BTRBHSOAEEEHRESE
FRBIZER - FEHEE - AUKTEIN2HAE
FERBHAT - ARECAEARESREINS
HRZ AT B SR BT B (R 55 ©

1 55 8 ) R BURBUR N AR R R R B A 2 B E R
BRME - —KHE - BRER12(EABEATT
1T »

MR2023F  ARRERZEHENFREARE
1,326,0007T (20224F : AR¥E7,116,0007T ) 1E A LA
D EERONTAY

ZaTBIRANBRERRAAR AR ER AR K%
TTHARBARE BEEE

2023 2022
20235 20224F

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options

BHRE BHRE

HARERY HAERY

FIGTEE MRS R FHITEE HEAREZNE
As at 1 January M1A1H 5.1501 5,800,600 5.5851 10,063,400
Granted during the year RERFEH - - - -
Exercised during the year RERNTTE 45901 (891,000) 5.1501 (3,600,300)
Forfeited during the year RERLUL 4.5901 (576,640) 5.1501 (662,500)
As at 31 December W12 A31H 4.5901 4,332,960 5.1501 5,800,600
Vested and exercisable M12731H8

at 31 December 25 ERA T 4.5901 4,332,960 5.1501 891,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
38 Share option (Continued) 38 ERE®
Employee Option Plan (continued) e B HAMEET &l ()
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry RERMAITEMEZEAEAEB LA TEE R K176
dates and exercise prices: & :
Share options Share options
outstanding at outstanding at
Exercise 31 December 31 December
Grant Date Expiry date price 2023 2022
120235 720224
12A31H 12H31H
5 ARITER EENERELD)
& B E E|H8 A TEE REHRE [ = At
04 November 2019 19 December 2022 4.5901 - -
2019411 B4H 202212 819H
04 November 2019 19 December 2023 4.5901 - 891,000
2019411 B4H 202312 819H
04 November 2019 19 December 2024 4.5901 4,332,960 4,909,600
2019411 B4H 202412 819H
Total 4,332,960 5,800,600
“aEt
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period - 0.66 years

IREIR M ARTTE BB A F 1988 T & B F 53 0.664F
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

38 BRE®
& B HitEsTE8) (@)

(i) Fair value of options granted (i) EREBENDEE

38 Share option (continued)

Employee Option Plan (Continued)

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair
value at grant date is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes Model which includes a Monte Carlo
simulation model that takes into account the exercise price, the term
of the option, the impact of dilution (where material), the share price
at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share,
the expected dividend yield, the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option and the correlations and volatilities of the peer group
companies.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
December 2023 included:

(@ options are granted for no consideration and vest based
on Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected
companies over a three year period. Vested options are
exercisable for a period of two years after vesting

(b) exercise price: RMB5.795 (the exercise price changed to
RMB5.1501 per share in 2022)

(c) grant date: 4 November 2019

(d) expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023 and 19
December 2024

(e) share price at grant date: RMB6.05 per share

() expected price volatility of the Company’s shares:

30.38% First phase
% —F&EZ30.38%

(@ expected dividend yield: Nil
(h) risk-free interest rate:

2.8219% Two years
R 2.8219%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based
on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

29.93% Second phase
£ [ E29.93%

2.9280% Three years
=%2.9280%

REE2023F12 A31 B IEFER A HIERE
B B AT E A T E A TR D AR E0.49
7T o IR BB A FE T E R AREMRRER
& ERHT(Black Scholes) i8R B G T - ZIEAIEK
FAS £ 2 (Monte Carlo)iB#E% - & st R EIRE
WITERE - 8 - BENYE(WEBEKR) « B
i B HARI AR (B R ARRARR (0 O TE BRE SR 18 -
TEHARY B e - HiREF AR BRI TR - LA
R EFEEE N R RRE I RORIE o

REZE2023F12 431 B L FER H AR

R ABIEBIE

(@ HEDNETRERD - WREAARER
20EASERE A AN REEEANEEER =
FHERB - CHEBHENEBEMTH
BIRE P17

b)) TT6E(E : ARKES.79570 (2022F FHATIE
B A ARES515017T)

€ IRHEHEE 201911 B4H

d Z/HIA : 20229127198 - 202312319
H %2024F12 A19H

() MEREAHRIE  SRRHARK6.05
7T

0 AEROBIERKE

40.83% Third phase
% =& ER40.83%

O FEHIREM
() R

3.0197% Four years
P943.0197%

TERMER R R T AN 2 R b8 (IR B HHE R
HTFHFE) /Y - YREAFAFERE
HEEATRHIARIOR R EH FHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

39 Restricted share incentive scheme

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a
restricted share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a
total number of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted
to the selected 186 employees (including directors) of the Group (the
“Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the
date of the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares
to the date when all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are
unlocked or repurchased and cancelled.

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to
the Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant
and the unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled
to acquire the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted
shares after the lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to
the fulfilment of the relevant conditions under the Scheme.

Upon expiry of the Lock-up Period, the Company shall proceed with
unlocking for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and
the restricted shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the
Unlocking Conditions shall be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price
of RMB5.88 per A share under the Scheme, and the amount of
RMB248,724,000 cash received from the Participants is recorded as trade
and other payables. In 2022 and 2023, upon the first unlocking period and
second unlocking period due, except for some forfeited shares which were
repurchased, the related repurchase liabilities for these unlocked shares
were derecognised. As at 31 December 2023, the remaining balance
of repurchase liability is RMB52,427,000 (2022: RMB118,198,000)
recorded in trade and other payables (Note 31).

In 2023, the Company has provided RMB24,464,000 (2022:
RMB84,743,000) as share-based payment expenses in respect of these
restricted shares.

39

PRI AR R A=t &)

202166 48 + AEBRERFASEHH—IAR
FIMERR S BN R T 21 ([ 3451 81)) - BIKZETE) © (AR
FE1HRCETEE(RRES) ([ FEYHR]) %
17 R 5% F 4 $£42,300,0000% 2 £2 EARL °

ZETE BRI R ERFERRR FTER TR B
EHBHRERNRFIERREMAERRERDE
FHEHc B1E - TiEBiB48 A A -

ZET B T R BR B 1A% 2R E B B BB S R SR
IR R HEEE - BT RMNERRE R ZHM
ik A12 @A -

BEER IR REENE T BEARS
IR R R ERR G R R R E IR B ERBIE
BRER - 1R R AT IR N HIARBRLT -

FRRR IR & BEm IR - N AN A R R R IR S 51
HAEN S RARRRIRE - 1 AR 2 AR R IR B I HE
BV KA R GIMERR K AR R EEEH o

R2021F6 A7H - AR ERIEZFTEIRERRARA
R 55,88 7T M {E 1% 257742,300,000A% AN - B & B
S UERHIIR & A RH5248,724,0007T5T A E 5 R HAb
JERFFRIA © FA20224F }20234F » A & {ERBRER & 57
MEZ(EERRERREE  RERBNEIER
WMo - ZEFERRRERNHEEE EREKL
R FA2023F 128310 - NE S R HEAMENFKIE
FRSFIgRCIE B A A RHE52,427,0007T (20224F
AR1118,198,0007T) (F13E31) o

2023F - AAFIE A SR HIERZHRARE
24,464,0007T (20224F = AR #84,743,0007T ) 1E A LA
RAD AR FRES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
39 Restricted share incentive scheme (Continued) 39 PRAEIMER Z B8 (@)
The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares ZETEIE TR Bl 1 I R RO AR BR R 6 HA K & s 5 R
and unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme R IR ER PN T RATR -

are set out in the table below:

EPN BEREAAR 5 B AR (0 A BR A A 20234 5]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Unlocking
Arrangement of Unlocking Period  Unlocking duration percentage
BN PR EHA 2 Bk 1% B PR 5 BF RS 7% B PR 5 EE 5
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date 40%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of
Grant
B — IR FRBRPR E ER BRTHEBIEAENEER S HRER T HB24E AR &E —ER
ZHERIE
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of
Grant
5 IR FRBRBR 5 ER BRTHBUEAENEER S HREER T HE36E AN RE —ER
ZHERIE
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of
Grant
= IR FRBRIR E EA BT HIEGEAZENEER S HRER T HR48E AR &E —(ER
ZHERIE
The restricted shares outstanding at the period end listed below: BRI TIEINPR Bl 1 AR RS REA
2023 2022
20235 20224F
Number of Number of
restricted restricted
Issued price shares Issued price shares
BRIl 14 PR 114
BITER FHE BITEE [ 1 gE|
Opening balance 1 January 1AV B8R4 5.88 24,648,000 5.88 42,300,000
Issued during the year REREETT 5.88 - 5.88 -
Forfeited during the year REREI 5.88 (1,728,000) 5.88 (848,000)
Unlocked during the year RERNEEG 5.88 (11,706,000) 5.88 (16,804,000)
Balance 31 December 12 A31 B 4% 5.88 11,214,000 5.88 24,648,000
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40 Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

40 FEIERRER
THRIRAEAIHERIERS A EEMIEREHBA

Group that have significant non-controlling interests: EESEIE
Profit/(loss) and other
Place of Proportion of comprehensive income
establishment equity interest held by allocated to non-controlling Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest interests Year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business as at December 31 December 31 as at December 31
BENANALEE
R2A31H PREFERERN
Bt E R FERESZEEN B/ (BB REM2E MW2A31H
MEARER TEEXHY RAEZAD L iz Rt ERER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20206 2023 20026 20235 20226
ASIMCO Shuanghuan (Note (a)) PRC 47.01% 36.46% 48,290 51,224 426,403 410,094
THRER (M) w
Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Gontrol Technology
Co., Ltd. (‘Hengda Intelligent”) (Note (b)) PRC 14.98% 14.98% 132,414 24,092 364,791 241,510
BMEEBERERNERAF
(e ) (Fz) HE
ASIMCO (Nanjing) Limited (“ASIMCO Nanjing”)
(Note (a)(c)) PRC 16.61% NA 57,028 54,065 1,068,930 531,252
TR TERM(ER)BRRF (R
AR (e ) HE NEm
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests PRC N/A N/A 28,737 21,062 112,608 82,686
EFERERNENTEANHEAR  HE TER TEH
Elimination with the Group (18,778) (9,449) (43,212) (24,434)
BAREHH
199,401 89,770 1,503,117 831,014
Note: FizE -

(@ ASIMCO Shuanghuan is a subsidiary of ASIMCO Nanjing, thus the financial
figures of non-controlling interests of ASIMCO Nanjing included the related
non-controlling interests of ASIMCO Shuanghuan.

(b) On 9 September 2022, Hengda Intelligent entered into the capital increase
agreement with the Company, the business partners and investors of
the Group, the core shareholder of Hengda Intelligent and the strategic
investors. Prior to the entering into and implementation of the capital increase
agreement, the Company held 100% equity interest in Hengda Intelligent,
and Hengda Intelligent was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
business partners and investors of the Group, the core shareholder of Hengda
Intelligent and the strategic investors contributed RMB871,650,000 and held
14.98% equity interest in Hengda Intelligent in total, which resulted in the
increase of non-controlling interests by RMB216,708,000. After the capital
increase transaction, the Company held 85.02% equity interest in Hengda
Intelligent.

TSHHBRATHMERNNEAR - MEHEE
FHIEE R R TS U B R T R B IR A AR IR
PR o

M2022F9 A9 - BEFITHEANT EEFHES
BAREE  BEEREZOEBRRELBKNES
FEIIE R c RAKIEE R H#ET LB
AR F B EEEIEI100%MRE - BESZEANR
NEZEEMBRAR - EBEEABARESE
BEEEZLEHRBRRELREBEEEELEARE
871,650,0007C0 & HHiF A 1B 15514.98% A% 1 - FE
JEE R A 25 1 0 A R %5 216,708,0007C ° HE X 55
1% - AR R B 1585.02% A% 1 o
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40 Non-controlling interests (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

©

On 4 July 2023, ASIMCO Nanijing entered into the capital increase agreement
with the Company, the business partners and investors of the Group, the
core shareholder of ASIMCO Nanjing and the strategic investors. Prior to
the entering into and implementation of the capital increase agreement,
the Company held 100% equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing, and ASIMCO
Nanjing was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The business
partners and investors of the Group, the core shareholder of ASIMCO Nanjing
and the strategic investors contributed RMB544,920,000 and held 16.61%
equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing in total, which resulted in the increase of
non-controlling interests by RMB516,279,000. After the capital increase
transaction, the Company held 83.39% equity interest in ASIMCO Nanjing.

The aggregated financial information for the main non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group including ASIMCO Nanjing and Hengda Intelligent

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

40 FEIERRRER ()

st - (8)

© H2023F7R48 - THBEERERQT - NERY
FEABARKEES DR RO ORERE
B EEF IR ERE - NISEREFI I REH
BT ARAFA R R R EA100%M 4 - fE
MERARRARNEENBAR - AEBHEE
ABAREESE  DHEEEOROKRE KB
WEEHE ARES44,920,000T * WA KIFERH
BIERE16.61%%E « SHIFERERIEMARE
516,279,0007T ° ML ERX P TKIE - NATIFHET
TR R H983.39% A% HE o

AEETZ2F2EMBRR(BERHMBERIE
ERE)NERMEERIIRAT

is listed below:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Current assets BB E 7,263,483 6,023,023
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,818,453 2,247,014
Current liabilities REBRE 3,495,930 2,964,870
Non-current liabilities IERBaE 621,846 240,305
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PIN/NEE &SN Sy 4,530,439 4,292,100
Non-controlling interests Bl 1,433,721 772,762
Revenue N 6,731,273 5,508,155
Expenses 3 5,598,788 4,577,239
Profit and total comprehensive income WA Rk EsE 1,132,485 930,916
Profit and total comprehensive income A B A s A &
attributable to owners of the Company SHKGBEE 943,043 852,759
Profit and total comprehensive income IEFERE R S R AR T B
attributable to the non-controlling interests 2ENEAREE 189,442 78,157
Profit and total comprehensive income WA Rk EsE 1,132,485 930,916
Net cash inflow from operating activities LETEE IR B AFEE 1,517,670 1,095,810
Net cash outflow from investing activities EESHIR G R R 5 (425,990) (1,677,322)
Net cash inflow from financing activities B EEE IR & AERE 157,991 601,928
Net cash inflow B RAFRE 1,249,671 20,416
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41 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of BRI AERIELRE
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not provided

in the consolidated financial statements

REHEA N

IS mERETR
BENABKEDE  BER

41 ERERE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
543,858 999,163

42 Related party transactions

Before 26 February 2021, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the ultimate controlling party of the Company was Henan SASAC of the
PRC government and that the Group is subject to the control of the PRC
government. In accordance with IAS 24, entities that are controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“PRC
government related entities”) are regarded as related parties of the Group.
Due to the complex ownership structure, the PRC government may hold
indirect interests in many companies. Some of these interests may, in
themselves or when combined with other indirect interests, be controlling
interests which may not be known to the Group.

After the group structure changed from 26 February 2021, the Company
has no de facto controller (Note 1), in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the investors held more than 5% of total shares and their
related parties treated as the related parties of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group entered
into transactions with its related parties which are set out below. The
related party transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and at terms negotiated between the Group and the respective
related parties.

(@ The Group and its investors

Sales of goods and service

HEE MRS

2 BEHRAERS

20212 A268 251 * NABIEEFRE - AAH
WRRIEH T ATFREBITTEERES - AmAs
B2 EBFE o RIEBR SRR 2458 - &
REIETIRS] - HREHSREATENERE([FE
BSREER DR ARNEENEE - ARME
TSR - P EBUF A RIS A2 AR AE
o WORSHSAGREBEMEEESELES
By - ATRERE R AN B R A AN A IR AR AE RS ©

B2021 52 A6 A R ERIB R AR BIR - AQFYL
BERESACIED)  A2REERE - HAKR
10 B85% A EREER VIR & & R E B T R A A
NGk

HE2023F K2022F 12 A B ILFE » AEBEE
BRI RS ZERFGEN T - BB AR
TR IE B ¥i5ERR IR AL E B EEN S EEN

(@) AEBNKEKRES

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFT

2,329 3,131

Purchase of goods and services

REEE R RS

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFT

2,647,233

2,604,606
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42 Related party transactions (Continued)
(@ The Group and its investors (continued)

The details of outstanding balances with investors and their related
parties are set as follows:

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

42 BEERS
(@) NEELKHKRESE @)

BRI EE R E AR H R ERERF BRI
™

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade and other receivables from investors TEYISEENE 5 R H bl IE 744 2,044
2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Trade and other payables to investors FERIREENE 5 N E M EN B 30,688 25,491
2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Amount prepaid to investors TEREERFIA 156,369 78,134

The Group’s investors include the investors and their subsidiaries.

The amount due to investors was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(b) The Group and other PRC government related entities

The Group ceased to be controlled by Henan SASAC since 26
February 2021, and other PRC government related entities were not
considered as related parties since then.

AEENREERRREERAMB AR -

FEMEEENFUERBEA - 28 RARERE

(b) AEERE M EBRFHEER

B2021F2 4268 » AEETZ/ImEHE
ZiEd - AR BT E R A LT AR
AT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E
42 Related party transactions (Continued) 2 BHRAERS @
(c) The Group and its associates and joint ventures 0 AEBEEHEBERAINGEDRE
The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates AEEBEABE AR RS EDEEIT NIIE
and joint ventures. BRG o

2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Sales of goods and services HEE m &R
Associates ik NS 116,933 164,238
Joint ventures aEE 5,591 10,673
122,524 174,911
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETFT

Purchase of goods and services HE S m MRS
Associates i lNG]| 400,328 278,176
Joint ventures BEDE 107,701 51,461

508,029 329,637




42 Related party transactions (Continued)
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

2 BHRAERS @)

HEBZERARRAEDLE

(c) The group and its associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates
and joint ventures as at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

) ~&EHE

20234 [220224F12 A31 B » AN [F B H B
AELERUTREERSS

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Trade and other receivables from: B 5 R EA RS
Associates T/ 30,832 1,454
Joint ventures AEDHE 63,534 69,996
94,366 71,450
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Trade and other payables to: B 5 Rk EAEM A
Associates /NS 212,703 64,712
Joint ventures BEE 26,642 20,803
239,345 85,515
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Amounts prepaid to: JERTRBI ST 50E ¢
Associates /NS 4,609 4,625
Joint ventures BEDE 11,672 22,510
16,281 27,135
All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures are from THE L - TERBEEMNBE AT REERER

trade in nature. The amount due to associates and joint ventures are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

BENREES - ENBE AR REEEENARE
- B RARERERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&
42 Related party transactions (Continued)
(d) Remuneration of key management personne

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

42 BHAERS @)
o) FEEBAEHS

PTEERHEMTIEEEABNMEOT

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® Tt ARET T

Short-term benefits S HIRE A 19,141 21,079
Restricted share incentive scheme PR 1) 14 R 22 8B = 2 11,693 25,791
Share options 1% SEHARE 105 1,369
Post-employment bengfits RIKEF 430 452
31,369 48,691

Key management represents the executive directors and other
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends. The
share options provided to key management personnel is equity-
settled.

43 Contingent liabilities
(@) Notes receivable

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to the Group that may
result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised notes
receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Outstanding endorsed notes receivable

with recourse FEUE B

TEERASREFRTRBENRITES A
MEREEAR - TEERABNMESIRE
BAARRETSBEETE - AEBEEARR
HEBRIETI A SEE -

43 HZAREE
(a) EUEIE

NAFE » REBAEE R ITHERE TR
SEMHAEHEAZEERENE S REME
B - ARAEERS - ARNFAESEHE
WRERBERFOPBERITHE L RIRMHE
® - BMRNEENEEEENRRAE - RS
BERR - ARERIEARNZESERKILL
R BN E M AAENRARRIT

BERENHAEEDEE

2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARMET T
1,765,771 1,922,511

These endorsed and derecognised notes receivable have a maximum
maturity of 1 year, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these
endorsed and derecognised notes receivable, representing the
Group’s maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honor their
notes and guarantees, amounted to RMB1,765,771,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB1,922,511,000).

ZEBERKIEERNEREEOSERE RS
fRA—F » H2023F12A31H » ZSEHERK
IFERH BN EIRAMBR S RAEAARKE
1,765,771,0007C (20224F = A R #1,922,511,000
TL)  MEBITIRITREENIBEEE R RER - 8
REAEEN RS EIBE -
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43 Contingent liabilities (continued) 43 FREE/EH®
(b) Trade receivable transferred b) ESEHE FEWRFIA
During the year, the Group has derecognised certain trade A ARBEERIERESERRTHET
receivables without recourse which were transferred to banks, and EBREEFHENGIE - URERIFERNE
the trade receivables derecognised without recourse but not due BREBR2023F12A31HEARZHNE S fE
as at 31 December 2023 amounting to RMB258,653,000 (2022: W R TE A R ¥4 258,653,0007T (20224 + AR
RMB283,140,000). 283,140,0007T) °
44 Disposal of a subsidiary in 2022 4 HE—FBMBLATR
In March 2022, the Group signed an equity transfer agreement to sell all M2022F 37 - AEBEFEREERGE - BER
of its 51% equity interests in Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co., Ltd. EMEEH1 WAL E REERER AR ([PE])
(“Super Electric”) to a third party, Hubei Jingchuan Intelligent Equipment AR 1 F 58 = b8 || SRR B D B R
Co., Ltd. with total consideration of RMB331,328,000, among which, cash naE - RELEAARNES3,328,0007T - HFRE
consideration was RMB310,673,000. The cash consideration has been KRB A ARE310,673,0007 - EEESREDEY
fully received and the transaction was completed in March 2022. After the WEIRRHR202F3A TN - RHTME - 8%
transaction, Super Electric ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group. THAXEEHHB AT -
The financial performance and cash flow information of Super Electric B2 RIR S TREE R THE E2022
presented are for the three months ended 31 March 2022. FIANBIE=EA -
Revenue oN 157,495
Expenses Fs (160,309)
Loss before income tax B 1S B BT e (2,814)
Income tax credit FTi3#iEe 422
Loss after income tax BrRATISBiE &R (2,392)
Total loss after income tax for the period attributable to: AN AT ERGT 2 B8 4a%E -
Owners of the Company Pi/NC]igES (1,220)
Non-controlling interests IR (1,172
Gain on sale of the subsidiary after income tax (Note a) BRFT/SHi % HE M B L T UL zs (FizEa) 174,839
Net cash inflow from operating activities RESEEN IR £ AFRE 2,459
Net cash outflow from investing activities ARSI FE (165)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BB REMIR S AT 2,653

Net increase in cash generated by the subsidiary MEBAREENBESEINESE 4,947
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44 Disposal of a subsidiary in 2022 (continued)

Note a: Details of the sale of the subsidiary

44 HE—RBMBARE)
Mista : HEK B GIF#E

Consideration received or receivable: Bk AR AE -
Cash Re 310,673
Non-cash consideration JFEERE 20,655
Total disposal consideration HERERH 331,328
Carrying amount of net assets sold EEFEAERAE (158,960)
Gain on sale before income tax and reclassification of BRETEHATHERS R EF D EINSRE G

foreign currency translation reserve 172,368
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve B D EINERE 23126
Gain on sale before income tax BRATER AT E W 195,494
Income tax expense on gain R FTE R (20,695)
Gain on sale after income tax BRATER B HERE 174,839

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of Super Electric as at the

date of disposal were:

REERSHEEERBENRIES :

Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 36,060
Financial assets at fair value through NAFEE BT AL MEEKEN

other comprehensive income SREE 130,115
Trade and other receivables B 5 M HE M EUGRIA 186,526
Inventories FE 174,454
Property, plant and equipment YE - R NEE 115,772
Right-of-use assets EREEE 22,982
Intangible assets mILEE 85,404
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTS TR EE 8,913
Total assets EEE 760,226
Borrowings [E3d 30,000
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENTRIE 388,578
Provision B 13,000
Deferred income tax liability RIEFFERAE 17,019
Total liabilities Bk 448,597
Net assets of Super Electric HEEEFRE 311,629
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45 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities and equity
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

45 BMEFTBAELENAEYHER

(a) (EFFLIBRFE

TRAGAEENBREZSAELNRENE
D 2% BRASLIFRSED - BEEREM
EENBEESIZREREIRKASRER
AEEGARESRERTCORIB O BRRE
BRPMELNRERENZFAB -

Liabilities

associated with
transferred Interests
Borrowings Leases trade receivables payable

BEEEEN

B 5 EWRIA
BHE HE HENEE EARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT AREFTT AREFTT
At 1 January 2022 202291 A1 5,798,610 1,246,071 687,473 21,688
Financing cash flows — net BERERE—FE 1,777,475 (191,312) - (221,602)
Finance costs (Note 9) BB AN (Fi1EE9) - - - 226,682
New leases HHEE - 312,789 - -
Currency exchange differences  &# 4 Hh=5E 3,885 29,454 - 598
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHEAR (30,000) - - -
Others (Note) HoAd (P 5E) - - (418,062) -
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 7,549,970 1,397,002 269,411 27,366
At 1 January 2023 7202351 A1H 7,549,970 1,397,002 269,411 27,366
Financing cash flows — net MERGNE ¥ (384,731) (242,135) - (343,007)
Finance costs (Note 9) BB AN (FHEE9) - - - 330,225
New leases HwHEE - 134,776 - -
Currency exchange differences &S 5 = 137,998 58,185 - 20,866
Others (Note) H A (FffzE) - - (56,599) -
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 7,303,237 1,347,828 212,812 35,450

Note: The amount of liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables
represented the offset of trade receivables against liabilities associated
with transferred trade receivables to the extent of the settlement by the
ultimate end-users of the equipment.

st EEEMESREGRRBN B ESEE
INE 5 EFIRIKHE 8180 B 5 IR
EHRENEE  URBREAPENER
MR e

239
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45 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities

45 BEFBMEENREHR@

(B) JEREIE KAL)

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFT

Debt restructurings EREH 13,223 -

Change of an investment WEEE) 445,911 -
Dividends declared to non-controlling M IR AE R B R B AR A

interests but not paid (Note 1) & 2 (FIEET) - 141,764

459,134 141,764

Note 1: In March 2022, Super Electric declared a dividend of RMB141,764,000
to non-controlling interests, which has not been paid upon disposed.

46 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

Management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio ((total liabilities netting off cash and cash equivalents)/

total equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were as
follows:

Gearing ratio BEEERLLE

MisE © 20223 A - BERSEHERERSTRARE
141,764,0007THIAR B, - BB ER M AR ©

46 EXRRABER

AEBERRAAR - LR AEERNE BT
EREEE - TR IR B L T RS 8
BRGRARR « AREY HEHHRZTE -

AEENEARBRBEFURA DR R REGE
B ERERA - REE R EMEE -

)
zZs
I

ARAEREESFENEARE - (ERZAEHNN
Hp—R EEESERESANANRESHRERR
MoER o RIBFEEENES  AREREBXN
RS BITHR  BEHEBREEREEETE
HERBRE -

AREEEA2023F N 20226F 12 A31 HEY B & EAES
R(BERERBREREESSEY), TESEE)m
—F :

2023 2022
20234 20224F
104% 119%




47 Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets:
Financial assets at fair value:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost:
Trade and other receivables (excluding

BINR AR E D B PR A F] 20235 3
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IIV_\%E.\ji%iﬁéé Bﬂ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
47 €@ T A
TR ITADE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARMET T

SRAE -
BATFEIIRNSRAR
S -LE LECTEDN

BENeREE 5,951,034 5,228,176
AT ER B B REBIA

Hip2EMGE NS RATE 4,256,254 5,291,201
PTEEHBIA 33,867 4,890

RESHRAGT B SREE -
B 5 REMRYGIA(T B2

prepayments and other tax recoverable) FEMERIE R E M AT B R IE ) 9,165,924 7,730,097
Cash and cash equivalents ReE MRS EEY 4,729,233 3,613,443
Bank deposits RITER 3,414,608 3,402,435
Long-term receivables RHEKEE 429,728 254,500
Transferred trade receivables CEENE S ERE 198,861 269,411
Finance lease receivables BT & U e 100,823 100,957
Total st 28,280,332 25,895,110
Financial liabilities: SRIBE -
Financial liabilities at fair value: BAFEYIENERAE
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 11,453 17,395
Liabilities at amortised cost: REHK AT ENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TeiEEematE) 11,489,305 10,278,117
Liabilities associated with transferred trade Mo BEMNE S EWIEE @y
receivables afE 212,812 269,411
Borrowings ®7eE 7,303,237 7,549,970
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,347,828 1,397,002

Total

FEy 20,364,635 19,511,895

201
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48

49

Events after the reporting period

The Board held a meeting on 29 December 2023 and passed a resolution,
pursuant to which it agreed to handle the matters in relation to the
exercise by 283 eligible participants during the third exercise period in
accordance with the relevant requirements of the 2019 A Share Option
Incentive Scheme of the Company, involving 4,332,960 exercisable
shares. On 24 January 2024, 280 participants with number of 4,128,960
shares were exercised in accordance with the relevant provisions under
the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme. The remaining 204,000 shares are to
be exercised.

On 28 March 2024, the Board approved a profit incentive scheme which is
related to the financial performance of the Group from 2024 to 2026, and
this resolution is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Summary of other accounting policies
Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

48

49

BEMRER

BEEMN2023F12 208 BT HWIBBE B RE
= Bt ERERRBAQR2019F AR I S HiE
BRI Bk - PEIR283 R A IR AR
HENE=EATHRBANTESE - P RAUTER
224,332,9600% © 720241 A24H - 28022 EHE R
B2019F EARE BN R T BB E1THE - TTREREAR
4,128,9600% o E #r204,0000% 5 F171E

202453 A28 - EE R E —TREARE F2024
FE2026F S EEEENF BB E - ZWRE

AEBRBUBEBABEEBEHAR  THES
ERERATASEMEE - SARBHBLREE
MRERRE :

o FTEREBEMDFE

o HWWEEBIHAAEENAR

o AKEDEITRA KR

.« SARERHFELEMEAEREENAF
R

o MEBRRMEMENFENRAERENAFE -

EEBE Gt ATRIE R R BR E E U R PIEIEN &
BERFIABIE - PFAERUE BB Q- FE
B - AEBUFBRWEELE - AP ESIRIFHER
R PTG B B R Rl R h B B E M EL DI RERA
R B RE RO (L A FRAE AR AR ©

W IR AR E LR S8
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49 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either:

e hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm
commitment (fair value hedges), or

e hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the economic
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, including
whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments are
expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedged items. The Group
documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking its
hedge transactions.

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

9 HErBEREE (»)

EBRE @
P (g #ﬁ%%ﬁ%&ﬁ#?h@ﬁéﬁ&

P ULEE T Se BT A R AR 2 AU BE B HRA A
@ﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@%vﬁ%@
IARTZPER -

IRRELEREELCHEE - DPREREE
& %EE&%EQ?TEé%)ﬂ#; ARTEESHR

BRETHER - DEARGNEEITBENIE A
BRESHETEESPARR -

WA Gt BT - RIS SE T A RO B
@%Eﬂx$% =UEE B EIRO BRI E R U B HiR

RFEEHE - ARREHEMELOREN
EERN RSP ER -

OTAET A NS R 8

PTHETARFITETASRZ BRATFEYSE
R HRZENSHEPR RO A THEEHNE - 2
:HEBEE{% """"" BHETREIRNMTETARGIEE
REH TR - IIEE REHM T A - AIBURRNE
HEMUE - AEBEEE TITATAER

o EHMREENEBRBTEAENQTEEM
(RFEEM) - K

o HMDWREEREBERIGA R BEETTRTRNZ
SRS REEMEN —BFRARET(RE
MEHH)

REDHRGER - NEBTEE T TAMETIER M
REREF  BRPTANASREEPRATAY
HHEMEA RS REBES - ARELSETYH
MR SZERERETE B IR MRS o

263



264

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

49 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge
relationships are disclosed in Note 23. The full fair value of a hedging
derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is
classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified as a

current asset or liability.

(a) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in cash
flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss within
“other gains/losses, net”.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the options as the
hedging instrument. The Group classified foreign currency options
and commodity option as held-for-trading derivatives and accounted
for them at FVPL.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in
intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the options
that relate to the hedged item (“aligned time value”) are recognised
within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within equity.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group generally designates only the change in fair value of the
forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging
instrument. Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of
the change in the spot component of the forward contracts are
recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The change
in the forward element of the contract that relates to the hedged
item (“aligned forward element”) is recognised within OCI in the
costs of hedging reserve within equity. In some cases, the Group
may designate the full change in fair value of the forward contract
(including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In such cases,
the gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in
fair value of the entire forward contract are recognised in the cash
flow hedge reserve within equity.

49

HSstBERE g
PTET A RS HEE) (&)

REDRBFRRIEENITE SR T AR FEREM 23
EE - BEINIEE RISREIREE12(8 AR - Erh
TETANZBRAHESGROBRIFRBEERE
18 o EHIAE NFBRBRDR2(E AR - 0T
AETANZHEATESHOBERARBEERAE -
EEMENITETARNEARBEENRAR

@

e EtEENR SRR

BEMFAREREHPNITETANAFE
B AR EREANRSREL DG
FRER o BREME D R BB E
s E e BIRF R TR -

EHESRARENIENRSE - AEEEE
EHEAANEEERE P TA - KAEERINE
iR MRS BRFHEEETETARIA
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SR A B R B AR R
BRSSP R - B
BB AR GBS REELE( ARHEE
B B R B RRUR R R 2 TR
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REBWRTEMAREPERR S - BEE
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(BREHHBOEER/LIT T o It - ME
EHERQFEESNBERE D BRI S
SEEN R NHIR S RE B P P RER o
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49 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

(@

(b)

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued)

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss, as follows:

e \Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset (such as inventory), both the deferred
hedging gains and losses and the deferred time value of the
option contracts or deferred forward points, if any, are included
within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects
profit or loss (for example through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest
rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in
profit or loss within finance cost at the same time as the interest
expense on the hedged borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging
in equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction
occurs, resulting in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as
inventory. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that
were reported in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in profit or
loss and are included in “other gains/losses, net”.

IIV_\/EI\E\ZI-ﬁ%iﬁ?—% M;J-%I
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; Z2023%12 A31 B It F[E

49 HbE5BERBE ()
PTET A RS R EE (&)
@) BAHTEFEENESRBYE(E)

RRTHRFERNENIRE YRR SRS
FORRMT

o EIPIER HKS| BRI REE (D)
WEE) - REE Sh Y e K & 18 A K
A RSUEEE R (E ) IR
BEBFFABENTIAKRA o fiEHIE

FEBR(PIINAEHERATE) » BT
SRERENIRRTER

o HERNXHEIHT SREENEREN B
e EE - RERERELERN SHX
EREE - RBR AR BB AR -

WEHTARE - HESK L RETENE
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49 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity instruments,
for example as the result of a share buy-back or a share-based payment
plan, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due 12 months
after the reporting period.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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49 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Interest income is presented as other income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&
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49 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued) 49 HEfhEBERBE @)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions. If the grant is in the form of monetary assets, it is
measured by the amount received or receivable.

Government grants of the Group are obtained free from the government
in the form of monetary assets, including tax refunds and/or financial
subsidies.

Government grants related to assets are government grants which are
obtained by the enterprise for the construction or formation of other long-
term assets. Government grants related to income refer to the grants
other than those related to assets. Government grants related to assets
are recognised as deferred income, equally recorded in profit or loss of
corresponding period over the life of the relevant assets.

Government grants related to income used as compensation for business
expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are recognised as deferred
income, and recorded in profit or loss when the expenses are recognised;
those obtained as compensation for business expenses or losses that have
occurred are recorded directly in current profit or loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit attributable
to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of
basic earnings per share to take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders, where
appropriate.
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50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Company

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 and 2022

are as follows.

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Directly held:
EBEFE

Hengda Intelligent
EEEE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.
BMBEREERERERAR

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Material Trading Co., Ltd.
BMEEEMEENEHEERDR

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face
Machinery Co., Ltd.
DM REERERAF

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd.
DR EE BT B AR AT

Zhengzhou Zhima Street Industrial Co., Ltd.

BIZMEERAR R

Zhengzhou Coal Mine Machinery Co., Ltd.
BEMEBRNEREELF

Principal activity

TRER

Manufacture of hydraulic
products
HERBER

Manufacture of mining
machinery
R

Trading of raw materials
and products
FHRERES

Manufacture of mining
machinery
R

Manufacture of mining
machinery
R

Hotel Management and
construction service
BEEE REERS

Manufacture of mining
machinery
R

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

50 ANA T EEM

BT zHE

20234 2022512 A31H - AR EIMB AR 2+

1B o

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
MR, BRIRARRE
R,/ EE HMEXREE
The PRC RMB360,000,000
H AR #360,000,0007C
The PRC RMB100,000,000
H AR #100,000,0007T
The PRC RMB10,000,000
H AR #10,000,00075
The PRC RMB50,000,000
H AR #50,000,0007T
The PRC RMB50,000,000
H AR #50,000,0007T
The PRC RMB100,000,000
H AR #100,000,0007T
The PRC RMB1,000,000,000
H AR #1,000,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBEEEER
RAERDL
2023 2022
2023F 2020
% %
85.02 85.02
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
53.21 53.21
54.00 54.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEARERE

Directly held: (Continued)
EERE  (B)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Siberia Co., Ltd.

BRHAENEARAERT

ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd.
HREERE S (BB)FRAR

ZMJ Germany GmbH
R ER AR AT

ZMJ America, Inc.

(M BRAR

ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd
BB ORANE)BRAA

ZMJ Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.
R RREBRAF

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Shuyun
Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.
MR BT DR AR AR

Principal activity

FRER

Aftermarket service of
mining machinery

IR SRR

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE LR RE
KR E

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE MR
KR E

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE MR
KR E

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE MR RE
KR E

Commercial factoring

[GEISE

Providing technology
service

TR AR

50 XATEEMB LRI ZHERE @

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
ML BETRBERE
B/ EE S HMEREE
Russia USD100,000
&S 100,000% 7T
Hong Kong USD7,500,000
o 7,500,000 7T
Germany EUR1,000,000
= 1,000,007 7T
Canada CAD100
JIIEYN 100407T
Australia USD200,000
BAN T 200,000% 7T
The PRC RMB100,000,000
F AR #100,000,0007T
The PRC RMB10,000,000
F ARH10,000,0007C

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEEREREER
TREEAH
2023 2022
2023F 20224
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
60.00 60.00



Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Directly held: (Continued)
EERE - (B)

ZMJ Emerging Industry Investment (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership)

B EERRE () AR E
(BR&%)

ASIMCO (Nanjing) Limited (former name:
“ASIMCO (Beijing) Limited”)

SR IERM (FR)BRAR R :
[EEATR LR EM (LR BRAR )

CACG LTD. (“CACG I)
CACG LTD. ([CACG 1))

Zhengzhou Shengji Mechanical and Electrical
Equipment Company Limited
BNEERERBER AT

ZMJ Zhiding Hydraulic Company Limited
(“ZMJ Zhiding”)

HEHE S RBERAT
([HERER])

Hong Kong SMG International Co., Limited
ERERERERAF

SEG Automotive E-Drive System Co., Ltd.
RERAEEHZRBRAA

RN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20235 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

50 XABEEMB LR ZERE @

Nominal value

Place of of issued and

incorporation/ fully paid up

establishment/ share capital/

Principal activity operation registered capital
FMRIL, ERTRMERE

TEER R,/ EEHS HMEAEE
Investing The PRC RMB389,516,702
®E FE AR #389,516,7027C

Sale and purchase of auto  The PRC

parts and components /1
HE IR BT
Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands
HERETE HERSE
Sale of auto parts The PRC
HERETE R
Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC

machinery H
R
Sale of auto parts The PRC
HERETE R
Sale of auto parts The PRC
HERETE R

RMB1,200,000,000
AE#1,200,000,0007T

RMB418,970
AR#4189707T

RMB2,450,000,000
A #2,450,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AE#50,000,0007T

EUR310,000,000
310,000,000A 7T

RMB100,000,000
A& #100,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBREERR
FREBDL
2023 2022
2023F 20224
% %
100.00 100.00
83.39 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEARERE

Indirectly held:
BEFA

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Intelligent
Control Technology Innovation Center Co,

Ltd. (former name: “Intelligent Control

Software and Network Services Technology

(Zhengzhou) Co.Ltd.)
BN R R R R L AR AR
(BUTE « SRR (EN)

1))

Intelligent Control Software and Network
Services Technology (Shenzhen) Co.,Ltd.
BE@ur ORI ERAF

Zhengzhou Yingzhike Technology Co., Ltd.
MBI BR AR

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.
WMFERFRERAF

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Gelin Material Technology Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”)

HIMBEERMI B AR AR
([ EBA AR AR L)

ASIMCO Camshatt (Yizheng) Co., Ltd
(“ASIMCO Camshaft")

AR (B AR AR
([FRN )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2023 12 A31 8 L /&

50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

FRER

Software and [T services

Y R ERB IR

Software and [T services

Y R ERB IR

Software and [T services

Y R ERB IR

Sale of molding and metal
material
BAREBMEHE

Sale of molding and
metal material
BARSBMEIEE

Sale of auto parts
BETETHY

50 XATEEMB LRI ZHERE @

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
ML BRIRBMRRE
B/ EE S HMEREE
The PRC RMB8,000,000
F AE#8,000,0007T
The PRC RMB8,000,000
F AE#8,000,0007T
The PRC -
FE

The PRC RMB30,000,000
F ARH30,000,0007C
The PRC RMB50,000,000
F ARH50,000,0007C
The PRC RMB118,043,007
F AR #5118,043,0077T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEEREREER
TREEAH
2023 2022
2023F 20224
% %
85.02 85.02
85.02 85.02
85.02 85.02
55.26 55.26
55.26 55.26
52.54 63.00



Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE - (8)

ASIMCO Shuanghuan
EIEIEIR

ASIMCO Shanxi
SHRILA

ASIMCO International, Inc.
EEHRIBERER AT

ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui)
(*ASIMCO NVH")

THRBRBRERHRIN(ZE)ARAT
([ ZHFRINVH])

ASIMCO Alloy Materials (Yiznheng) Co., Ltd
(former name: “ASM ALLOY MATERIALS
(YIZHENG) CO.,LTD")

THRE MBI BRAF
(FIF8 - [EHEE MR (&IE)
ARAF)

Yangzhou Yingwei AutoMotive Parts Co., Ltd.
BB AEE B ARAA

Anhui ASIMCO Sealing Technology Co., Ltd.
ZRGHRZHRIERAF

Ningguo ASIMCO Wujinzhipin Co., Ltd.
BEMEHREERERAR

ASIMCO Sealing Technologies (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
EITRVERL R (RE) AR AR

50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

ERER

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

RN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20235 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

50 A EEEM

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
Batiizayd BRTRBERE
R,/ EEHS HMEREE
The PRC RMB229,703,231
H AR229,703,2317T
The PRC RMB420,362,000
H AR 420,362,0007T
The USA USD1
E3E 17T
The PRC RMB299,200,000
H AR 1299,200,0007T
The PRC RMB41,308,285
H ANE#41,308,2857T
The PRC RMB2,000,000
H ARH2,000,0007T
The PRC RMB50,000,000
H AE#50,000,0007T
The PRC RMB20,000,000
H AE#20,000,0007T
Thailand THP22,500,000
el 22,500,000%= 4k

ll‘l_\é/ﬂjﬁiﬁ% Bﬁ-EI
|FNE A=)
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBREERR
FREBDL
2023 2022
2023F 20224
% %
52.99 63.54
83.39 100.00
83.39 100.00
83.39 100.00
52.99 63.54
52.99 63.54
83.39 100.00
83.39 100.00
83.39 100.00
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50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEARERE

Indirectly held: (Continuea)
BERE  (8)

ASIMCO Technologies (Yuncheng) Co., Ltd.
IR TERMGER) AR AR

SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P.
SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P.

SMG Acquisition Luxembourg
Holdings S.ar.l.

SMG Acquisition Luxembourg
Holdings S.ar.l.

New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH
New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH

New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and
Operations GmbH & Co. KG

New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and
Operations GmbH & Co. KG

SEG Automotive Germany GmbH
RERAEERERRA

SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda.
RERAESHERERAF

Principal activity

FRER

Sale of auto parts
HERBTHMH

Sale of auto parts
BETETHY

Sale of auto parts
HERBTHMH

Sale of auto parts
HERBTHMH

Sale of auto parts
HERBTHMH

Sale of auto parts
BETETHY

Sale of auto parts

HETET IR

50 XATEEMB LRI ZHERE @

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
FMRIL, BRIRBMRRE
B/ EE S HMEREE
The PRC RMB200,000,000
F AR #200,000,0007T
Cayman Islands EUR499,999,905
REHE 499,999,905E% 7T
Luxembourg EUR12,000
EXRE 12,0008 7T
Germany EUR25,000
2 25,0008k 7T
Germany EUR625,000,500
2 625,000,5008% 7
Germany EUR25,000
= 25,0008 7T
Brazil EUR50,300,715.57
yiil 50,300,715.57BL T,

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEEREREER
TREEAH
2023 2022
2023F 20224
% %
83.39 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99



RN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20235 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Indirectly held: (Continued)
EERE - (8)

Starters E-Components Generators
Automotive Hungary Kit.

Starters E-Components Generators
Automotive Hungary Kit.

SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd.
RRRTED(PE)BRAF

SEG Automotive India Private Limited
RERAENEARAT

SEG Automotive North America LLC
REBAEIEERAA

SEG Automotive France S.A.S.
REKAEEZRAR AT

SEG Automotive Japan Corporation
RERAEAAGA &1

SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing,
SA deCV.
REKAERAKASH

Principal activity

ERER

Sale of auto parts

HERETRY

Sale of auto parts

HERETRY

Sale of auto parts

HERETRMY

Sale of auto parts

HERETRMY

Sale of auto parts

HERETRMY

Sale of auto parts

HERETRMY

Sale of auto parts

HERETRMY

RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

50 XABEEMB LR ZERE @

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
operation registered capital held by the Group
FMRIL, ERTRMERE rEBREERR
R,/ EEHS HMEAEE ®AEEA
2023 2022
2023 20224F
% %
Hungary EUR15,050,000 100.00 100.00
&) 7 7l 15,050,0008 7T
The PRC RMB290,400,000.00 100.00 100.00
HE AR #290,400,000.007C
India EUR134,395.95 99.99 99.99
E 134,395,958 7T
North America EURO 100.00 100.00
JEEM 0BT
France EUR50,000 100.00 100.00
EE 50,0008 7T
Japan EUR736,982.46 100.00 100.00
BA 736,982.46[ 7T
Mexico EUR486,633.91 99.99 99.99
Sl 486,633.918 70
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50 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

50 XATEEMB LRI ZHERE @

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
FMRIL, BRIRBMRRE FrEEREERER
MWEARERE TEER B/ EE S HMEREE TREEAH
2023 2022
2023 20224F
% %
Indirectly held: (Continuea)
E#ERE - (8)
SEG Automotive Mexico Service, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR89,994.28 99.99 99.99
S.deR.L deCV. HERBET I 2R 80,994.28E 7T
REBABEAFEERRAF
SEG Automotive Mexico Sales, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR95,008.49 99.99 99.99
S.deRL. deCV. HERBET I B 95,008.49B1 7T
REBABEAFHEBRAF
SEG Automotive Portugal, Unipessoal Lda. Sale of auto parts Portugal EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
RERAEEHETERDA HERBET I BEF 25,0008% 7T
SEG Automotive South Africa Sale of auto parts South Africa EUR59,711.70 100.00 100.00
Proprietary Limited HERBET I H3E 59,711.708% 7T
RERABEIFERAR
SEG Automotive Korea Co. Ltd. Sale of auto parts Korea EUR36,834.26 100.00 100.00
RERAEERERAH HERBET I Erdi 36,834.26B1 7T
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U. Sale of auto parts Spain EUR9,616,000 100.00 100.00
REBAERITARAR HERBET I FasE o 9,616,000EX 7T
SEG Automotive ltaly S.r.|. Sale of auto parts Italy EUR500,000 100.00 100.00
REBABEAFBRAR HERBET I BARH 500,0008% 7T
SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd. is registered as a wholly foreign RREGTEEM () BR A AR AR

AMA—RIBBERE - RRBETEM
(PEDBARABSN  AEEEPBIRARIA
PEEMHB AR RRNERE -

owned enterprise under PRC law. Except for SEG Automotive Products
(China) Co., Ltd., all other subsidiaries of the Group which are established
in the PRC are domestic enterprises.
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

51 Information about the statement of financial 51 BREAARQ AR R K2 ER
position of the Company

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 1,578,857 1,543,709
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 21,767 26,005
Investment properties EME 204,526 214,262
Intangible assets WA E 220,165 258,703
Investments in subsidiaries RETBREZIEE 12,249,335 8,472,516
Investments in associates REFENE 2B 632,247 145,859
Investments in a joint venture R—EEEEZRE 38,130 37,123
Financial assets at fair value through LAATFER2EE B ABREN

profit or loss SRMEE 6,872 -
Financial assets at fair value through LAAFERFEEEBA

other comprehensive income EtezmbiEnesmiE - 392,987
Deferred income tax assets FEEASIHEE 122,390 107,503
Finance lease receivables R E & R E 38,554 4,442
Long-term receivables RERFEW G TA 150,172 196,387
Bank deposit RITIFEFK 1,468,712 -
Total non-current assets FEREEELTE 16,731,727 11,399,496
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories e 5,538,999 4,107,529
Loans receivable from subsidiaries FEWM B AR ER 110,000 170,000
Trade and other receivables 5 L HAEWFIE 5,327,037 4,949,933
Transferred trade receivables BEENE FHEKGIE 198,861 269,411
Finance lease receivables, current portion mEHERWTE  REED 16,470 45718
Long-term receivables, current portion EHAFEUCERTE  RENER S 216,230 88,032
Financial assets at fair value through AT EEBEZE T ABREN

profit or loss EREE 4,664,823 3,881,101
Financial assets at fair value through AAFEEFEAHEFTA

other comprehensive income HirmhaESNemiEE 2,457,398 3,376,123
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 725 -
Bank deposits RITIFE 1,708,755 2,971,915
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 3,136,532 2,239,639
Total current assets BREEE 23,375,830 22,099,401

Total assets WEE 40,107,557 33,498,897
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z= 2023412 A31 B IL /&

51 Information about the statement of financial 51 ERAARQARIMER AR ZER &)

position of the Company (Continued)

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Other non-current liabilities HiIEREaE 159,203 166,888
Employee benefit obligations EERMET 64,539 16,811
Borrowings gE 4,703,000 2,137,500
Provision P 33,453 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 19,358 23,740
Total non-current liabilities FREEEEEE 4,979,553 2,344,939
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBARE
Trade and other payables B 5N EA RN T 10,758,970 7411217
Contract liabilities ARAE 3,380,082 2,942,164
Borrowings ==y 422,000 2,416,092
Liabilities associated with transferred HEBEMNESRKEEENAE
trade receivables 212,812 269,411
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,286 19,660
Total current liabilities EAEERE 14,778,150 13,058,544
Total liabilities FER=R 19,757,703 15,403,483
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B B
Share capital A A 1,781,409 1,782,245
Share premium B0 m B 4,533,431 4,538,675
Reserves (Note (a)) i (F5E@) 14,035,014 11,774,494
Total equity EREE 20,349,854 18,095,414
Total equity and liabilities ERREEHARE 40,107,557 33,498,897
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RE M RARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z=2023F 12 A31 B IL F /&

51 Information about the statement of financial 51 BREAALQ R BER K Z2ER &)

position of the Company (Continued)

Note (a) M7 (@)
Statutory
Treasury Surplus Other Retained
share Reserve reserves earnings Total
EERER
ERR5 #E HttREE REBRA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARBTR
Balance at 1 January 2022 7202241 A1 B &64 (248,724) 1,198,347 106,845 8,434,621 9,491,089
Profit for the year FRmRH - - - 2697512 2,697,512
Other comprehensive income for year FRHMEEmRE - - 238,839 - 238,839
Profit and total comprehensive income F NN R 2 W mRAATE

for the year - - 238,839 2,697,512 2,936,351
Share options RENRE - - (10,242) - (10,242)
Restricted share incentive scheme [R5 MRS 2B T &

(Note 39) (P7£39) 130,526 - 303 547 131,376
Dividends (Note 14) B2 (FsE14) - - - (774,080) (774,080)
Balance at 31 December 2022 7A2022412 A31 B &84 (118,198) 1,198,347 335,745 10,358,600 11,774,494
Balance at 1 January 2023 20231 A1 8 &% (118,198) 1,198,347 335,745 10,358,600 11,774,494
Profit for the year FRRF - - - 2948619 2,948,619
Other comprehensive income for year FRHMEEmRE - - - - -
Profit and total comprehensive income F AR R 2R AATE

for the year - - - 2,948,619 2,948,619
Share options RN - - 1,326 - 1,326
Restricted share incentive scheme PR ) 14 A% ZE S B AT

(Note 39) (FI5E39) 65,771 - 24,464 2,082 92,317
Dividends (Note 14) A2 (Bf5E14) - - - (998,058) (998,058)
Share of other reserve from DMEREBE QAR R

associates and joint ventures ABEDENHMEE - - 1,072 - 1,072
Change of investment and inter-group wEZGHREEFEEA

restructuring - - (118,667) 333,911 215,244
Balance at 31 December 2023 202312 A31 A48k (52,427) 1,198,347 243,940 12,645,154 14,035,014
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IFMBRE

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REBERREER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

20235 20224 20214 20204F 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

INLEWA ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT

Revenue WA 36,423,236 32,043,306 29,293,527 26,519,393 25,721,417

Cost of sales SHERA 28,575,291 25,644,599 23,221,695 20,218,738 20,923,902

Profit hefore tax KRBT F 4,118,262 3,090,078 2,623,316 1,939,894 1,530,076

Profit for the year FRHEF] 3,501,594 2,628,005 2,069,868 1,378,781 1,139,910

Profit for the year attributable to: LA T AT EIEER
St

Owners of the Company AABRER 3,301,334 2,538,235 1,947,785 1,239,149 1,040,253

Non-controlling interests FEE R 200,260 89,770 122,083 139,632 99,657

3,501,594 2,628,005 2,069,868 1,378,781 1,139,910

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Financial RENBMRREBE
Position
As at 31 December
M2A318

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

20235 20224 20214 20204F 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

INLEVA ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Non-current assets EREEE 12,675,729 10,270,311 9,407,764 9,352,372 9,470,921

Current assets FEBE 36,711,290 34,199,278 27,922,550 25,104,222 20,347,930

Total assets HwEE 49,387,019 44,469,589 37,330,314 34,456,594 29,818,851

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 8,125,280 6,245,568 6,600,964 5,594,284 3,854,076

Current liabilities mENEE 19,380,410 19,585,740 15,078,373 14,828,479 12,822,529

Total liabilities wafE 27,505,690 25,831,308 21,679,337 20,422,763 16,676,605
Equity attributable to owners of ARRREEEEE

the Company 20,378,212 17,807,267 14,795,491 13,063,795 12,239,731

Non-controlling interests S 1,503,117 831,014 855,486 970,036 902,515

Total equity AL 21,881,329 18,638,281 15,650,977 14,033,831 13,142,246

Total equity and liabilities EENRAEAE 49,387,019 44,469,589 37,330,314 34,456,594 29,818,851
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